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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,

MUMBAIBENCH

COMPANY SCHEME PETITION NO.

IN

COMP ANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 99 OF 2024.

OF 2024

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of2013)

AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed

there under as in force from time to time;
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Estate, Vema, South Goa, Salcette, Goa, India )

-403722. ) ... Petitioner Company

No. 11Transferor Company

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED )

C'SHL"), a public limited company, which is )

listed on recognised stock exchanges, )

incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 )
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,

MUMBAIBENCH

COMPANY SCHEME PETITION NO.

IN

COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 99 OF 2024.

OF 2024

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of2013)

AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act,

2013 along with other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under as in

force from time to time;

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation between

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED ("SEL" or the "Transferor

Company") and SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

("SHL" or the "Transferee Company"), and their respective

shareholders

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED ("SEL"), a public )

limited company incorporated under the )

Companies Act, 2013 having its registered )

office at Plot No. L-5A, Vema Industrial )

Estate, Verna, South Goa, Salcette, Goa, India )

-403722 ) ... Petitioner Company No. 11

Transferor Company

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED)

("SHL"), a public limited company which is )

listed on recognized stock exchanges, )



incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 )

having its registered office at at L-7, Vema )

Industrial Estate, Vema, Salcete, Goa, India - )

403722
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LA W TRIBUNAL,

MUMBAIBENCH

COMPANY SCHEME PETITION NO.

IN

COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 99 OF 2024

OF 2024

BRIEF SYNOPSIS

From: SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED, the Transferor Company with

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED, the Transferee Company.

To, .

The National Company Law Tribunal

(Mumbai Bench)

Concerning:

IN THE MATTER OF:

In the matter of Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013

AND

In the matter of Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the

Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

AND

IN THE MATTER OF:

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED, a public limited company incorporated under the

Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office at Plot No. L-5A, Vema

Industrial Estate, Vema, South Goa, Salcette, Goa, India - 403722.

- Transferor Company

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED ("SHL"), a public limited company

which is listed on recognized stock exchanges, incorporated under the

Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at at L-7, Vema Industrial

Estate, Vema, Salcete, Goa, India - 403722

- Transferee Company



BRIEF SYNOPSIS

1. Audited Statement of Accounts as on 31.03.2023 of the Petitioner

Company No.1 as an Exhibit B.

2. Provisional Statement of Accounts as on 31.12.2023 of the Petitioner

Company No.1 as an Exhibit B-1.

3. Audited Statement of Accounts as on 31.03.2023 of the Petitioner

Company No.2 as an Exhibit D.

4. Provisional Statement of Accounts as on 31.12.2023 of the Petitioner

Company No.2 as an Exhibit D-1.

5. Copy of the Board Resolution passed at Meeting of the Board of

Directors of the Petitioner Company No.1 approved the Scheme of

Amalgamation as an Exhibit F.

6. Copy of the Board Resolution passed at Meeting of Board of Directors

of the Petitioner Company No.2 approved the Scheme of

Amalgamation as an Exhibit G.

7. Copy of certificate issued by the statutory auditors of Petitioner

Company No.2 as an Exhibit H.

8. Copy of the Minutes of Order dated 12thJuly, 2024 passed by Hon'ble

Tribunal as an Exhibit I.

9. Joint Affidavit of Service of serving filed with the Hon'ble National

Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench as an Exhibit 1.

II POINTS TO BE URGED

2. The object of this Petition is to obtain sanction of this Hon'ble Tribunal to

the arrangement embodied in the Scheme Amalgamation between SYNEGRA

EMS LIMITED ("SEL" or the "Transferor Company") and SMARTLINK

HOLDINGS LIMITED ("SHL" or the "Transferee Company"), and their

respective shareholders ('the Scheme' or 'this Scheme') with effect from the

Appointed Date in terms of the Scheme without any further act or deed

pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013

("the Act").

III ACTS AND AUTHORITIES



3. Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder

4. Companies (Court) Rules, 2013.

Authorities will be cited if necessary, at the time of the hearing.

FOR RAJESH SHAH & CO .

. I- P1~ L S 4_,,_t
Advocates for the Petitioner.



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,

MUMBAI BENCH

COMPANY SCHEME PETITION NO.

IN

COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 99 OF 2024.

OF 2024

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of2013)

AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules

framed there under as in force from time to time;

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation between

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED ("SEL" or the "Transferor

Company") and SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

("SHL" or the "Transferee Company"), and their

respective shareholders

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED ("SEL"), a public )

limited company incorporated under the )

Companies Act, 2013 having its registered )

office at Plot No. L-5A, Vema Industrial )

Estate, Vema, South Goa, Salcette, Goa, India )

- 403722 ) ... Petitioner Company No.1

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED)

("SHL"), a public limited company which is )

listed on recognized stock exchanges, )

incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 )

having its registered office at at L-7, Vema )

Industrial Estate, Vema, Salcete, Goa, India - )



403722 ) ... Petitioner Company No.2

LIST OF DATES

Sr. No. Date Events Exhibit Page No.

1 31/03/2023 Audited Statement of Accounts as on B

31.03.2023 of the Petitioner Company

No.1

31/12/2023 Provisional Statement of Accounts as

on 31.12.2023 of the Petitioner

Company No.1

B-1

D

2

3 31/03/2023 Audited Statement of Accounts as on

31.03.2023 of the Petitioner Company

No.2

31112/2023 Provisional Statement of Accounts as

on 31.12.2023 of the Petitioner

Company No.2

D-1

F

4

5 09/02/2024 Board of Directors of the Petitioner

Company No.1 approved the Scheme

of Amalgamation on 09th February
I

2024

G6 09/02/2024 Board of Directors of the Petitioner

Company No.2 approved the Scheme

of Amalgamation on 09th February

2024

H7 08/02/2024 Copy of certificate issued by the

statutory auditors of the Petitioner

Company No.2

I8 12/07/2024 Minutes of Order dated 12thJuly,2024

passed by Hon 'ble Tribunal

9 12/08/2024 Copy of the Affidavit of Service of

serving filed with the Hon'ble

National Company Law Tribunal,

Mumbai Bench

10 108/2024 The Petitioner Company files

Company Scheme Petitioner under

Section 230 to 232 of the Companies

Act, 2013

J
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II POINTS TO BE URGED

1 The object of this Petition is to obtain sanction of this Hon'ble Tribunal

to the arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation between

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED ("SEL" or the "Transferor Company") and

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED ("SHL" or the "Transferee

Company"), and their respective shareholders ("the Scheme' or 'this

Scheme') with effect from the Appointed Date in terms of the Scheme

without any further act or deed pursuant to the provisions of Section

230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

III ACTS AND AUTHORITIES

\

1. Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder

2. Companies (Court) Rules, 2013.

Authorities will be cited if necessary, at the time of the hearing.

FOR RAJESH SHAH & CO.

~~~L s 4'/yl

Advocates for the Petitioner.



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMP ANY LAW TRIBUNAL, \

MUMBAI BENCH

COMPANY SCHEME PETITION NO. OF 2024

IN

COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 99 OF 2024.

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of2013)

AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed

there under as in force from time to time;

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation between

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED ("SEL" or the "Transferor

Company") and SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

("SHL" or the "Transferee Company"), and their respective

shareholders.

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED ("SEL"), a public )

limited company incorporated under the )

Companies Act, 2013 having its registered )

office at Plot No. L-5A, Vema Industrial )

Estate, Vema, South Goa, Salcette, Goa, India )

- 403722. ) ... Petitioner Company No. 11

Transferor Company

HOLDINGS LIMITED)

)

on recognized stock exchanges, )

rated under the Companies Act, 1956 )

at L-7, Vema )

)



Industrial Estate, Vema, Salcete, Goa, India - )

) ... Petitioner Company No.2/

Transferee Company

403722

1. The object of this Petition is to obtain sanction of the Tribunal to an

amalgamation embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation between SYNEGRA

EMS LIMITED the Petitioner Company No.1 or Transferor Company and

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED, the Petitioner Company No. 2 or

Transferee Company and their respective shareholders.

2. The Petitioner Company No.1 or the Transferor Company was incorporated

on 17thday of August, 2016 under the Companies Act, 2013 under the name and

style of 'SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED' in Goa. Hereto annexed and marked as

Exhibit' A' is the copy of the said Incorporation Certificate along with

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Petitioner Company No.1.

3. The Registered Office of the Petitioner Company No.1 is situated at Plot No.

L-5A, Verna Industrial Estate, Vema, South Goa, Salcette, Goa, India -

403722.

4. The Authorised Share Capital of the Petitioner Company No.1, as on the 3pt

day of March, 2023 is as under:

Particulars Amount in (Rs.)

Authorised Capital

25,00,00,0002,50,00,000 Equity Shares ofINR 10/- each

tal 25,00,00,000

25,00,00,000

25,00,00,000



As on date, there is no change In the capital structure of the Petitioner

Company No.1.

As on date, the entire share capital of the Petitioner Company No.1 is held by

Petitioner Company No.2 (along with its nominees). Accordingly, the Petitioner

Company No.1. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Petitioner Company No.2.

Objects of the Company

5. The mam objects of the Petitioner Company No.1 are set out m the

Memorandum of Association. They are briefed as under:

"1. To carryon the business of manufacturers, importers, exporters, dealers,

traders, consignors, consignees, mercantile agents, manufacturers' representative,

stockists, distributors, developers, and/or otherwise deal in electronic,

telecommunication and electrical components, spare parts, assemblies, instruments,

devices, appliances, equipments, computers hardware, software and peripherals of

all lands and description. and/or otherwise deal in things used in connection with

manufacturing, assembling and working of electronic, telecommunication and

electrical products, systems and/or their components, including, but not limited to,

the following: (a) computing and storage equipment, networking equipment (b)

Structured Cabling products (c) telecommunications equipment.; (d) consumer

electronic products; (e) eLectronic systems, (f) industrial electronic products and (g)

other electronics equipment and products, including electronic medical products

and devices and providing all types of services in the electronics sector, including

supply chain related, product design and/or post manufacturing services such as (a)

product design, (b) collaborative design, (c) product launch or New Product

ntroduction (NPl); (d) DFX (Design for manufacturability) services;' (e) Printed

manufacturing; (f) systems

and test,' (g) parts management; (/1) inventory management; (i)

(j) repair services; (k) recovery / remarketing; (1)



warranty support for electronics products; and (m) feedback to design and

manufacturingfor quality/serviceability.. "

Nature of the Business

6. The Petitioner Company No.1 was set up in the year 2016. The Petitioner

Company No.1 is in the business of manufacture of various categories of

electronic and IT products on job work basis and also engages in contract

manufacturing for original equipment manufacturer. Hereto annexed and

marked Exhibit "B" is a copy of Audited Statement of Accounts as on 31

March 2023 and the Provisional Statement of Accounts for the period ended

31st December, 2023 of the Petitioner Company No.1 annexed and marked

Exhibit "B-1" respectively.

7. The Petitioner Company No.2 was incorporated on 31st day of March, 1993

under the Companies Act, 1956 under the name and style of 'D-LINK

(INDIA) LIMITED'. Later on, the name was changed to 'SMARTLINK

NETWORK SYSTEMS LIMITED' on 15th day of July, 2009. Thereafter,

once again, the name was changed to 'SMAR TLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED'

on 5th day of April, 2018. Hereto annexed and marked as Exhibit "C" is the

copy of the said Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Petitioner

Company No.2.

The Registered Office of the Petitioner Company No.2 is situated at L-7, Vema

Industrial Estate, Vema, Salcete, Goa, India - 403722.

3,50,00,000 equity shares ofRs. 2/-each. 7,00,00,000

Particulars Amount in (Rs.)

Authorised Capital



Total 7,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

99,75,000 equity shares ofRs. 2/- each. 1,99,50,000

Total 1,99,50,000

As on date, there IS no change In the capital structure of the Petitioner

Company No.2.

Objects oUlte Company

10. The main objects of the Petitioner Company No.2 are set out In the

Memorandum of Association. They are briefed as under:

"1. To invest in, acquire, purchase, hold, sell, dispose of or otherwise

lA. To deal in all types of shares, stocks, debentures, bonds, units of mutual funds,

negotiable instruments, commercial paper, certificates of deposits, futures and

derivative instruments, securities of any Company, government, public body or

authority, municipal and local bodies, whether in India or abroad and to form,

incorporate or promote, sell or otherwise dispose-off any company or companies,

whether in India or elsewhere; and

1B. To develop, construct, manage, lease, tum to account & deal in real estate and

property of all kinds and in particular land, buildings, hereditaments and other

. '/~ property in India or elsewhere any right or interest in real or personal property

/.' ~ ~...s~u Sit and any claims against such property or against any persons or company and as
!J q ~4'

'" 6> ** f Reg No. '4S 1; egards land to develop the resources thereof any improving and civil constructions
~ S/,,\..C,ET\-

Tll.LUKP ~ ;:::-- of commercial and residential building and to carryon business as builders
Q ~' .: I,

o ~Iv ,~";> / " }""I' ?S'::_~I.,/ ,,1 ../l contractors estate agents and estate managers.
" 'F (jC r" , "

2, Manufacturing add-on computer parts of all types of applications in

communication and networking.

2 A To carry on business as manufacturers, producers, processors, makers,

convertors, repairers, importers, exporters, traders, buyers, sellers, retailers,

wholesale suppliers, intenders, packers, movers, preservers, stockists, agents, sub-



otherwise deal in computers, data processors, calculators, tabulators, machines,

appliances, accessories, devices and instruments of every kind and activation for

use in industrial, commercial, banking, scientific, medical, statistical, or any other

purpose and any other product or products thereof or materials, articles, software

and hardware in connection herewith or ancillary thereto, software development

in networking field and other computer applications and infotainment, media

telecommunications and entertainment, wireless and any other knowledge based

industries.

2B to design, develop, carry out, assist, research in the field of Information

Technology on networking products and computer related products, for use

for industrial, commercial, banking, scientific, medical, statistical or any other

purpose and assist in providing educational, personal training and any other land

of service or facility relating to information technology, computers, computer

programming, internet, information retrieval, data preparation and processing

equipment and electronic and electrical equipment and device. "

Nature of the Business

11. The Petitioner Company No.2 was incorporated in the year 1993. The

Petitioner Company No. 2 is an NBFC and operates as an Investment

company. Hereto annexed and marked Exhibit "D" is a copy of Audited

Statement of Accounts as on 31st March, 2023 and the Provisional Statement

of Accounts for the period ended 31st December, 2023 of the Petitioner

Company No.2 annexed and marked Exhibit "D-l" respectively.

Rationale and benefits if the Scheme

12. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are part of the same

group and the Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary of the

Transferee Company. The rationale for the Scheme is as under:



r
a) To foray into design, development, research in the field of Information

Technology for networking products at the Holding company level

b) Reduce managerial overlaps, regulatory compliances which are

necessarily involved in running multiple entities and elimination of

duplication of administrative expenses, consequently enabling cost

savings

c) Ease in raising funds at Holding company level

d) Economies of scale, greater integration, flexibility and market reach for

the amalgamated entity

e) Achieve simplified corporate structure and ensuring more productive and

optimum utilization of various resources

13. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Petitioner Companies decided that

subject to the directions and sanctions of the appropriate Tribunal as may be

required under law and subject to such permission of the Central Government

and other Authorities that may be necessary, the Scheme of Amalgamation

between SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED, the Transferor Company and

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED the Transferee Company and their

respective shareholders, be made on the broad basis referred to in the Scheme

A certified copy of the Board Resolution passed by the Board of Directors of

the Petitioner Company No.1 dated 09th February, 2024, is annexed hereto

and marked as Exhibit 'F'.

15. A certified copy oftbe Board Resolution passed by the Board of Directors of

the Petitioner Company No.2 dated 09tb February, 2024, is annexed hereto



~
auditors of the Petitioner Company No. 2 to the effect that accounting treatment

under the Scheme is in conformity with the accounting standards prescribed under

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto and marked :IS Exhibit

'H' .

16. The material provisions of the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation are as

under:

t t

5. TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING

5.1. With effect from the Appointed Date and upon coming into effect of the

Scheme and subject to the provisions of the Scheme, the entire Undertaking

of the Transferor Company shall be transferred to and vested in or be deemed

to be transferred to and vested as a going concern in the Transferee

Company.

5.2. For avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the

foregoing, it is clarified that upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with

effectfrom the Appointed Date, in accordance with the provisions ofrelevant

laws, all consents, permissions, licenses, registrations, certificates,

authorities (including for the operation of bank accounts), powers of

attorneys given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferor

Company, and the rights and benefits under the same, in so far as they relate

vested in the Transferee Company under the same terms and conditions as

were applicable to the Transferor Company immediately prior to the

Effective Date. In so far as the various incentives, sales tax, deferral benefits,

subsidies (including applications for subsidies), available tax credits

(including Minimum Alternate Tax credit, if any), rehabilitation schemes,

grants, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by

any government body, local authority or by any other person, or availed of



without any further act or deed, in so far as they relate to the Transferor &\
Company, shall be transferred and / or deemed to be transferred to or vest

with and be available to the Transferee Company on the same terms and

conditions as were applicable immediately prior to the coming into effect of

this Scheme. The Transferee Company shall make applications to and obtain

relevant approvals from the concerned Governmental Authorities and / or

parties as may be necessary in this behalf and the Transferor Company shall

co-operate and provide the required support wherever required.

5.3. The transfer and vesting of movable assets and other assets shall be effected

as follows, unless Board of Directors of the Transferor and the Transferee

Company decides otherwise:

(a) All the movable assets of the Transferor Company, and the assets

which are otherwise capable of transfer by physical delivery or

endorsement and delivery, shall be so transferred to the Transferee

Company and deemed to have been physically handed over by

physical delivery or by endorsement and delivery, as the case may be,

without the need to execute any separate instrument, to the Transferee

Company to the end and intent that the property and benefit therein

passes to the Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed

Date. Such delivery and transfer shall be made on a date which shall

be mutually agreed upon between the Transferor Company and the

Transferee Company on or after the Effective Date.

(b) In respect of any movable assets of the Transferor Company other

than those mentioned in sub-clause 5.3.(a) above, including

investments, intangible assets, actionable claims, sundry debtors,

outstanding loans, advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value

to be received and deposits with the Government, semi-Government,

local and other authorities and bodies and customers, the Transferor

Company shall if so required by the Transferee Company, and the

ransferee Company may, issue notices in such form as the Transferee

Company, as the person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the

right of the Transferor Company to recover or realize the same stands



\67
should be passed in their respective books to record the aforesaid

changes.

5.4. In relation to the assets, if any, belonging to the Transferor Company, which

require separate documents of transfer, the Transferor Company and the

Transferee Company will execute necessary documents, as and when

required.

Provided that for the purpose of giving effect to the vesting order passed

under Sections 230 to 232 in respect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company

shall at any time pursuant to the orders on this Scheme be entitled to get the

record of the change in the title and the appurtenant legal right(s) upon the

vesting of such assets of the Transferor Company in accordance W-,iththe

provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, at the office of the respective

Registrar of Assurances or any other concerned authority, where any such

property is situated.

5.5. Upon the Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Appointed Date,

and subject to the provisions of the Scheme, all debts, liabilities, contingent

liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company as on the

Appointed Date whether provided jar or not in the books of accounts of the

Transferor Company, and all other liabilities which may accrue or arise

after the Appointed Date but which relate to the period on or up to the day

of the Appointed Date shall, pursuant to the orders of the Hon 'ble NCLT or

such other Governmental authority as may be applicable under the

.bilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company on the same

-ms and conditions as were applicable to the Transferor Company.

thereof on or over which they are subsisting on transfer to and vesting of

such assets in the Transferee Company and no such charges, mortgages,

and/or encumbrances shall be enlarged or extend over or apply to any other

asset(s) of the Transferee Company. Any reference in any security documents

or arrangements (to which any of the Transferor Company is a party) to any

assets of the Transferor Company shall be so construed to the end and intent
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other asseus) of the Transferee Company and Transferee Company shall not

be obliged to create any further or additional security.

5.6. On and from the Effective Date, and thereafter, the Transferee Company

shall be entitled to operate all bank accounts of the Transferor Company and

realize all monies and complete and enforce all pending contracts and

transactions and to accept and issue credit notes in respect of the Transferor

Company in the name of the Transferee Company in so far as may be

necessary until the transfer of rights and obligations of the Transferor

Company to the Transferee Company under this Scheme have been formally

given effect to under such contracts and transactions.

5.7. The resolutions, if any, as approved and passed from time to time, under the

Act, by the Board of Directors, shareholders of the Transferor Company,

which are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date, shall continue to be

valid and subsisting and be considered as resolutions of the Transferee

Company until the Board of Directors or the shareholders of the Transferee

Company, as applicable, passes resolution(s) which has the effect of

difying or changing aforesaid resolutions of the Transferor Company. If
1 such resolutions of the Transferor Company have upper monetary or

er limits being imposed under the provisions of the Act or any other

5.8. This Scheme shall not, in any manner, affect the rights of any of the creditors

of the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company.

6. CONTRACTS AND DEEDS

6.1. From the Effective Date, subject to the provisions hereof, without any further

act of the parties, aLLmemorandum of understanding, contracts, including

contracts for tenancies and licenses, deeds, bonds, agreements. incentives,

benefits, exemptions. entitlements, arrangements, engagements,

registrations, schemes, assurances, insurance policies, guarantees and other

instruments of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor Company is a

party or to the benefit ofwhich the Transferor Company may be eligible and

which are subsisting or have effect on the Effective Date, shall be infull force



\2-
Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the

Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been a party to or

beneficiary of or obliged under the same.

6.2. Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding

the fact that the vesting of the Transferor Company occurs by virtue of this

Scheme itself, the Transferee Company shall, if and to the extent required by

law, enter into and / or issue and / or execute deeds, writings or

confirmations, to give formal effect to the provisions of Clause 6.1. To the

extent that the Transferor Company is required prior to the Effective Date to

enter into and / or issue and / or execute such deeds, writings or

confirmations, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to act for and on

behalf of and in the name of the Transferor Company and to carry out or

perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of

the Transferor Company.

6.3. It is hereby clarified that if any contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements,

registrations, licenses, assets (including but not limited to any estate, rights,

title, interest in or authorities relating to such assets), schemes,

arrangements or other instruments of wh.atsoever nature to which the

Transferor Company is a party, cannot be transferred to the Transferee

Company for any reason whatsoever, the Transferor Company shall hold

such contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, registrations, licenses, schemes,

arrangements or other instruments of whatsoever nature in trust for the

benefit of the Transferee Company, on and till the Effective Date.

7. EMPLOYEES OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

7.1. All the employees of the Transferor Company, who are in service as on the

Effective Date shall on and from the Effective Date and with effect from the

Appointed Date, become and be engaged as the employees of the Transferee

Company, without any break or interruption in service as a result of the

transfer and on terms and conditions not less favourable than those on which

they are engaged by the Transferor Company immediately preceding the

Effective Date. Services of the employees of the Transferor Company shall

be taken into account from the date of their respective appointment with the

Transferor Company for the purposes of all retirement benefits and all other
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any retrenchment compensation, if any, such past services with the

Transferor Company shall also be taken into account.

7.2. On and from the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, the

services of the employees of the Transferor Company will be treated as

having been continuous, without any break, discontinuance or interruption,

for the purpose of membership and the application of the rules or bye-laws

of provident fund or gratuity fund or pension fund or superannuation fund or

other statutory purposes as the case may be.

7.3. It is expressly provided that, on the Scheme becoming effective and with

effect from the Appointed Date, the provident fund, gratuity fund,

superannuation fund or any other special fund or trusts created or existing

for the benefit of the staff, workmen and other employees of the Transferor

Company shall become trusts! funds of the Transferee Company for all

purposes whatsoever in relation to the administration or operation of such

funds or trusts or in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the

said funds or trusts in accordance with the provisions thereof as per the terms

provided in the respective trust deeds or other documents, if any. It is the

aim, and intent of the Scheme that all rights, duties, powers and obligations

of the Transferor Company in relation to such funds or trusts shall become

those of the Transferee Company. It is clarified that the services of the staff,

workmen and employees of the Transferor Company which are employed

with the Transferee Company will be treated as having been continuous for

the purpose of the said fund or funds. The trustees including the Board of

irectors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company or

8. BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

8.1. The Board of Directors (or any committee! sub-committee thereof) of the

Transferor Company, upon this Scheme becoming effective, shall without any

further act, instrument and deed stand dissolved. All directors of the

Transferor Company shall cease to be directors of the Transferor Company
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director of the Transferee Company, he will continue to hold his office in the

amalgamated Transferee Company.

9. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

9.1. If any suit, appeal, petition, complaint, application or other legaL

proceedings of whatsoever nature (hereinafter referred to as the

"Proceedings") by or against the Transferor Company is pending as on the

Effective Date, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way be

prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation between the Transferor

Company and the Transferee Company or by anything contained in this

Scheme, but the Proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by

or against the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same

extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by

or against the Transferor Company in the absence of this Scheme.

9.2. On and from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall, if required,

initiate any legal proceedings in relation to the present and past business,

undertakings, properties and assets of the Transferor Company.

10. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS BY TRANSFEROR COMPANY TILL

EFFECTIVE DATE

10.1. Unless otherwise stated herein, from the Appointed Date until the Effective

Date:

(a) The Transferor Company shall carryon and be deemed to have

carried on all its business and activities and shall be deemed to have

held and stood possessed of and shall continue to hold and stand

possessed of all the assets, properties and liabilities for and on

account of and in trust for the Transferee Company. The Transferor

Company hereby undertakes to hold the assets, properties and

liabilities with utmost prudence until the Effective Date.

The Transferor Company shall carry on its business and activities

with reasonable diligence and business prudence and shall not, alter

or diversify its respective business nor venture into any new business,

nor alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with the

income accruing or
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Company or expenditure or losses arising or incurred or suffered by

the Transferor Company, shall for all purposes be treated as the

income or profits or losses or expenditure as the case may be of the

Transferee Company.

(d) The Transferor Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of

employment of any of the employees except in the ordinary course or

pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken by the Transferor

Company as the case may be.

(e) The Transferor Company shall not make any change in its capital

structure (paid-up capital), whether by way of increase, decrease,

reduction, re-classification, subdivision or consolidation, re-

organisation, or in any other manner, except by and with the consent

of the Board of Directors of SHL.

10.2. The Transferor Company either individually or jointly with the Transferee

Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to

the Central Government and lor other agencies, departments and authorities

concerned as may be necessary under any law for such consents, approvals

and sanctions which the Transferee Company may require to carry on the

business of the Transferor Company and to give effect to the Scheme.

11. SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTION

11.1. The transfer of the entire business, properties, assets and Undertaking of the

Transferor Company to the Transferee Company and the continuance of all

contracts or proceedings by or against the Transferor Company shall not

affect any transaction, contracts or proceedings already concluded by the

ansferor Company on or after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date,

the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and adopts all

12. ISSUE OF SHARES

12.1. The entire issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the

Transferor Company is held by the Transferee Company. In other words, the
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Accordingly, upon this scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company

would not be required to issue and allot any shares to the shareholders of

the Transferor Company.

13. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

13.1. On the Scheme becoming effective and with effectfrom the Appointed Date,

the Transferee Company shall account for the amalgamation of the

Transferor Company in its books of account in accordance with "Pooling of

Interest Method" laid down under Appendix C of IND AS 103 (Business

combination of entities under common control) and/ or any other applicable

IND AS, as the case may be, as notified under Section 133 of the Act read

with relevant rules issued thereunder.

14. TREATMENT OF TAXES

14.1. Any tax liabilities under the Income-tax Act, 1961, Customs Act, 1962, The

Central Good and Service Tax Act, 2017, stamp laws, ifanyas amended from

time to time or other applicable laws/ regulations dealing with taxes/ duties/

levies (hereinafter in this Clause referred to as "Tax Laws'') allocable or

related to the business of the Transferor Company to the extent not provided

for or covered by appropriate tax provisions in the accounts made as on the

date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred to the

Transferee Company.

14.2. All taxes (including but not limited to Income-tax, Good and Service tax etc.)

paid or payable by the Transferor Company in respect of the operations and

/ or the profits of the business on and from the Appointed Date, shall be on

account of the Transferee Company and, insofar as it relates to the tax

corresponding item paid by the Transferee

proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

14.3. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company (if required)
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statements, annual accounts, tax returns including but not limited to TDS

Certificates, TDS returns, etc. along with prescribed forms, filings and

annexures under the Income-tax Act, Goods and Service tax and other tax

laws, and to claim refunds and lor credit for taxes paid (including minimum

alternate tax, advance taxes, TDS, etc.), as may be required to give effect to

the provisions of the Scheme.

The relevant authorities shall be bound to transfer to the account of and give

credit for the same to Transferee Company upon the passing of the order on

this Scheme by the Hon 'ble NCLT or any other appropriate authority and

upon relevant proof and documents being provided to the said authorities.

14.4. All tax assessment proceedings I appeals of whatsoever nature by or against

the Transferor Company pending and I or arising at the Appointed Date and

relating to them shall be continued and I or enforced until the Effective Date

by the Transferor Company. As and from the Effective Date, the tax

proceedings shall be continued and enforced by or against the Transferee

Company in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have

been continued and enforced by or against the Transferor Company.

Further, the aforementioned proceedings shall not abate or be discontinued

nor be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation of

the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company or anything

contained in the Scheme.

Any refund under the Tax Laws received by I due to the Transferor Company

consequent to the assessments made on the Transferor Company subsequent

to the Appointed Date and for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, all benefits including

but not limited to benefits relating to Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax etc.,

to which the Transferor Company is entitled in terms of the applicable tax

laws of the Union and State Governments, shall be available to and vest in

the Transferee Company.

14.7. Further, any tax deducted at source by the Transferor Company I the
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Company and the Transferor Company, if any (from Appointed Date to

Effective Date) shall be deemed to be advance tax paid by the Transferee

Company and shall, ill all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

14.8. Upon the coming into effect of this scheme, all tax compliances under any

tax laws by the Transferor Company on or after Appointed Date shall be

deemed to be made by the Transferee Company.

15. COMBINATION AND ENHANCEMENT OF AUTHORISED SHARE

CAPITAL

J 5.1. Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the authorised share capital of the

Transferee Company shall automatically stand increased without any further

act, instrument or deed on the part of the Transferee Company including

payment of stamp duty and fees payable to ROC, by the authorised share

capital of the Transferor Company as on the Effective Date. The Authorised

Share Capital of the Transferee Company stands increased to

INR 32,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Two Crores Only) divided into

16,00,00,000 (Sixteen Crore) equity shares of INR 2/- each and the

Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Transferee

Company (relating to the authorised share capital) shall, without any further

act, instrument or deed, be increased and stand altered, modified and

amended, and the consent of the shareholders of the Transferee Company to

the Scheme (in case dispensation for holding meeting of shareholders of the

~, Transferee Company is not granted)/ the approval of this Scheme by the

I/'~~ ",NCLT (in case dispensation for holding meeting of shareholders of the
I q~ /j-<; *)I ~ 1-~ ansferee Company is granted) shall be deemed to be sufficient for the* >! Reg ~o. 145 V \

~ SALCET" (.') P :rposes of effecting this amendment, and no resolution(s) under Sections
T.\LUKP ~ ;

Q (\~ ~f ....~13,14 and 61 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Section 230 of the Act and
O ~~ "~,,t- '(\IDs o·t \",. ,,"r ' . \" /,other applicable provisions of the Act would be required to be separately

. OF GO~' ,;~~=~--:;:?' passed, as the case may be and for this purpose the stamp duties and fees

paid on the authorised capital of the Transferor Company shall be utilized

and applied to the increased authorised share capital of the Transferee

Company and there would be no requirement for any further payment of

stamp duty and / or fee by the Transferee Company for increase in the

authorised share capital to that extent and the Transferee Company shall pay

the differential fees/ stamp duty, if any, on the enhanced authorised share



the Transferor Company 011 its authorised capital prior to amalgamation.

15.2. It is clarified that the consent of the shareholders of the Transferee Company

to the Scheme (in case dispensation for holding meeting of shareholders of

the Transferee Company is 110t granted)/ the approval of this Scheme by the

NCLT (in case dispensation Jar holding meeting of shareholders of the

Transferee Company is granted) shall be deemed to be the consent of

shareholders of the Transferee Company to the alteration of the. '

Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company as may be required

under the Act, arid Clause V of the Memorandum of Association. of the

Transferee Company shall stand substituted by virtue of the Scheme to read

as follows:

"V) The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR 32,00,00,000

(Rupees Thirty Two Crores Only) divided into 16,00,00,000 (Sixteen Crore)

equity shares of INR 2/- each JJ ,

16. DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

16.1. On and from the Effective Date, the Transferor Company shall stand

dissolved without being wound 'up.

17. By an order dated 12th July 2024 ("Ordcr~') passed in the Company

Application No. 99 of2024, the Hon'ble NCLT allowed the said Application.

To summarize, the following directions regarding issuance of notices to the

equity shareholders and statutory authorities and convening of the meetings

(a) That in view of the consent filed by way of affidavits of all the Equity

Shareholders, the meeting of Equity Shareholders of the Petitioner

Company No.1 for the purpose of considering and if thought fit,

approving with or without modification, the arrangement embodied in

the Scheme of Amalgamation between SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED,

the Transferor Company and SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED,
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the Transferee Company and their respective shareholders IS

dispensed with.

(b) That in view of the fact that the Scheme is an amalgamation between

Petitioner Company No.2 and its wholly owned subsidiary and no

reconstruction or arrangement is contemplated with the shareholders

or creditors of the Petitioner Company No.2, the arrangement

embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation between SYNEGRA EMS

LIMITED, the Transferor Company and SMART LINK HOLDINGS

LIMITED, the Transferee Company and their respective shareholders

was dispensed with. Petitioner Company No.2 was directed to serve

notice to all its Equity shareholders inviting representations, if any, to

be filed within 30 (thirty) days from the date of receipt of such notice

with the Tribunal with a copy to the Petitioner Company No.2, failing

which, it shall be presumed that there are no objections to the

proposed Scheme.

(c) That in view of the consent filed by way of affidavits of all the Secured

Creditors, the meeting of Secured Creditors of Petitioner Company

No.2 for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving with

or without modification, the arrangement embodied in the Scheme of

Amalgamation between SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED, the Transferor

Company and SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED, the Transferee

Company, and their respective shareholders, was dispensed with.

(d) That there are no Secured Creditors of the Petitioner Company No.2.

(e) That in view of the consent filed by way of affidavits 56.29% of the

Unsecured Creditors and no dues certificate of 3 Unsecured Creditors

(43.71%) having been settled, the meeting of Unsecured Creditors of
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thought fit, approving with or without modification, the arrangement

embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation between SYNEGRA EMS

LIMITED, the Transferor Company and SMARTLINK HOLDINGS

LIMITED, the Transferee Company and their respective shareholders

was dispensed with.

(f) The present Scheme is an arrangement between the Petitioner

Company No.2 and its shareholders as contemplated under Section

230(l)(b) and not in accordance with the provisions of Section

230(l)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 as there is no compromise or

arrangement with the unsecured creditors as no sacrifice is calJed for.

The rights of the unsecured creditors will not be affected as all the

unsecured creditors would be paid off in the ordinary course of

business. Accordingly, since there is no compromise or arrangement

with any of the unsecured creditors, the arrangement embodied in the

Scheme of Amalgamation between SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED, the

Transferor Company and SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED, the

Transferee Company and their respective shareholders was dispensed

with. Petitioner Company No.2 was directed to serve notice to all its

Unsecured Creditors inviting representations, if any, to be filed within

30 (thirty) days from the date of receipt of such notice with the

Tribunal with a copy to the Petitioner Company No.2, failing which,

it shall be presumed that there are no objections to the proposed

Scheme.

(g) The Petitioner Companies are also directed to serve notices/

intimations along with copy of scheme upon: - (i) concerned Income

Tax Authorities having Pan No. AAXCS4455K of the Petitioner
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Company No.1 and having Pan No. AAACD5159L of the Petitioner

Company No.2 (along with PAN Number) within whose jurisdiction

the respective Petitioner Company's assessments are made, (ii) the

Central Government through the office of Regional Director, Western

Region (MCA), Mumbai, (iii) the Official Liquidator, Goa Bench (as

applicable to the Transferor Company only), (iv) Registrar of

Companies, Goa and (v) the concerned Nodal Officer in the Income

Tax Department having jurisdiction over such authority (vi) GST

Authorities (vii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (only in the

case of the Petitioner Company No.2) (viii) BSE Limited (only in the

case of Petitioner Company No.2) (ix) National Stock Exchange of

India Limited (only in the case of Petitioner Company No.2) (x)

Reserve Bank of India, Mumbai (xi) Any other Sectoral/Regulatory

Authorities relevant to the Petitioner Companies or their business, and

any other applicable regulatory authority pursuant to Section 230(5)

of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Rule 8 of the Companies

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, with

a direction that they may submit their representations, if any, within a

served upon the Petitioner Companies, failing

be presumed that the authorities have no

representations to make on the proposals embodied in the Scheme.

(h) The Petitioner Companies to file an affidavit of service within 30

working days after serving to notice to all the regulatory authorities as

stated above and do report to this Hon'ble Tribunal that the directions

regarding the issue of notices have been duly complied with.
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A certified copy of the Order dated 12th July, 2024 is annexed herewith as

Exhibit" I".

18. Copy of the acknowledgement of Joint Affidavit of Service of serving filed

with the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench is annexed

herewith as Exhibit "J"

19. As on date of filing this Company Scheme Petition there is no modification in

the Scheme of Amalgamation.

20. The Scheme does not violate, override or circumscribe any provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 or any rules/regulations made thereunder.

21. The Registered Office of the Petitioner Companies are situated in the State of

Goa hence the NCLT, Mumbai Bench has jurisdiction to entertain the present

petition

22. No winding up petition is pending against the Petitioner Companies.

23. No investigation under the Companies Act or reference before the NCLT is

made or pending against the Petitioner Companies.

24. The Petitioner Companies submits that the notice of the hearing of the present

petition be directed to be advertised in the Times of India - Goa Edition in

English Language and Pudhari - Goa in Marathi Language.

25. The Petitioner Company therefore prays:

That the said arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation

(being Exhibit "E" to the Petition) be sanctioned by this Hon'ble

Tribunal with or without modification/s and declare the same to be

binding on the Petitioner Company No.1 its members/shareholders

and the Petitioner Company No.2, its members/shareholders,
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b) That on the Scheme becoming effective, the Petitioner Company

No.1 shall be dissolved without being wound up.

c) That the Petitioner Company do file the certified copy of the order

sanctioning the Scheme of Amalgamation with the Registrar of

Companies, Goa, and be directed to consolidate all files, documents,

records relating to the Petitioner Company No.1 with the files,

documents, and records of the Petitioner Company No.2

d) That liberty be reserved to the Petitioner Company No.1 and 2 and all

other persons interested in this Petition to apply to this Hon'ble

Tribunal herein as and when occasion may arise for any direction that

may be necessary.

e) For such further or other orders as may be made in premises as the

Court shall deem fit.

f) Cost of the Petition be provided for

Petition Drawn by us

Mr. Karkala Guruprasad Prabhu

Authorised Signatory

Authorised Signatory

(SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED)



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,

MUMBAI BENCH

COMP ANY SCHEME PETITION NO, OF 2024

IN

COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO, 99 OF 2024.

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 20 13).
AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 2:12 of the Companies Act,

2013 along with other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under as in

force from time to time;

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation between

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED ("SEL" or the "Transferor

Company") and SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

("SHL" or the "Transferee Company"), and their respective

shareholders

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED ("SEL"), a public )

limited company incorporated under the )

Companies Act, 2013 having its registered )

office at Plot No. L-5A, Verna Industrial )

Estate, Verna, South Goa, Salcette, Goa, India )

- 403722 ) ... Petitioner Company No. II

Transferor Company

. HOLDINGS LIMITED)

)

)

)



having its registered office at L-7, Vema )

Industrial Estate, Vema, Salcete, Goa, India - )

403722 ) ... Petitioner Company No.2/

Transferee Company

To,
The Registrar
NCL T (Mumbai Bench)
Mumbai.

Sir,

We, SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED, the Petitioner Company No.1 and SMARTLfNK

HOLDINGS LIMITED, the Petitioner Company No.2 above named, do hereby

appoint MIS. RAIESH SHAH & CO, Advocates, National Company Law Tribunal

to act, appear and plead on our behalf.

In WITNESS WHEREOF WE have set and subscribed our hand to this

writing on this day of August, 2024.

WITNESS:

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

Authorised Signatory

Petitioner Company No.1

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Authorised Signatory

Petitioner Company No.2



FOR RAJESH SHAH & CO.

~ ~L St__J
Advocatdfor the Petitioner.

Kamer Building, Office No. 33,

38, Cawasji Patel Street, Opp. Vardhman Chambers,

Fort, Mumbai - 400001

O.S.Regn. No. 2488

Enrolment No. rv1AH/9831l978
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LA'll TRIBUNAL,

MUMBAI BENCH

COMPANY SCHEME PETITION NO. OF 2024

IN

COMP ANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 99 OF 2024.

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of2013);

AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013

along with other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

and Rules framed there under as in force from time to time;

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation between SYNEGRA

EMS LIMITED ("SEL" or the "Transferor Company") and

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED ("SHL" or the

"Transferee Company"), and their respective shareholders.

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED,

Petitioner Company No. 1/

Transferor Company.

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Petitioner Company No.2/

Transferee Company

VAKALATNAMA
Dated this day of August, 2024.

M/S RAJESH SHAH & CO.
Advocates for the Petitioner
Kamer Building, Office No. 33,
38, Cawasji Patel Street,
Opp. Vardhman Chambers,
Fort, Mumbai - 400001



GOVERNMENT OF INDIA
MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS

Central Registration Centre

Certificate of Incorporation

[pursuant to sub-section (2) of section 7 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 8 the Companies (Incorporation)
Rules, 2014]

I hereby certify that SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED is incorporated on this Seventeenth day of August Two thousand sixteen under
the Companies Act, 2013 and that the company is limited by shares.

The CIN ofthe company is U31909GA2016PLC012969.

Given under my hand at Manesar this Seventeenth day of August Two thousand sixteen.

S Ministry or fl.:r::=;-..;:
Corporate Affa1rs· :..=-~::,,;;:._
Govt of tndia) 14" ;:;'=:':-.:':;---

ALOKTANDON

Central Registration Centre

For and on behalf of the Jurisdictional Registrar of Companies

Mailing Address as per record available in Registrar of Companies office:

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

L-5, V.I.E" VERNA INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, VERNA SALCETIE, South Goa,
Goa, India, 403722



INCORPORATED UNDER

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

OF

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

I. The name of the company is SYNEORA EMS LIMITED.

II. The Registered state of the company will be situated in the state of Ooa.

III.The objects for which the company is established are:

A. THE MAIN OBJECTS OF THE COMPANY TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY
ON ITS INCORPORATION ARE:

1. To carry on the business of manufacturers, importers, exporters, dealers, traders, consignors,
consignees, mercantile agents, manufacturers' representative, stockists, distributors,
developers, and/or otherwise deal in electronic, telecommunication and electrical
components, spare parts, assemblies, instruments, devices, appliances, equipments, computers
hardware, software and peripherals of all kinds and description. and/or otherwise deal in
things used in connection with manufacturing, assembling and working of electronic,
telecommunication and electrical products, systems and/or their components, including, but
Dotlimited to, the following: (a) computing and storage equipment, networking equipment (b)
Structured Cabling products (c) telecommunications equipment,; (d) consumer electronic
products; (e) electronic systems, (f) industrial electronic products and (g) other electronics
equipment and products, including electronic medical products and devices and providing all
types of services in the electronics sector, including supply chain related, product design
and/or post manufacturing services such as (a) product design, (b) collaborative design, (c)
product launch or New Product Introduction (NPl); (d) DFX (Design for manufacturability)
services; (e) Printed Circuit Board Assembly (PCBA) and subsystem manufacturing; (f)
systems integration and test; (g) parts management; (h) inventory management; (i)
forward/reverse logistics; (j) repair services; (k) recovery / remarketing; (1) warranty support
for electronics products; and (m) feedback to design and manufacturing for
quality/serviceability.

B. MATTERS WHICH ARE NECESSARY FOR FURTHERANCE OF THE OBJECTS
SPECIFIED IN CLAUSE III(A)(l) ARE:
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2, To render advisory and consultancy services in respect of know-how, design, manufacture,
installation, maintenance of the products covered under the main objects.

3. To sub-let all or any contract from time to time and upon such terms and conditions as may be
thought expedient.

4. To collaborate with foreign firm for acquiring or offering technical know-how, to employ
experts including foreign technicians, to engage consultant, engineers, workmen, bankers,
solicitors, advocates, insurers, advertisers, selling and buying agents and others as found
expedient and in the interest of Company's business.

5. To expend money in experimenting upon, testing, improving and protecting any process or
processes, copy-rights, patent or patents, designs, which the Company may acquire or
propose to acquire or deal with.

6. To establish, provide, maintain and conduct or otherwise subsidize research laboratories and
experimental workshops, to carry on research and development in chemical plants, analytical
laboratories and to carry on scientific and technical researches, experiments and test of all
kinds and to do market research and market survey.

7. To purchase or by any other means acquire and protect, prolong and renew, any trademarks,
patents, rights, brevets-d' inventions, protections and concessions which may appear likely to
be advantageous or useful to the Company and to use and tum to account and to manufacture
under or grant licenses or privileges in respect of the same and to spend money in
experimenting upon testing and improving or seeking to improve any patents, Inventions or
rights which the Company may acquire or propose to acquire.

8. To act as Contractors or sub-contractors, to any State or Central Government, Railways, Port
Trust, Municipal Corporations or Municipalities, or District Local Boards, Civil and Military
Authorities and any other person, firm or corporation whether Indian or foreign for any
purposes whatsoever and to guarantee the performance of any contracts, sub-contracts,
licenses and concessions for or in relations to the objects, or business herein mentioned or any
of them and to undertake, execute, carry out, dispose off or otherwise tum to account the
same.

9. To enter into arrangements with any Government, Railway, Municipal or Local Authorities or
other persons or firms which may seem conducive to the attainment of any of the Company's
objects and to obtain from any such Government, Railway, Municipal or Local Authority or
other persons or firms any rights, privileges and concessions which the Company may think
beneficial, to obtain and to carry out exercise or comply with any such arrangements, rights,
privileges, and concessions of the Company.

10. To obtain Order or Act of Legislature or Parliament for enabling the Company to obtain all
powers and authorities necessary or expedient, to carry out to extent any of the objects of the
Company or for any other purpose which may seem expedient and to oppose any proceedings
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on applications which seem calculated directly or indirectly to prejudice the Company's
interest. .

11. To amalgamate, enter into partnership or any arrangement for sharing of profits, union of
interests, co-operation, joint venture, reciprocal concession or otherwise, with any person,
firm or company carrying on or engaged in or about to carryon.

12. To take or otherwise acquire and hold shares in any other company having objects all together
or in part similar to those of this Company.

13. To promote any company or companies for the purpose of acquiring all or any of the property,
rights and liabilities of this Company.

14. To develop and to turn to account any lands of the Company, whether acquired by purchase 01'

taken on lease, by repairing building sites and by constructing, reconstructing, altering,
improving and maintaining offices, flats, houses, factories, warehouses, shops, buildings,
works, and conveniences of all kinds and by consolidating or sub-dividing properties and by
leasing and disposing of the same to manage lands, buildings and properties as aforesaid
whether belonging to the companies or not and to others who may be willing to build on or
improve land or buildings in which Company is interested and generally to advance money to
such persons on such terms as may be arranged.

15. To purchase or otherwise acquire, take on lease, sell, exchange, surrender, mortgage, charge,
convert, tum to account, dispose of, let on hire and deal with property and in particular
mortgages, charges, hypothecations, debentures, concessions, options, contracts, patents,
trademarks, trade names and copy rights, stocks, shares, bonds, policies, book debts; business
concerns and undertakings, claims, privilege and choose in action of kind; machinery, plants,
stock-in-trade and any moveable and immovable property.

16. To acquire, erect, construct, lay down, enlarge, alter and maintain any buildings works,
workshops, plant and machinery necessary or convenient for the Company's business.

17. To plan design and construct offices and commercial undertakings of any kind for and on
behalf of the Company.

18. To sell, or dispose off the property or undertaking of the Company or any part thereof for
such consideration as the Company may think fit, and in particular for shares, debentures or
securities of any other company, having objects altogether or in part similar to those of the
Company.

19. To sell, improve, manage, develop, exchange, lease, mortgage, enfranchise, dispose of, turn to
account or otherwise deal with all or any part of the property and the rights of the Company.
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20. To pay for any properties or rights acquired by the Company, whether in cash or fully paid up
shares or partly in one and partly in the other and generally on such terms as the Company
may deem fit.

21. To sell or let out on hire, all or any of the property of the Company whether immoveable or
moveable including all and every description of apparatus or appliances and to hold, use
cultivate, work, manage, improve, carry on and develop, and undertake land and immoveable
and moveable property and assets of any kind of the Company or any part thereof.

22. To distribute any of the Company's property among the members in specie in the event of
winding up subject to Companies Act,.2013.

23. To grant leases or licenses in respect of land, buildings and tenements with or without
furniture therein.

24. To acquire and take over any business or undertaking carried on upon or in connection with
any land or building which the Company may desire to acquire as aforesaid or otherwise or
become interested in, and the whole or any of the assets and liabilities of such business or
undertakings and to carry on the same or to dispose of, remove, or put an end thereto or
otherwise deal with the same as may seem expedient.

25. To open an account or accounts with any person, firm or company or with any bank or banks
and to pay into and to withdraw money from such account or accounts.

26. To draw, make, accept, endorse, discount, execute, issue, negotiate assign and otherwise deal
in cheques, drafts, promissory notes, bills of exchange, hundies debentures bonds, bills of
lading, railway receipts, warrants and all other negotiable or transferable instruments ..

27. To pay any rights or properties acquired by the Company, to acquire any shares, stocks,
debentures, debenture-stock, bonds, obligations or securities by original subscription, tender,
purchase, exchange or otherwise, and to subscribe for the same, either conditionally or
otherwise, and to guarantee the subscription thereof and to execute and enforce all rights and
powers conferred by or incidental to the ownership thereof.

28. To issue all or any part of the capital, whether preference or equity shares of the Company at
par or at a premium or at a discount and as fully or partly paid for cash or for consideration
other than cash or as bonus shares.

29. To borrow or raise or secure the payment of money, or to receive money on deposit at
interest, for any of the purposes of the Company on such terms and at such time or times and
in such manner as may be thought fit and in particular by the issue at par or at a premium or a
discount of debentures or debenture-stock, perpetual or otherwise including debentures or
debenture-stock, convertible into shares of this or any other company or perpetual annuities
and as securities for any such money so borrowed, raised, or received or of any such
debentures or debenture-stock so issued, to mortgage, pledge or charge the whole or any part
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of the property, assets or revenue or profits of the Company, present and future, including its
uncalled capital by special assignment or otherwise, or to transfer or convey the same
absolutely or in trust, and to give the lenders power of sale and other powers as may seem
expedient, and to purchase redeem or payoff any such securities.

30. To advance money to any such persons and on such terms as may seem expedient and in
particular to members of the staff, customers, and other having dealing with the Company und
to guarantee performance of the contract by any such person subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

31 .To invest or deal with the monies of the Company not immediately required, in such manner
as may from to time be determined.

32. To create any reserve fund, sinking fund, insurance fund or any other special fund whether for
depreciation, repairing, maintaining, improving or extending any of the property of the
Company or of any other purpose conducive to the interests of the Company.

33 .To distribute as bonus shares among the members or to place to reserve or otherwise to apply
as the Company may from time to time think fit and as Companies Act, 2013 may permit any
monies received by way of premium on shares or debentures in respect of forfeited shares and
monies arising from the sale by the Company of forfeited shares.

34. To payout of the funds of the Company, all costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to
the formation, registration, advertisement and establishment of the Company and issue and
subscription of the shares, for the shares, or loan, capital, including brokerage, commission
for obtaining application for or placing or guaranteeing the placing of shares or any
debenture-stock and other securities of this Company and also all expenses attendant to the
issue of any circular or notice and the printing, stamping, circulating of proxies and forms to
be filled up by the members of the Company.

35. To procure the incorporation or registration or other recognition of the Company and to carry
on business in any country, state or place and to take such steps as may be necessary to give
the Company such rights and privileges in any part of the world as are possessed by local
companies or partnerships or as may be through desirable.

36. To guarantee or become liable for the payment of money, trust, agency, performance of any
obligation and generally to transact all kinds of guarantee, trust or agency business.

"\

37. To make advances of such sum or sums of money in respect of or for the purchase of
materials, goods, machinery, stores or any other property, articles and things, required for the
purposes of the Company upon such terms with or without security as the Company m~
deem expedient.
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43. To do the above things in any part of the world either alone or in conjunction with other and
either as principals, agents, correspondents, contractors, trustees or otherwise and to allow
any property to remain outstanding with such agents or trustees and do all such other things
as are incidental or may be thought conducive of the attainment of the above objects.

38. To subscribe or otherwise establish trusts, to assist or to guarantee charitable, benevolent
religious, cultural, scientific, public or other institutions, clubs, societies or funds in
accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

39. To accept upon suitable remuneration or otherwise apprentices for the purpose of being
trained in the business with a view to their subsequent employment by the Company or
otherwise.

40. To train or pay for the training in India or abroad of any of the Company's employees or any
candidates in the interest or for furtherance of Company's object.

41. To remunerate any person, firm or company rendering services to this Company either by
cash payment or by allotment to him or them of shares or securities of the Company credited
as paid up in full or in part or otherwise as may be thought expedient.

42. To establish and maintain or procure the establishment and maintenance of any provident
fund, any contributory pension or superannuation funds, gratuity schemes for the benefit of
and give or procure the giving of donations, gratuities, pensions, allowances or emoluments
to any persons or persons who are or were at any time in the employment or services of the
Company, of any company which is a subsidiary of the Company or who are or were at any
time directors or officers of the Company or of any such company as aforesaid and the wives,
widows, families and dependants or any such persons and also establish and subsidies and
subscribe to any institution, association, clubs or funds calculated to be for the Company or of
any such company as aforesaid and make payments to or towards insurances of any such
person as aforesaid and to do any matters as aforesaid either alone or in conjunction with any
such other company as aforesaid.

IV. The liability of the member(s) is limited and this liability is limited to the amount unpaid, if
any, on the shares held by them.

V. The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five
~ , Crores only) divided into 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
~ (Rupees Ten only) each.'
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.w,e. the several pers~: wh~~;'~~~:addr~;~es are subscribed. are desirous of being fonned into a Company In
pursuance to this MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION and we respectively agree to take the number of sluuos In tho
Capital of the Company set against our respective names :-

Names, addresses, descriptions and occupations of No. of shares taken by Signature of subscriber

StIbscribers each subscriber

S:marfiink Network Systell'lS Limited
Plot no: L-7, Vetrul,Ind.&bJte"Vem~,
Salcette, Goa - 403722
THROUGH
U rjita Vinayak Damle, Company Secretary,
D/0 Vinayak 'Gajanan Damle
MCf5, Goa Observatory Quarters, Altino Panaji,
Goa - 403001.
Occupation - SerVice

99.994 Equity Shares
(Ninety Nine Thousand
Nine Hundred & Ninety
'Four)

Karkala Guruprasad Prabhu
SjoNarasimha Karkala Prabhu
Plot 26-A., Behind Durga Petrol Pump, Fatorda

•_ Occupation - Service
.~<.,. Nominee of

~~,.;. Sinartlink Network Sys,tims LiIillted
~f.':!il-Plot no: L-7, Verna Ind.Eslal:e. Verna,
";'-V,1 'Salcette Goa - 403722~;i--' ,

.,\ ..... tI- '.... ';.

.~~~'~N~.1, ... ~ .... "

:I~W" . ,;;:.
•• ,. ;4

1Equity Share
(One)

(
"

, Vishnudas Purushottam Naikparsekar
'Sf o.Purushottam Naikparsekar
H. No. 872>/V, Mugalli.
Occupation - Service
Nominee of
Smartlink Network Systems Limited
Plot no: L-7, Vema Ind.Estate, Vema,
Salcette, Goa - 403722

1 Equity:Share
(One)

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Signature, nntno~,

addresses, do~orlptlollS
and occupntiona of
witnesses.
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subscribers

--------------------~~--------_T------------~r_--------~~,.'
Names, addresses, descriptions and occupations of No. of shares taken by Signature of subscriber

Prashant Narayan Nayak
5/0. Narayan Krishna Nayak
5-1, Prime Monarch, Adarsh Nag8, Chicalim,
Marmugao Goa - 403711
'Occupation' - Service
Nominee of
Smnrtilnk Network Systems Limited
Plot no: L-7, Verna Ind.Estate, Verna,
Snlcette, Goa - 403722

YIJay Gopalkrishna Rane
510 Gopalkrishna Rane
Flat No.406,Yasflnt Arcade, Comba Margno Goa.
Occupatlon- Service
NoO)i!lIlAOf

Smurtlink Network Systems Limited
Plot IlU: t.7, YI:!I'1Il1 Jml.~lt111:!,Vl:!rJllt,
Snlcette, Goo - 403722

'.
"

Rajesh Yeshwant Prabhu
510 Yeshwant Trlvikmm Prabhu
R050del Enclave, F. No. P-6, Bldg A, 101 Floor, M~rgao,
GOD r

Occupation - Service
NU!llIIl~ o(

Smartlink Network Systems Limited
Plot no: L-7, Verna Ind:Estate, Verna,
Sqlcette, Goa - 403722

, Darshan Raghunath l<arekar
510 Raghunath Rajaram l<arekar
60/10, Khorltm, Nr. S.K. TaUor, Mapusa,'Goa - 4035117
Occupation - Service
Nominee of

Smartlink Network Systems Limited
Plot no: L-7, Vema rnd.Estate, Verna,
Snlcette, Goa - 403722

each subscriber

1 Equity Share
(One)

1 EquitY. Share
(One) .'

1 Equity Share
(One)

1 Equity Share
(One)

..'

,:

TOTAL 1,00,000(One Lakh) .

Signature, nRIl1G8,' •

addresses, dosorlptlolls
and oOCUJ)t'ltiOIlB of

SdI-
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COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

INCORPORATED UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT', 2013

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

1. No regulations contained in Table F, in the Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, Table F not to apply
or in the Schedule to any previous Companies Act, shall apply to this Company, but Company to be
but the regulations for the management of the Company and for the observance of governed by these
the Members thereof and their representatives, shall, subject to any exercise of the Articles
statutory powers of the Company with reference to the repeal or alteration of, or
addition to, its regulations by Special Resolution, as prescribed by the said
Companies Act, 2013, be such as are contained in these Articles.

INTERPRETATION
2. In the interpretation of these Articles, unless repugnant to the subject or Interpretation

context- clause

"The Company" or "this Company" means SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED "The Company"

"The Act" means "The Companies Act, 2013" or any statutory, modification or re- "The Act"
enactment thereof for the time being in force and certain sections of the
Companies Act, 1956 which are not repealed and for the time being in force.

"Board of Directors" or "Board", in relation to a company, means the collective "The Board of

body of the directors of the company. Directors" or "The
Board"

"Director" means a director for the time being of the Company Director

"Articles" means these articles of association of the Company or as altered "AOA"

from time to time.

"In Writing" and "Written" include printing, lithography and other modes of "In Writing" and

representing or reproducing words in a visible form, "Written"

"Rules" means the applicable rules for the time being in force as prescribed " Rules"
under rel evant sections of the Act.

"Seal" means the Common Seal for the time being of the Company. "Seal"

Words importing the singular number include, where the context admits or requires, "Number" and

the plural number and vice versa and words importing the masculine gender also "Gender"

include the feminine gender

The marginal notes used in these Articles shall not affect the construction "Marginal Notes"

thereof

Save as aforesaid, any words or expressions defined in the Act shall, if not Expressions ··"~in the.'", ,,:~- .'. -, :: "-

inconsistent with the subject or context, bear the same meaning in these Articles' ,tb 'bear::::tbe
. .. .... .' ..\\

Articles. same meaning as: in
the Act \ ....,

.
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<:\ ~,I ~ \ ~ ~ fJ>ITAL AND INCREASE

~ {~t?JJIREDUCTION OF CAPITAL

Power to alter share
capital

3. The AuthoriZ:~~~e Capital of the Company is Rs. 25,00,00,0001- (Rupees
Twenty-Five Crores Only) divided into 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty Lakhs)
Equity Shares ofRs. 101- (Rupees Ten only) each.'

Authorised Capital

4. Restriction on
Allotment

(a) The Directors shall ill making the allotments duly observe the
provisions of'the Act.

(b) Nothing herein contained shall prevent the Directors from issuing fully paid-
up shares either on payment of the entire nominal value thereof in cash or
in satisfaction of any outstanding debt or obi igation of the Company.

5,

6.

Shares under Control
of Board.

(a) Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the shares in the
capital of the Company for the time being (including any shares
forming part of any increased capital of the Company) shall be under
the control of the Board who may allot the same or any of them to such
persons, in such proportion and on such terms and conditions and either
at a premium or at par and at such terms as they may, from time to
time, think fit.

(b) Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the Board may
issue and allot shares in the capital of the Company on payment or part
payment for any property or assets of any kind whatsoever sold or
transferred, goods or machinery supplied or for services rendered to the
Company in the conduct of its business and any shares which may be so
allotted may be issued as fully paid-up or partly paid-up otherwise than
for cash, and if so issued, shall be deemed to be fully paid-up or partly
paid-up shares, as the case may be.

Directors may allot
shares otherwise than
for cash.

Except so far as otherwise provided by the conditions of issue or by these
presents, any capital raised by the creation of new shares shall be considered as
part of the existing capital and shall be subject to the provisions herein
contained, with reference to the payment of calls and installments, forfeiture,
lien surrender, transfer transmission, voting and otherwise.

New capital same
as existing capital

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

7. Subject to the provisions of the Act and the Rules the Company may,
(a) increase the share capital by such sum, to be divided into shares of such

amount as it thinks expedient;
(b) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger

amount than its existing shares; Provided that any consolidation and

I Amended by way of Special Resolution at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting:
held on 16th September, 2016, the Authorised Capital was increased to Rs.l,OO,OO,OOO/-

held on 27th October, 20 I6, the Authorised Capital was increased to RsA,50,00,000/-

held on 051h March, 2022, the Authorised Capital was increased to Rs.15,00,00,000/- ~

held on 14'h February, 2023, the Authorised Capital was increased to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- /",
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9.

SHARES AND CERTIFICATES

Issue of new
certificate in place of
one defaced, lost or
destroyed

division which results in changes in the voting percentage of members shall
require applicable approvals under the Act;

(c) convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert
that stock into fully paid-up shares of any denomination;

(d) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller amount
than is fixed by the memorandum;

(e) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have
not been taken or agreed to be taken by anv person.

8. The Company may, by resolution as prescribed by the Act, reduce in any Reduction of capital
manner and in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Rules, -
(a) its share capital; and/or
(b) any capital redemption reserve account; and/or
(c) any securities premium account; and/or

(d) any other reserve in the nature of share capital.

(1) Every person whose name is entered as a member in the register of Issue of certificate
members shall be entitled to receive within two months after allotment Of

within one month from the date of receipt by the Company of the
application for the registration of transfer or transmission or within such
other period as the terms of issue shall provide-
(a) one certificate for all his shares without payment of any charges; or
(b) several certificates, each for one or more of his shares, upon payment of

such charges as may be fixed by the Board for each pertificate after the
first.

(2) Every certificate shan be under the seal and shall specify the shares to
which it relates and the amount paid-up thereon.

(3) In respect of any share or shares held jointly by several persons, the
Company shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate, and delivery
of a certificate for a share to one of several joint holders shall be sufficient
delivery to all such holders.

Certificate to bear
seal
One certificate for
shares held jointly

10. A person subscribing to shares offered by the Company shall have the option
either to receive certificates for such shares or hold the shares In a
dematerialized state with a depository. Where a person opts to hold any share
with the depository, the Company shall intimate such depository the details
of allotment of the share to enable the depository to enter in its records the
name of such person as the beneficial owner of that share.

Option to receive
share certificate or
hold shares with
depository

11. If any share certificate be worn out, defaced, mutilated or tom or if there be no
further space on the back for endorsement of transfer, then upon production
and surrender thereof to the Company, a new certificate may be issued in
lieu thereof, and if any certificate is lost or destroyed then upon proof thereof
to the satisfaction of the Company and on execution of such indemnity as the
Board deems adequate, a new certificate in lieu thereof shall be given. Every
certificate under this Article shall be issued on payment of fees for each
certificate as may be fixed by the Board.
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12.

13,

(3) The commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the allotment Mode of payment in
offully or partly paid shares or partly in the one way and partly in the other commission

The provisions of the foregoing Articles relating to issue of certificates shall
mutatis mutandis apply to issue of certificates for any other securities (except
where the Act otherwise requires) of the Company.

(I) The Company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred
by the Act, to any person in connection with the subscription to its
securities, provided that the rate percent or the amount of the commission
paid or agreed to be paid shall be disclosed in the manner required by the
Act and the Rules.

(2) The rate or amount of the commission shall not exceed the rate or amount
prescribed in the Rules

Provisions as to issue
of certificates to
apply mutatis
mutandis to any other
securities etc.
Power to pay
commission in
connection with
securities issued

Rate of commission
in accordance with
Rules

I,
i

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

(2) A further issue of shares may be made in any manner whatsoever as the Mode of further issue
Board may determine including by way of preferential offer or private of shares.
placement, subject to and in accordance with the Act and the Rules

The Board may, from time to time, subject to the terms on which any shares may Directors may make
have been issued and subject to the conditions of allotment, by a resolution calls
passed at a meeting of the Board (and not by circular resolution) make such call as
it thinks fit upon the Members in respect of all moneys unpaid on the shares held
by them respectively and each Member shan pay the amount of every call so made
on him to the person or persons and at the time and place appointed by the
Board. A call may be made payable by installments.
Fourteen days notice in writing of any call shall be given by the Company Notice of calls
specifying the time and place of payment, and the person or persons to whom
such call shall be paid.
A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution Calls to date from
authorising such call was passed at a meeting of the Board. resolution

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board shall have the power to issue or
re-issue preference shares of one or more cLasses which are liable to be
redeemed, or converted to equity shares, on such terms and conditions and in
such manner as determined by the Board in accordance with the Act.
OrThe Board or the Company, as the case may be, may, in accordance with

the Act and the Rules, issue further shares to -
(a) persons who, at the date of offer, are holders of equity shares of the

Company; such offer shall be deemed to include a right exercisable by
the person concerned to renounce the shares offered to him or any of
them in favour of any other person; or

(b)employees under any scheme of employees) stock option; or
(c)any persons, whether or not those persons include the persons referred to

in clause (a) or clause (b) above.

CALLS
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19.

The joint-holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in
respect thereof.

A. call may be revoked or postponed at the discretion of the Board. Call may be revoked
or postponed ~_~
Liability of joint-
holders

20.

The Board may, from time to time at its discretion, extend the time fixed for the
payment of any call, and may extend such time as to all or any of the Members
who from residence at a distance or other cause the Board may deem fairly
entitled to such extension but no member shalt be entitled to such extention save
as a matter of grace and favour.-------+~~~~~~~~~~=-----------------------------~---+-----------~----
If any Member fails to pay any calJ due from him on the day appointed for Non-payment of
payment thereof, or any such extension thereof as aforesaid, he shall be liable to Calls on time to
pay interest on the same from the day appointed for the payment thereof to the carry interest
time of actual payment at such rate as shall from time to time be fixed by the Board
not exceeding 10 per cent per annum or at such lower rate, if any, as the Board may
determine.

I

21.

22.

Directors may
extend time

!
I

I
I
I
I
t

I
i
I,

I

23. Any sum, which by the terms of issue of a share becomes payable on
allotment or at any fixed date, whether on account of the nominal value of the share
or by way of premium, shall for the purposes of these Articles be deemed to be a
call duly made and payable on the date on which by the terms of issue the same
becomes payable. In case of non-payment of such sum, all the relevant provisions
of these Articles as to payment of interest and expenses, forfeiture or otherwise,
shall apply as if such sum had become payable by virtue of a call duly made and
notified.

24. On the trial or hearing of any action or suit brought by the company against any
Member or his representatives for the recovery, of any money claimed to be due to
the Company in respect of his shares, it shall be sufficient to prove that the name
of the Member in respect of whose sbares the money is sought to be recovered
appears entered on the Register of Members as the holder at or subsequent to the
date at which the money sought to be recovered is alleged to have become due on
the shares in respect of which such money is sought to be recovered; that the
resolution making the call is duly recorded in the Minute Book; and that notice of
such call was duly given to the Members or his representatives sued in pursuance
of these Articles and that it shall not be necessary to prove the appointment of the
Directors who made such call nor that a quorum of Directors was present at the
Board at which any call was made, nor that the meeting at which any call was
made was duly convened or constituted nor any other matters whatsoever, hut the
]:)roof of the matters aforesaid shall be conclusive of the debt

25. Neither the receipt by the Company of a portion of any money which shall from
time to time be due from any Member to the Company in respect of his shares,
either by way of principal or interest, nor any indulgence granted by the Company in
respect of the payment of any such money, shall preclude the Company from
thereafter proceeding to enforce a forfeiture of such shares as hereinafter provided.

26. a)The Board may, if it thinks fit, agree to and receive from any Member
willing to advance the same all or any part of the amounts of his shares
beyond the sums actually called up; and upon the money so paid in advance, or
upon so much thereof: from time to time, and at any time thereafter as exceeds
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the amount of the calls then made upon and due in respect of the shares on
account of which such advances are made, the Board may payor allow
interest, at such rate (not exceeding without the sanction of the Company in
General Meeting 12 per cent per annum) as the Member paying the sum in
advance and the Board agree upon.

b) No Member paying any such sum in advance shall be entitled to voting
rights in respect of the moneys so paid by him until the same would but for
such payment become presently payable and shan it confer a right to
dividend or participate in profits.

LIEN
27. 1.The Company shall have a first and paramount lien -

(a) on every share (not being a fully paid share), for all monies (whether
presently payable or not) called, or payable at a fixed time, in respect of
that share; and

(b) on all shares (not being fully paid shares) standing registered in the name
of a member, for all monies presently payable by him or his estate to the
Company:
Provided that the Board may at any time declare any share to be wholly
or in part exempt from the provisions of this clause.

2. The Company's lien, if any, on a share shall extend to all dividends or
interest, as the case may be, payable and bonuses declared from time to
time in respect of such shares for any money owing to the Company.

3. Unless otherwise agreed by the Board, the registration of a transfer of shares
shall operate as a waiver of the Company's lien.

Company's
Lien on shares

Lien to extend to
dividends, etc

Waiver of lien 10

case of registration
28. The Company may sell, in such manner as the Board thinks fit, any shares on which

the Company has a lien:
Provided that no sale shall be made--
(a) unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently

payable; or
(b) until the expiration offourteen days after a notice inwriting stating

and demanding payment of such part of the amount in respect of
which the lien exists as is presently payable, has been given to the
registered holder for the time being of the share or to the person
entitled thereto by reason of his death or insolvency or otherwise.

As to enforcing Hen
by sale.

29.

3) The receipt of the Company for the consideration (if any) given for the share
on the sale thereof shall (subject, if necessary, to execution of an instrument
of transfer or a transfer by relevant system, as the case may-be) constitute a
good title to the share and the purchaser shall be registered as the holder of
the share. Purchaser not

4) The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase affected
money, nor shall his title to the shares be affected by any irregularity or

1) To give effect to any such sale, the Board may authorise some person to
transfer the shares sold to the purchaser thereof.

2) The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares comprised in any
such transfer.
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invalidity in the proceedings with reference to the sale --=..._-
30. (1) The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the Company and applied in Application of

payment of such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is proceeds of sale
presently payable.

(2) The residue, if any, shall, subject to a like lien for sums not presently payable as Payment of residual
existed upon the shares before the sale, be paid to the person entitled to the money
shares at the date of the sale.

31. The provisions of these Articles relating to lien shall mutatis mutandis apply Provisions as
10 any other securities of the Company, if any to lien to apply

mutatis mutandis to
any other securities
etc.

FORFEITURE OF SHARES
32. If a Member fails to pay any call or installment of a call on or before the day If money payable on

sppointed for the payment of the same or any such extension thereof as aforesaid, share 110t paid,
Ibe Board may at any time thereafter, during such time as the cal1 or installment notice to be given to
remains unpaid, give notice to him requiring him to pay the same together with any Member
interest that may have accrued and all expenses that may have been incurred by the
Company by reason of such non-payment.

33. The notice shall name a day (not being less than fourteen days from the date of the Terms of Notice
notice) and a place or places on and at which such call or installment and such
interest thereon at such rate as the Directors shall determine from the day on
which such call or installment ought to have been paid and expenses as
aforesaid are to be paid. The notice shall also state that, in the event of the non-
payment at or before the time and at the place appointed, the shares in respect of
which the call was made or installment is payable will be liable to be forfeited.

34. If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid shall not be complied with, In default of
every or any share in respect of which such notice has been given may at any time payment shares to
thereafter before payment of all calls or installment, interest and expenses due in be forfeited
respect thereof, be forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that effect. Such
forfeiture shall include all dividends declared or any other moneys payable in
res~ of the forfeited share and not actually paid before the forfeiture.

35. When any share shall have been so forfeited, notice of the forfeiture shall be Notice of forfeiture

given to the Member in whose name it stood immediately prior to the forfeiture to a

and an entry of the forfeiture, with the date thereof, shall forthwith be made in the Member

Register of Members, but no forfeiture shall be in any manner invalidated by
any omission or neglect to give such notice or to make any such entry as
aforesaid.

36. Any share so forfeited shall be deemed to be the property of the Company and may Forfeited shares
be sold, re-allotted, or otherwise disposed of, either to the original holder thereof or to to be property of
any other person, upon such terms and in such manner as the Board shall think fit. the Company and

may be sold etc.

37. Any member whose shares have been forfeited shall, notwithstanding the Member still liable
forfeiture, be liable to pay and shall forthwith pay to the Company on demand all to pay money owing
calls, instalhnent, interest and expenses owing upon or in respect of such shares at at time of forfeiture
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the time of the forfeiture, together with interest thereon from the time of the and interest
forfeiture, until payment at such rate as the Board may determine and the board
may enforce the payment thereof if it thinks fit.

38. The forfeiture of a share shall involve extinction, at the time of the forfeiture of all Effect of forfeiture
interest in and all claims and demands, against the Company, in respect of the shares
and all other rights incidental to the share, except only such of those rights as by
these Articles are expressly saved.

39. A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a Director or Secretary of Evidence of
the Company and that a share in the Company has been duly forfeited in forfeiture
accordance with these Articles on a date stated in the declaration shall be
conclusive evidence of the facts therein stated as against all persons claiming to be
entitled to the shares.

40. Upon any sale after forfeiture or for enforcing a lien in purported exercise of the Validity of sale
powers herein before given, the Board may appoint some person to execute an
instrument of transfer of the shares sold and cause the purchaser's name to be
entered in the Register in respect of the shares sold, and the purchaser shall not be
bound to see to the regularity of the proceedings or to the application of the
purchase money, and after his name has been entered in the Register in respect of
such shares the validity of the sale shall not be impeached by any person and the
remedy of any person aggrieved by the sale shall be in damages only and
against the Company exclusively.

41. Upon any sale, re-allotment or other disposal under the provisions of the Cancellation of share
preceding Articles, the certificate or certificates originally issued in respect of the certificates in respect
relative shares shall (unless the same shall on demand by the Company have of forfeited shares
been previously surrendered to it by the defaulting Member) stand can-celled and
become null and void and of no effect, and the Directors shall be entitled to issue
a new certificate or certificates in respect of the said shares to the person or
persons entitled thereto.

42. The Board may at any time before any share so forfeited shall have been sold, re- Power to annul
allotted or otherwise disposed of, annul the forfeiture thereof upon such conditions forfeiture
as it thinks fit.

43. The provisions of these Articles relating to forfeiture of shares shall mutatis Provisions as to
mutandis apply to any other securities of the Company. forfeiture of shares to

apply mutatis
mutandis to any other
securities, etc.

TRANSFER OF SHARES

44. The Company shall keep a Register of Transfers' and therein shall be fairly and Register of Transfers
distinctly entered particulars of every transfer or transmission of any share held in
material form.

45. (1) The instrument of transfer of any share in the Company shall be duly Instrument of transfer
executed by or on behalf of both the transferor and transferee. to be executed by

(2) The transferor shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share until transferor and
the name of the transferee is entered in the register of members in transferee
respect thereof.
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The Board may, subject to the right of appeal conferred by the Act decline to Board may refuse to
register - register transfer
(a) the transfer of a share, not being a fully paid share, to a person of whom

they do not approve; or
(b) any transfer of shares on which the Company has a lien. ~ '---l

In case of shares held in physical form, the Board may decline to recognize Board may decline to
any instrument of transfer unless - recognize instrument
(a) the instrument of transfer is duly executed and is in the form as prescribed of transfer

in the Rules made under the Act;
(b) the instrument of transfer is accompanied by the certificate of the shares to

which it relates, and such other evidence as the Board may reasonably
require to show the right of the transferor to make the transfer; and

(c) the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of shares. _. _

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

On giving of previous notice of not less than seven days or such lesser period Transfer of shares
in accordance with the Act and Rules made thereunder, the registration of when suspended
transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods as the Board may
from time to time determine:
Provided that such registration shall not be suspended for more than thirty days
at anyone time or for more than forty- five days in the aggregate in any year.
Where, in the case of partly paid shares, an application for registration is made by Notice of application
the transferor, the Company shall give notice of the application to the transferee in when to be given
accordance with the provisions of the Act.
The Company shall incur no liability or responsibility whatsoever in
consequence of its registering or giving effect to any transfer of shares made or
purporting to be made by any apparent legal owner thereof as shown or appearing
in the Register of Members to the prejudice of persons having or claiming any
equitable right, title or interest to or in the said shares, notwithstanding that the
Company may have had notice of such equitable right, title or interest or notice
prohibiting registration of such transfer, and may have entered such notice, or
referred thereto, in any book of the Company, and the Company shall not be
bound or required to regard or attend or give effect to any notice which may be
given to it of any equitable right, title or interest or be under any liability
whatsoever for refusing or neglecting so to do, though it may have been entered or
referred to in some hook of the Company; but the Company shall nevertheless be
at liberty to regard and attend to any such notice and give effect thereto if the
Board shall so think fit

Company not liable
for disregard of a
notice prohibiting
registration of a
transfer

I 51.

52.

The instrument of transfer shall, after registration, remain in the custody of the Custody of transfer
Company. The Board may cause to be destroyed all transfer deeds lying with
the Company for a period of ten years or more.
a. The Company shall keep a Register of Members, and therein shall be Register of members

entered the particulars of every transfer or transmission of any share and all
other particulars of shares required by the Act to be entered in such
Register.

b. The Board may, after giving not less than seven days previous notice or Closure of Register
such lesser period as may be specified by Securities and Exchange Board of of Members
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India by advertisement in some newspapers circulating in the district in
which the Registered Office of the Company is situated, close the Register
of Members for any period or periods not exceeding in the aggregate forty-
five days in each year but not exceeding thirty days at anyone time.

When instruments of
transfer to be retained

c. All instruments of transfer which shall be registered shall be retained by the
Company but any instrument of transfer which the Directors may decline to
register shall be returned to the person depositing the same.

I 53. The provisions of these Articles relating to transfer of shares shall mutatis
mutandis apply to any other securities of the Company.

Provisions as to
transfer of shares to
apply mutatis
mutandis to any other
Securities

54. (1) On the death of a member, the survivor or survivors where the member Title to shares on
was a joint holder, and his nominee or nominees or legal representatives death of a member
where he was a sole holder, shall be the only persons recognized by the
Company as having any title to his interest in the shares.

I

I~
I

I

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

(2) Nothing in clause (1) shall release the estate of a deceased joint holder Estate of deceased
from any liability in respect of any share which had, been jointly held by member liable
him with other persons.

55.

I
f
~
f
1

I
I
!
i

I
t
~.

1) Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or Transmission Clause
insolvency of a member may, upon such evidence being produced as may
from time to time properly be required by the Board and subject as
hereinafter provided, elect, either-

(a) to be registered himself as holder of the share; or
(b) to make such transfer of the share as the deceased or insolvent

member could have made.
2) The Board shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or Board's

suspend registration as it would have had, if the deceased or insolvent unaffected
member had transferred the share before his death or insolvency.

3) The Company shall be fully indemnified by such person from all Indemnity to the
liability, if any, by actions taken by the Board to give effect to such Company
registration or transfer. '

right

56. (1) 1f the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered as holder of
the share himself, he shall deliver or send to the Company a notice in
writing signed by him stating that he so elects.

Right to election of
holder of share
Manner of testifying
election

(2) If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the share, he shall testify Limitations
his election by executing a transfer of the share. applicable to notice
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------~------------------------------------~--~~------~--_r--------------(3) All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these regulations
relating to the right to transfer and the registration of transfers of
shares shall be applicable to any such notice or transfer as aforesaid as if
the death or insolvency of the member had not occurred and the notice or
transfer were a transfer signed by that member.

57. A. person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insolvency of Claimant to be
!he holder shall be entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to entitled to same
which he would be entitled if he were the registered holder of the share, advantage
except that he shall not, before being registered as a member in respect of the
share, be entitled in respect of it to exercise any right conferred by
membership in relation to meetings of the Company:

Provided that the Board may, at any time, give notice requiring any such person
10 elect either to be registered himself or to transfer the share, and if the notice
is not complied with within ninety days, the Board may thereafter withhold
payment of all dividends, bonuses or other monies payable in respect of the
share, until the requirements of the notice have been complied with.

58. The provisions of these Articles relating to transmission by operation of law
shall mutatis mutandis apply to any other securities of the Company.

Provisions as to
transmission to apply
mutatis mutandis to
any other Securities
etc.

JOINT HOLDERS
59. Where two or more persons are registered as joint holders (not more than Joint-holders

three) of any share, they shall be deemed (so far as the Company is concerned)
to hold the same as joint tenants with benefits of survivorship, subject to the
following and other provisions contained in these Articles:

(a) The joint-holders of any share shall be liable severally as well as jointly
for and in respect of all calls or instalments and other payments which
ought to be made in respect of such share.

(b) On the death of anyone or more of such joint-holders, the survivor or
survivors shall be the only person or persons recognized by the Company as
having any title to the share but the Directors may require such evidence of
death as they may deem fit, and nothing herein contained shall be taken to
release the estate of a deceased joint-holder from any liability on shares held
by him jointly with any other person.

(c) Anyone of such joint holders may give effectual receipts of any dividends;
interests or other moneys payable in respect of such share.

(d) Only the person whose name stands first in the register of members as one
of the joint-holders of any share shall be entitled to the delivery of
certificate, if any, relating to such share or to receive notice (which term
shall be deemed to include all relevant documents) and any notice served
on or sent to such person shall be deemed service on all the joint-holders.

(e) (i) Anyone of two or more joint-holders may vote at any meeting either
personally or by attorney or by proxy in respect of such shares as ifhe were
solely entitled thereto and if more than one of such joint holders be present

Liability of
Jointholders
Death of one or more
joint-holders
Receipt of one
sufficient
Delivery of
certificate and
giving of notice to
first named holder

Vote of joint holders

Executors
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at any meeting personally or by proxy or by attorney then that one of such
persons so present whose name stands first or higher (as the case may be)
on the register in respect of such shares shall alone be entitled to vote in
respect thereof

(ii) Several executors or administrators of a deceased member in whose
(deceased member) sole name any share stands, shall for the purpose of
this clause be deemed joint-holders.

(f) The provisions of these Articles relating to joint holders of shares shall
mutatis mutandis apply to any other securities of the Company registered in
joint names.

administrators as
joint holders
Provisions as to joint
holders as to shares
to apply to any other
securities

eAPIT ALISATION OF PROFITS
60.

(3)

I
'I (4)

J
61.~

!
l
I

I,
!
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I
~
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(1) The Company in general meeting may, upon the recommendation of the Capitalisation
Board, resolve -
a) that it is desirable to capitalise any part of the amount for the time

being standing to the credit of any of the Company's reserve
accounts, or to the credit of the profit and loss account, or otherwise
available for distribution; and

b) that such sum be accordingly set free for distribution in the
manner specified in clause (2) below amongst the members who
would have been entitled thereto, if distributed by way of dividend Sum how applied
and in the same proportions.

(2) The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall be applied, subject to
the provision contained in clause (3) below, either in or towards:
(a) paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any shares

held by such members respectively;
(b) paying up in full, unissued shares or other securities of the Company

to be allotted and distnbuted, credited as fully paid-up, to and
amongst such members in the proportions aforesaid;

(c) partly in the way specified in sub-clause (a) and partly in that
specified in sub-clause (b)

A securities premium account and a capital redemption reserve account
or any other permissible reserve account may, for the purposes of this
Article, be applied in the paying up of unissued shares to be issued. to
members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares;
The Board shall give effect to the resolution passed by the Company in
pursuance of this Article;

1) Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed, the Powers of the Board
Board shall - for capitalization

(a) make all appropriations and applications of the amounts resolved. to
be capitalised. thereby, and all allotments and issues of fully paid
shares or other securities, if any; and

(b) generally do all acts and things required to give effect thereto

2) The Board shall have power -

(a) to make such provisions, by the issue

Board's power to
of fractional issue fractional

certificate/coupon
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-------.-------------------------------------------------------r------------,~---certificates/coupons or by payment 10 cash or otherwise as it
thinks fit, for the case of shares or other securities becoming
distributable in fractions; and

(b) to authorise any person to enter, on behalf of all the members
entitled thereto, into an agreement with the Company providing for
the allotment to them respectively, credited as fully paid-up, of
any further shares or other securities to which they may be entitled
upon such capitalisation, or as the case may require, for the
payment by the Company on their behalf, by the application thereto
of their respective proportions of profits resolved to be capitalised,
of the amount or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on
their existing shares.

3) Any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and binding
on such members.

62. Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles but subject to all Buy-back of shares
applicable provisions of the Act or any other law for the time being in force,
the Company may purchase its own shares or other specified securities.

63. Any money due from the Company to a shareholder may, without the consent of Set-off of moneys
such shareholder, be applied by the Company in or towards payment of any due to shareholders
money due from him, either alone or jointly with any other person, to the
person, to the Company in respect of calls.

BUY-BACK OF SHARES

SET OFF OF MONEY DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

DEMATERIALISATION OF SECURITIES

etc.

Agreement
on members

binding

64. Definitionsa) Definitions
For the purpose of this Article:
'Beneficial Owner' means a person or persons whose name is recorded as such
with a depository;
'SEBI' means the Securities and Exchange Board of India;
'Depository' means a company formed and registered under the Companies Act,
1956 or Companies Act, 2013 or any other law and which has been granted a
certificate of registration to act as a depository under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, and
'Security' means such security as may be specified by SEBI from time to time.
b) Dematerialisation of securities
Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, the Company shall be
entitled to dematerialise or rematerialise its securities and to offer securities in a
dematerialised form pursuant to the Depositories Act, 1996 and the rules framed
thereunder, if any.
c) Options for investors
Every person subscribing to securities offered by the Company shall have the
option to receive security certificates or to hold the securities with a depository.
Such a person, who is the beneficial owner of the securities, can at any time opt
out of a depository, if permitted by law, in respect of any security in the manner
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provided by the Depositories Act and the Company shall, in the manner and
within the time prescribed, issue to the beneficial owner the required certificates
of securities. If a person opts to hold his security with a depository, the
Company shall intimate such depository the details of allotment of the security,
and on receipt of the information, the depository shall enter in its record the
name of the allottee as the beneficial owner ofthe security.
d) Securities in depositories to be in fungible form
All securities held by a depository shan be dernaterialised and be in fungible
form. Nothing contained in Sections 89 of the Act shall apply to a depository in
respect of the securities held by it on behalf of the beneficial owners.
e) Rights of depositories and beneficial owners:
(i) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Act or these
Articles, a depository shall be deemed to be the registered owner for the
purposes of effecting transfer of ownership of security on behalf of the
beneficial owner.
(ii) Save as otherwise provided in (a) above, the depository, as the registered
owner of the securities, shall not have any voting rights or any other rights in
respect of the securities held by it
(iii) Every person holding securities of the Company and whose name is

entered as the beneficial owner in the records of the depository shall be deemed
to be a member of the Company. The beneficial owner of the securities shall be
entitled to all the rights and benefits and be subject to all the liabilities in respect
of his securities which are held by a depository.
f) Service of documents
Notwithstanding anything in the Act or these Articles to the contrary, where
securities are held in a depository, the records of the beneficial ownership may
be served by such depository on the Company by means of electronic mode or
by delivery of floppies or discs.
g) Transfer of securities
Nothing contained in Section 56 of the Act or these Artic1es shall apply to
transfer of securities effected by a transferor and transferee both of whom are
entered as beneficial owners in the records of a depository.
h) Allotment of securities dealt with in a depository
Notwithstanding anything in the Act or these Articles, where securities are dealt
with in a depository, the Company shall intimate the details thereof to the
depository immediately on allotment of such securities.
i) Distinctive numbers of securities held in a depository
Nothing contained in the Act or these Articles regarding the necessity of having
distinctive numbers of securities issued by the Company shall apply to securities
held in a depository.

j) Register and Index of Beneficial owners
The Register and Index of Beneficial Owners, maintained by a depository under
the Depositories Act, 1996, shall be' deemed to be the Register and Index of
Members and Security Holders for the purposes of these Articles.
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k) Company to recognize the rights of registered holders as also the beneficial
owners in the records of the depository.
Save as herein otherwise provided, the Company shall be entitJed to treat the
person whose name appears on the Register of Members as the holder of any
share, as also the beneficial owner of the shares in records of the depository as
the absolute owner thereof as regards receipt of dividends or bonus or services
of notices and all or any other matters connected with the Company, and
accordingly, the Company shall not, except as ordered by a Court of competent
jurisdiction or as by law required, be bound to recognise any benami trust or
equity or equitable, contingent or other claim to or interest in such share on the
part of any other person, whether or not it shall have express or implied notice
thereof.

GENERAL MEETING

65, All general meetings other than annual general meeting shall be called Extraordinary

extraordinary general meeting. general meeting

66. The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary general meeting, Powers of Board to
call extraordinary
general meeting

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETING

67, (1) No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum Presence of Quorum
of members is present at the time when the meeting proceeds to
business.

(2) No business shall be discussed or transacted at any general meeting Business confined to
except election of Cbairperson whilst the chair is vacant. election of

Chairperson whilst
chair vacant

(3) The quorum for a general meeting shall be as provided in the Act. Quorum for general
meeting

68. The Chairperson of the Company shall preside as Chairperson at Chairperson of the

every general meeting of the Company. meetings

69. If there is no such Chairperson, or if he is not present within fifteen minutes Directors to elect a

after the time appointed for holding the meeting, or is unwilling to act as Chairperson

chairperson of the meeting, the directors present shall elect ooe of their
members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

70. If at any meeting no director is willing to act as Chairperson or if no director is Members to elect a

present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, Chairperson

the members present shall, by poll or electronically, choose one of their
members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

71. On any business at any general meeting, in case of an equality of votes, Casting vote of
whether on a show of hands or electronically or on a poll, the Chairperson shall Chairperson at
have a second or casting vote. general meeting
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72.

ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

Notice of adjourned
meetin

(1) The Company shall cause minutes of the proceedings of every general
meeting of any class of members or creditors and every resolution passed
by postal ballot to be prepared and signed in such manner as may be
prescribed by the Act and Rules and kept by making within thirty days of
the conclusion of every such meeting concerned or passing of resolution
by postal ballot entries thereof in books kept for that purpose with their
pages consecutively numbered.

(2) There shall not be included in the minutes any matter which, in the
opinion of the Chairperson of the meeting-
(a) is, or could reasonably be regarded, as defamatory of any person; or
(b) is irrelevant or immaterial to the proceedings; or
(c) is detrimental to the interests of the Company.

(3) The Chairperson shall exercise an absolute discretion in regard to the
inclusion or non-inclusion of any matter in the minutes on the grounds
specified in the aforesaid clause.

(4) The minutes of the meeting kept in accordance with the provisions of the
Act shall be evidence of tbe roceedin s recorded therein.

Minutes of
proceedings of
meetings and
resolutions passed by
postal ballot

Certain matters not to
be included in
Minutes

Discretion of
chairperson in
relation to Minutes
Minutes to be
evidence

73. (I) The books containing the minutes of the proceedings of any general
meeting of the Company or a resolution passed by postal ballot shall:

Inspection of minute
books of general
meeting

(a) be kept at the registered office of the Company; and
(b) be open to inspection of any member without charge, during

office bours. on all working days other than Saturdays
(2) Any member shall be entitled to be furnished, within the time prescribed

by the Act, after he has made a request in writing in that behalf to the
Company and on payment of such fees as may be fixed by the Board,
with a copy of any minutes referred to in clause (1) above, Provided
that a member who has made a request for provision of a soft copy of
the minutes of any previous general meeting held during the period
immediately preceding three financial years, shall be entitled to be
furnished with the same free of cost.

Members may obtain
copy of minutes

74. Powers to arrange
security at meetings

The Board, and also any person(s) authorised by it, may take any action before
the commencement of any general meeting, or any meeting of a class of
members in the Company, which they may think. fit to ensure the security of the
meeting, the safety of people attending the meeting, and the future orderly
conduct of the meeting. Any decision made in good faith under this Article
shall be final and right to attend and participate in the meeting concerned shall
be sub' ect to such decision.

75. Cha~on may
adjourn the meeting
Business at adjourned
meeting

(1) The Chairperson may, suo motu, adjourn the meeting from time to time
and from place to place.

(2) No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than
the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment
took place.

(3) When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, notice of the
ad' oumed meetin shall ._. the case of an ori . al meetin
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(4) Save as aforesaid, and save as provided in the Act, it shall not be Notice of adjourned

necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or of the business to be meeting not required
transacted at an adioumed meeting.

VOTING RIGHTS -~,-
76. Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class Entitlement to vote

er classes of shares - on show of hands

(a) on a show of hands, every member present in person shall have one vote; and on poll

and
(b) on a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to his share

in the paid-up equity share capital of the company.
77. A member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electronic means in Voting through

accordance with the Act and shall vote only once. electronic means
78. (I) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, Vote of joint-holders

whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the
votes of the other joint holders.

(2) For this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the Seniority of names
names stand in the register of members.

79. A member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by How members non
any court having jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote, whether on a show of hands compos mentis and
or on a poIJ, by his committee or other legal guardian, and any such committee minor may vote
or guardian may, on a poll, vote by proxy. If any member be a minor, the vote
in respect of his share or shares shall be by his guardian or anyone of his
guardians.

80. Subject to the provisions of the Act and other provisions of these Articles, any Votes in respect of
person entitled under the Transmission Clause to any shares may vote at any shares of deceased or
'general meeting in respect thereof as if he was the registered holder of such insolvent members,
shares, provided that at least 48 (forty eight) hours before the time of holding etc.
the meeting or adjourned meeting, as the case may be, at which he proposes to
vote, he shall duly satisfy the Board of his right to such shares unless the
Board shall have previously admitted his right to vote at such meeting in respect
thereof.

81. Any business other than that upon which a poll has been demanded may be Business may
proceeded with, pending the taking of the poll. proceed pending poll

82. No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or Restriction on voting
other sums presently payable by him in respect of shares in the Company have rights
been paid or in regard to which the Company has exercised any right of lien.

83. A member is not prohibited from exercising his voting on the ground that he Restriction on
has not held his share or other interest in the Company for any specified period exercise of voting
preceding the date on which the vote is taken, or on any other ground not being rights in other cases
a ground set out in the preceding Article. to be void

84. Any member whose name is entered in the register of members of the Equal rights of
Company shall enjoy the same rights and be subject to the same liabilities as members
all other members of the same class.

PROXY
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85. (1) Any member entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting may do so Member may vote in
either personally or through his constituted attorney or through another person or otherwise
person as a proxy on his behalf, for that meeting.

(2) The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of- attorney or Proxies when to be
other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarised copy of deposited
that power or authority, shall be deposited at the registered office
of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the
meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the
instrument proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy shall
not be treated as valid.

86. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as prescribed in the Form of proxy
Rules.

87. A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be Proxy to be valid
valid, notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal or the notwithstanding
revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the proxy was executed, death of the principal
or the transfer of the shares in respect of which the proxy is given:

88. Unless otherwise determined by a General Meeting, the number of Directors Number of Directors
shall not be less than 3 (Three) and not more than 15 (Fifteen).

89. The following shall be the First Directors of the Company. First Directors
a. Mr. Kamalaksha Rama N aik
b. Ms. Arati Kemalaksha Naik
c. Mr. Krishnanand Maruti Gaonkar

90. Subject to the provisions of Act, Managing Director
a. The Board of Directors may appoint or re-appoint one or more of their

body, not exceeding two, to be the Managing Director or Managing
Directors of the Company for such period not exceeding 5 years as it
may deem fit, subject to such approval of the Central Government as
may be necessary in that behalf.

b. The remuneration payable to a Managing Director shall be determined
by the Board of Directors subject to the sanction of the Company in
General Meeting and of the Central Government, ifrequired.

c. If at any time there are more than one Managing Director, each of the
said Managing Directors may exercise individually all the powers and
perform alJ the duties that a single Managing Director may be
empowered to exercise or required to perform under the Companies Act
or by these presents or by any Resolution of the Board of Directors and
subject also to such restrictions or conditions as the Board may from
time to time impose. The Managing Director shalt not be liable to retire
by rotation.

d. The Board of Directors may at any time and from time to time designate
any Managing Director as Deputy Managing Director or Joint Managing

Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation or
transfer shan have been received by the Company at its office before the
commencement of the meeting or adioumed meeting at which the proxy is used.

BOARD OF DffiECTORS
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Director or by such other designation as it deems fit.
-~

e. Subject to the supervision, control and directions of the Board of
Directors, the Managing Director/Managing Directors shall have the
management of the whole of the business of the Company and of all its
affairs and shall exercise all powers and perform all duties and in
relation to the management of the affairs, except such powers and such
duties as are required by Law or by these presents to be exercised or
done by the Company in General Meeting or by the Board and also
subject to such conditions and restrictions imposed by the Act or by
these presents or by the Board of Directors.

91. 1. Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board may appoint one or more Wholetime Director
of its body, as Whole-time Director or Wholetime Directors on such
designation and on such terms and conditions as it may deem fit. The
Whole-time Director/s shall perform such duties and exercise such
powers as the Board may from time to time determine which shall
exercise all such powers and perform all such duties subject to the
control, supervision and directions of the Board and subject thereto the
supervision and directions of the Managing Director. The remuneration
payable to the Whole-time Directors shall be determined by the
Company in General Meeting, subject to the approval of the Central
Government, if any, required in that behalf.

2. A Whole-time Director shall (subject to the provisions of any contract
between him and the Company) be subject to the same provisions as to
resignation and removal as the other Directors, and he shall, ipso facto
and immediately, cease to be Whole-time Director, if he ceases to hold
the Office of Director from any cause except where he retires by rotation
in accordance with the Articles at an Annual General Meeting and is re-
elected as a Director at that Meeting.

92. All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, hundis, bills of exchange and other Execution of
negotiable instruments, and all receipts for monies paid to the Company, shall Negotiable
be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed, or otherwise executed, as the case may instruments
be, by such person and in such manner as the Board shall from time to time by
resolution determine.

93. Any person, whether a member of the Company or not, may be appointed as a Qualifications of
Director. No qualification by way of holding shares in the capital of the Directors
Company shall be required of any Director.

94. a. The remuneration of the directors shall, in so far as it consists of a monthly Director's
payment, be deemed to accrue from time day-to-day. remuneration

b. The remuneration payable to the directors, including any managing or
whole-time director or manager, if any, shall be determined in accordance
with and subject to the provisions of the Act.

c. Until otherwise determined by the Company in General Meeting, each
Director shall be entitled to receive and be paid out of the funds of the
Company a fee for each meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee
thereof, attended by him as may be fixed by the Board of Directors from
time to time subject to the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
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thereunder. For the purpose of any resolution in this regard, none of the
Directors shall be deemed to be interested in the subject matter of the
resolution. The Directors shall also be entitled to be paid their reasonable
travelling and hotel and other expenses incurred in consequence of their
attendance at meetings of the Board or of any committee of the Board or
otherwise in the execution of their duties as Directors either in India or
elsewhere. The Managing! Whole-time Director of the Company, who is a
full time employee, will not be paid any fee for attending Board Meetings.

Chairman of the
Board

95. The Directors may from time to time elect from among their number a
Chairman of the Board and determine the periods for which he is to hold office.
If at' any meeting of the Board tbe Chairman is not present within fifteen
minutes after the time appointed for holding the same, the Directors present
may choose one of their number to be Chairman of the meeting.

96. If the office of any Director becomes vacant before the expiry of the period of
his Directorship in normal course, the resulting casual vacancy may be filled by
the Board at a Meeting of the Board subject to Section 161 of the Act. Any
person so appointed shall hold office only upto the date which the Director in
whose place he is appointed would have. held office if the vacancy had not
occurred as aforesaid.

Casual vacancy

97. (a) The Board may appoint an Alternate Director to act for a Director
hereinafter called in this clause "the Original Director" during his absence
for a period of not less than 3 months from India

(b) An Alternate Director appointed as aforesaid shall vacate office if and
when the Original Director returns to India.

(c) The Directors may appoint such nwnber of Independent Directors as are
required under the provisions of the Act or the Listing Agreement,

. whichever is higher, from time to time.
(d) The Directors shall appoint atleast one woman director as per the

requirements of the Act.
(e) Subject to the provisions of the Act,-

(i) A chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief
financial officer may be appointed by the Board for such term, at such
remuneration and upon such conditions as it may thinks fit; and any
chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial
officer so appointed may be removed by means of a resolution of the
Board; The Board may appoint one or more CEO for its multiple
businesses.

(ii) A director may be appointed as chief executive officer, manager,
company secretary or chief financial officer.

Alternate Director

Independent
Directors

Woman Director

Clrief Executive
Officer, etc.,

98.

99.

The Directors may, from time to time, appoint a person as an Additional
Director provided that the number of Directors and Additional Directors
together shall not exceed the maximum number of Directors fixed by the
Articles. Any person so appointed as an Additional Director shall hold office
unto the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.
The proportion of directors to retire by rotation shall be as per the provisions of
the Act.
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100.

101.

102.

l03.

104.

105.

Except as otherwise provided by these Articles and subject to the provisions of
the Act, all the Directors of the Company shall have in all matters equal rights
and privileges, and be subject to equal obligations and duties in respect of the
affairs of the Company.
Notwithstanding anything contained in these presents, any Director contracting
with the Company shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Act.

Subject to the limitations prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013. the Directors
shan be entitled to contract with the Company and no Director shall be
disqualified by having contracted with the Company as aforesaid.
Subject to provisions of the Act, the Company, by Ordinary Resolution, may at
any time remove any Director except Government Directors before the expiry
of his period of office, and may by Ordinary Resolution appoint another person
in his place. The person so appointed shall ho1d office until the date upto which
his predecessor would have held office if he had not been removed as
aforementioned. A Director so removed from office shall not be re-appointed
as a Director by the Board of Directors. Special Notice shall be required of any
resolution to remove a Director under this Article, or to appoint somebody
instead of the Director at the meeting at which he is removed.
Subject to the provisions of the Act, a person not being a retiring Director shall
be eligible for appointment to the office of a Director at any general meeting if
he or some other member intending to propose him as a Director has not less
than fourteen days before the meeting, left at the office of the Company a
notice in writing under his hand signifying his candidature for the office of the
Director, or the intention of such member to propose him as a candidate for that
office, as the case may be "along with a deposit of such sum as may be
prescribed by the Act or the Central Government from time to time which shall
be refunded to such person or as the case may be, to such member, if the person
succeeds in getting elected as a Director or gets more than 25% of total valid
votes cast either on show of hands or electronically or on poll on such
resolution".
The Company shall keep at its Registered Office a register containing the
addresses and occupation and the other particulars as required by the Act of its
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.

PROECEDINGS OF THE BOARD

Right of Directors

Directors contracting
to comply with the
provisions of the Act
Directors power to
contract with
Comp_any
Power to remove
Directors by ordinary
resolution

Rights of persons
other than retiring
Directors to stand for
Directorships

Register of Directors
and KMP and their
shareholding

106. a) The Board of Directors may meet for the conduct of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meetings, as it thinks fit, provided that a meeting of
the Board shall be held at least once in every one hundred and twenty days;
and at least four such meetings shall be held inevery year.

b) The participation of directors in a meeting of the Board may be either in
person or through video conferencing or audio visual means or
teleconferencing, as may be prescribed by the Rules or permitted under
law.

c) The quorum for a Board Meeting shall be as provided under the Act.

Meeting of the Board

Participation at
Board meetings

Quorum for Board
Meetings

107. A Director! Chairperson of the company may at any time request the Secretary Director may
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108.

109.

110.

to convene a meeting of the Directors and seven days notice of meeting of
directors shall be given to every director and such notice shall be sent by hand
delivery or by post or by electronic means provided that a meeting of the Board
may be called at shorter notice to transact urgent business subject to the
condition that atleast one independent director shall be present at the meeting.
a. Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a meeting of the Directors

for the time being at which a quorum is present shall be competent to
exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and discretions by or under the
regulations of the Company for the time being vested in or exercisable by
the Directors generally and all questions arising at any meeting of the
Board shall be decided by a majority of the Board.

b. In case of an equality of votes, the Chairman shall have a second or casting
vote.

The continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancyin the Board,
but if and as long as their number if reduced below the quorum fixed by the
AC4 the continuing Directors or Director may act for the purpose of increasing
the number of Directors to that fixed by tbe quorum, or of summoning a
General Meeting of the Company and for no other purpose.
(1) The Chairperson of the Company shall be the Chairperson at meetings of

the Board. In his absence, the Board may elect a Chairperson of its
meetings and determine the period for which he is to hold office.

(2) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is
not present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the
meeting, the directors present may choose one of their member to be
Chairperson of the meeting.

summon meeting

Question at the Board
Meeting how decided

Right of continuing
Directors when there
is no quorum

Who to preside at
meetings of the
Board
Directors to elect a
Chairperson

111~ a The Board may, from time to time, and at any time and in compliance with
provisions of the act and listing agreement constitute one or more
Committees of the Board consisting of such member or members of its
body, as the Board may think: fit.

b. Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board may delegate from time to
time and at any time to any Committee so appointed all or any of the
powers, authorities and discretions for the time being vested in the Board
and such delegation may be made on such terms and subject to such
conditions as the Board may think fit and subject to provisions of the act
and listing agreement.

c. The Board may from, time to time, revoke, add to or vary any powers,
authorities and discretions so delegated subject to provisions of the act and .
listing agreement.

Power to appoint
Committees

Delegation of powers

Variation of Powers

112. a The meeting and proceedings of any such Committee consisting of two or
more members shall be governed by the provisions herein contained for
regulating the meetings and proceedings of the Directors so far as the same
are applicable thereto, and not superseded by any regulations made by the
Directors under the last proceeding Article.

b. The participation of directors in a meeting of the Committee may be either in
person or through video conferencing or audio visual means or
teleconferencing, as may be prescribed by the Rules or ~ermitted under

Page 22 of29

Proceedings of
Committee

Participation at

Committee meetings



• r •
. ""--..-_.------_.__.---_ - ,.. '-~-'-"~ .

_,.-_-. ......,..--
law. ---

113. a. A Committee may elect a Chairperson of its meetings unless the BOQ,rd Election of Chairman
while constituting a Committee has appointed a Chairperson of such of the Committee
Committee.

h. If no such Chairperson is elected or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not Who to preside ut
present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting meetings of the
the members present may choose one of their members to be Chairperson Committee
of the meeting of the Committee. .._

114. a. A Committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper. Committee to meet
h. Questions arising at any meeting of a Committee shall be dctennined by the .Ouestions how

sole member of the Committee or by a majority of votes of the members determined
present as the case may be and in case of an equality of votes, the Chairman
shall have a second or casting vote.

115. All acts done by any meeting of the Board or a Committee thereof, or by any Acts done by Board
person acting as a Director shall, not withstanding that it may be afterwards or Committee valid,
discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of anyone or more of not- withstanding
such Directors or any person acting as aforesaid, or that any of them was defective
disqualified, be as valid as if every such Director and such person had been appointment, etc.
duly appointed and wasgualified to be a Director.

116. Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a resolution in writing, signed, Resolution by
whether manually or by secure electronic mode, by a majority of the circulation
members of the Board or of a Committee thereof, for the time being entitled
to receive notice of a meeting of the Board or Committee, shall be valid and
effective as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Board or Committee, duly
convened and held .

..
POWERS OF BOARD

117. The management of the business of the Company shall be vested in the Board General powers of
and the Board may exercise all such powers, and do all such acts and things, as the Company vested
the Company is by the memorandum of association or otherwise authorized to in Board
exercise and do, and, not hereby or by the statue or otherwise directed or
required to be exercised or done by the Company in general meeting but
subject nevertheless to the provisions of the Act and other laws and of the
memorandum of association and these Articles and to any regulations, not
being inconsistent with the memorandum of association and these Articles or
the Act, from time to time made by the Company in general meeting provided
that no such regulation shall invalidate any prior act of the Board which would
have been valid if such regulation had not been made.

118. The Board may authorise any such delegate or attorney as aforesaid to sub- Power to authorise
delegate all or any of the powers and authorities for the time being vested in sub delegation
them.

119. In furtherance of and without prejudice to the general powers conferred by the Special power of
Articles and other powers conferred by these Articles, and subject to the Directors _
provisions of the Act, that may become applicable, it is hereby expressly
declared that it shall be lawful for the Directors to carry out all or any of the
objects set forth in the Memorandum of Association.

120. The Board may, from time to time, raise any money or any moneys or sums of Power to borrow
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money for the purpose of the Company; provided that the moneys to be
borrowed together with the moneys already borrowed by the Company (apart
from temporary loans obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary
course of business) shall not, without the sanction of the Company at a General
Meeting, exceed the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the Company and its
free reserves, that is to say, reserves not set-apart for any specific purpose and
in particular but subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board may, from time
to time, at its discretion raise or borrow or secure the payment of any such sum
or sums of money for the purpose of the Company, by the issue of any
securities in respect of any such money so borrowed,' raised or received,
mortgage, pledge or charge, the whole or any part of the property, assets, or
revenue of the Company, present or future, including its uncalled capital by
special assignment or otherwise or transfer or convey the same absolutely or
entrust and give the lenders powers of sale and other powers as may be
expedient and purchase, redeem or payoff any such security.
Provided that every resolution passed by the Company in General Meeting in
relation to the exercise of the power to borrow as stated above shall specify the
total amount upto which moneys may be borrowed by the Board of Directors,
provided that subject to the provisions of clause next above, the Board may,
from time to time, at its discretion, raise or borrow or secure the repayment of
any sum or sums of money for the purpose of the Company as such time and in
such manner and upon such terms and conditions in all respects as it thinks fit
and in particular, by promissory notes or by opening current accounts, or by
receiving deposits and advances, with or without security or by the issue of any
other securities of the Company charged upon all or any part of the property of
the Company (both present and future) including its uncalled capital for the
time being or by mortgaging or charging or pledging any land, building or other
property and security of the Company or by such other means as them may
seem expedient.

121. The Company shall keep and maintain at its registered office all Statutory registers
statutory registers namely, register of charges, register of members, register of
any other security holders, the register and index of beneficial owners and
annual return, register of loans, guarantees, security and acquisitions, register of
investments not held Ul its own narne and register of contracts and
arrangements for such duration as the Board may, unless otherwise
prescribed, decide, and in such manner and containing such particulars as
prescribed by the Act and the Rules. The registers and copies of annual return
shall be open for inspection during office hours on all working days, other than
Saturdays, at the registered office of the Company by the persons entitled
thereto on payment, of such fees as may be prescribed by Act and the Rules.

122. a) The Company may exercise the powers conferred on it by the Act with Foreign register
regard to the keeping of a foreign register; and the Board may
(subject to the provisions of the Act) make and vary such
regulations as it may think fit respecting the keeping of any such
register.

REGISTERS
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b) The foreign register shall be open for inspection and may be closed, and

extracts may be taken therefrom and copies thereof may be required, in
the same manner, mutatis mutandis. as is applicable to the register of
members. -

THE SEAL

123. (1) The Board shall provide for the safe custody of the seal. The seal, its custody
and use

(2) The seal of the Company shall not be affixed to any instrument except by Affixation of seal
the authority of a resolution of the Board or of a Committee of the Board
authorised by it in that behalf, and except in the presence-of two Directors or
at least one director and the secretary or such other person as the Board may
appoint for the purpose; and such two directors or such other Director and
the secretary or such other person aforesaid shall sign every instrument to
which the seal of the Company is so affixed in their presence.

DMDENDS AND RESERVES

124. The profits of the Company, subject to any special rights relating thereto Rights to Dividend
created or authorised to be created by these presents and subject to the
provisions of these presents as to the Reserve Fund, shall be divisible among
the equity shareholders.

125. The Company in General Meeting may declare dividends but no dividend shall Declaration of
exceed the amount recommended by the Board. Dividends

126. The declarations of the Directors as to the amount of the net profits of the What to be deemed
Company shall be conclusive. net profits

127. The Board may from time to time pay to the members such interim dividends Interim Dividend
as aJmear to it to be justified by the profits of the Company.

128. No dividend shall be payable except out of the profits of the year or any other Dividends to be paid
undistributed profits except as provided by the Act. out of pro fits only

129. a. The Board may, before recommending any dividends, set aside out of the Reserve Funds
profits of the Company such sums as it thinks proper as a reserve or
reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable for any
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly applied,
including provision for meeting contingencies or for equalising dividends
and pending such application may, at the like discretion either be employed
in the business of the Company or be invested in such investments (other
than shares of the Company) as the Board may, from time to time, think fit.

b. The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may think prudent
not to divide without setting them aside as Reserve. I

130. a. Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to share with special rights Method of payment
as to dividends, all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the of dividend
amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in respect whereof the
dividend is paid.

b. No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance of calls shall be
treated for the purposes of these regulations as paid on the share.

c. All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts
paid or credited as paid on the shares during any portion or portions of the
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-period in respect of which the dividend is paid but if any share is issued on
terms providing that it shall rank for dividends as from a particular date,
such shares shall rank for dividend accordingly.

131. The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of Deduction of arrears
money. if any, presently payable by him to the Company on account of calls in
relation to the shares oftbe Company or otherwise.

132. Any General Meeting declaring a dividend or bonus may make a call on the Adjustment of
members of such amounts as the meeting fixes, but so that the can on each dividend against call
member shall not exceed the dividend payable to him and so that the call' be
made payable at the same time as the dividend and the dividend may, if so
arranged between the Company and themselves be set off against the call.

133. a. Any dividend, interest or other moneys payable in cash in respect of shares Payment by
may be paid by electronic means, by cheque or warrant sent through post electronic means!
directly to the registered address of the holder or, in the case of joint cheque or warrant
holders, to the registered address of that one of the joint holders who is first
named in the Register of Members or to such person and to such address of
the holder as the joint holders may in writing direct.

b. Every such payment whether by electronic means, cheque or warrant shall
be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is sent.

c. Every dividend or warrant or cheque shall be posted within thirty days from
the date of declaration of the dividends.

134. Anyone of two of the joint holders of a share may give effectual receipt for Deduction of arrears
any dividend. bonus, or other money payable in respect of such shares.

135. Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given to the Notice of Dividends
person entitled to share therein in the manner mentioned in the Act.

136. No dividend shall bear interest against the Company. Dividend not to bear
interest

137. Any transfer of shares shall not pass the right to any dividend declared thereon Transfer of share not
before the registration of the transfer. to pass prior

Dividend
ACCOUNTS

)38. (1) The books of account and books and papers of the Company, or any of Inspection by
them, shall be open to the inspection of directors in accordance with Directors
the applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules.

(2) No member (not being a director) shall have any right of inspecting Restriction on
any books of account or books and papers or document of the inspection by
Company except as conferred by law or authorised by the Board. members

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

139. (a) Subject to the provisions of the Act, every director, managing director, Directors and officers
whole-time director, manager, company secretary and other officer of right to indemnity
the Company shan be indemnified by the Company out of the funds of the
Company, to pay all costs, losses and expenses (including travelling
expense) which such director, manager, managing director, whole time
director, chief financial officer, company secretary and officer may incur
or become liable for by reason of any contract entered into or act or deed
done by him in his capacity as such director, manager, company secretary
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I GENERAL POWER
140. Wherever in the Act, it has been provided that the Company shall have any General power

right, privilege or authority or that the Company could carry out any transaction
only if the Company is so authorized by its articles, then and in that case this
Article authorizes and empowers the Company to have such rights, privileges
or authorities and to carry such transactions as have been permitted by the Act,
without there being any specific Article-in that behalf herein provided.

141. Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made Winding up
thereunder -

(a) If the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction
:. of a special resolution of the Company and any other sanction required by

the Act, divide amongst the members, in specie or kind, the whole or any
part of the assets of the Company, whether they shall consist of property
of the same kind or not.

(b) For the P1UJ>oseaforesaid, the liquidator may set such value as he
deems fair upon any property to be divided as aforesaid and may
determine how such division shall be carried out as between the members
or different classes of members.

(c) The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of
such assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the contributories
if he considers necessary, but so that no member shall be compelled to
accept any shares or other securities whereon there is any liability.

or officer or in any way in the discharge of his duties in such capacity
including expenses.

(b) Subject as aforesaid, every director, managing director, whole time Insurance
director, chief financial officer, manager, company secretary or other
officer of the Company shall be indemnified against any liability incurred
by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or crimina) in which
judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or discharged
or in connection with any application under applicable provisions of the
Act in which relief is given to him by the Court.

(c) The Company may take and maintain any insurance as the Board may
think fit on behalf of its present and/or former directors and key
managerial personnel for indemnifying all or any of them against any
liability for any acts in relation to the Company for which they may be
liable but have acted honestly and reasonably.

WINDING UP

L-·
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MS KA &: Associates
Chartered Accountants

701, Kamat Towers
9, fOC Complex, Patte PtilZ(I
Pannji, GOil 403001, INDIA

INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'SREPORT

To the Membersof SynegraEMSlimited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SynegraEMSLImited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31,2023, and the Statement of Profit and loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of ChangesIn Equity and Statement of CashFlowsfor the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, Including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information.

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the Information required by the CompaniesAct, 2013 ("the Act') In the manner so
required and give a true and fair view In conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ("Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023,
and loss (financial performance Including other comprehensive Income), changesIn equity and Its cashflows for
the year ended on that date.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standardsare further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are Independent of the CompanyIn accordance with
the Code of Ethics Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rulesthereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basisfor our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information Included in the Director's report including Annexuresbut does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Ouropinion on the financial statements does not cover the other Information and we do not expressany form of
assuranceconclusion thereon.

Inconnection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information ls materially Inconsistent with the rinallliiil statements, or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other Information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the finanCial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also Includes maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

_,-:;:;::::=~..c·ontrols,that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
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MS KA &: Associates
Chartered Accountants

relevant to the preparatfon and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and ore
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors Is responsible for assessingthe Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basisof accounting unless the Board of Directors either Intends to liquidate the Companyor to cease
operations, or has no realistlc alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responslbllttles for the Audit of the Ffnanclal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuranceabout whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that Includes our
opinion. Reasonableassurance Is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In
accordance with SAswill always detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise (rom
fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonablybe expected
to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basisof these financial statements.

We give In "Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor's responslbllttles for Audit of the Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), Issued by the Central
Government of India In terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give In "Annexure B" a
statement on the matters specified In paragraphs3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belfef were necessary for the purposesof our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Companyso far as It
appears from our examInation of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, (Including other comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are In
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standardsspecified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basisof the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, noneof the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director In terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Companyand the operating effectiveness of suchcontrols, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure
C".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report In accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

I, The Companydoes not have any pending lttigatlons whIch would Impact its financial posItion.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.
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m. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fundby the Company.

iv.
(1) The Managementhasrepresented that, to the best of It's knowledge and belief, no funds have been

advanced or loaned or Invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or In any other personsor entities, Including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other personsor entities Identified In any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(2) The Managementhas represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any personsor entities. Including foreign entities (Funding Parties).
with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, ason the date of this audit report,
that the Companyshall, directly or indirectly, lend or Invest In other personsor entities Identified
In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(3) Basedon the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonableand appropriate In
the circumstances, and according to the Information and explanations provided to us by the
Management in this regard nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (I) and (II) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (1) and (2) above,
contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year and therefore reporting
compliance with section 123Aof the Act Is not applicable.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the company only
w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause Is not applicable.

3. As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act. 2017, In our opinion, according to information,
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors is within the limits
prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

Abh
Partne
Membe p No. 049939
UDIN:23049939BHAHQP7503

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17, 2023
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ANNEXUREA TO THE INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'SREPORTON EVENDATEON THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTSOF
SYNEGRAEMSLIMITED

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assessthe risks of materIal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsIve to those risks, and obtaIn audit evidence that Is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our oplnton. The rIsk of not detecting a material
mIsstatement resulting from fraud Is hIgher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omIssIons,mIsrepresentations, or the override of Internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressingour opinion on whether the company has adequate Internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements In place and the operating effectiveness of suchcontrols.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poltctes used and the reasonablenessof accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast slgnlflcant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Companyto ceaseto continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and Significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies In internal control that
we Identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our Independence, and where appl1cable, related safeguards.

Partn r
Memb rs ip No. 049939
UDIN: 49939BHAHQP7503

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
SYNEGRA EMSLIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDEDMARCH 31, 2023
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' In the Independent
Auditors' Report]

I.
(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars IncludIng quantitative details and

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were IdentIfied on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no Immovable properties (other than
lease hold land and buildings thereon wherein the Company Is the lessee and the lease agreements for the
lease hold land are duly executed in favour of the Company), and accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its property, plant
and Equipment (including right of use assets) and its intangible assets. Accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or pending against
the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company. .

ii.
(a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency

of verification, coverage and procedure of such verification is reasonable and appropriate. having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancfes of 10%or more In the aggregate
for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in aggregate from Banks/financfal Institutions on the basis of security
of current assets. Quarterly returns / statements filed with such Banks/ financfal institutions are in agreement
with the books of account.

iii. According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not made any investments in,
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances In the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Hence, the requirements
under paragraph 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither, directly or indirectly,
granted any loan, or provided guarantee or security to any of its directors or to any other person in whom
the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of Section 185 of the Act nor made investments
through more than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the provisions of Section 186 of
the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

v.
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vI. The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the Central
Govemment of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products of the
Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

viI.
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,

in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess have been regularly deposited by the Company with appropriate
authorities in all cases during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable In
respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state Insurance, income-tax, duty of custom,
cess and other statutory dues as applicable In arrears as at March 31, 2023, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there are no dues of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, duty of
customs, cess and any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

vIII. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not accounted
in the books of accounts which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year In Tax
Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been now recorded
in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(vifi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Ix.
(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted

in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

(c) In our In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, money raised by way of
term loan during the year have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence reporting under the clause
(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence reporting under the Clause
3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company

x.
(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

HeadOfrtce: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western ExpressHighway, Gee
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partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated In paragraph 3
(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xl.
(a) During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carrIed out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in IndIa, and acct>rding to the information and
explanations given to us, we report that no material fraud by the Company hor on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during the
course of audit of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, accordingly the provisions
stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year. Accordingly, the provlslons stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to
company. .

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company Is not a Nldhl
Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xil) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xiiI. According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our examtnetton of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv. In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not require to comply with provision of
section 138 of the Act. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xiv) (a) to (b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

xv. According to the Information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company has
not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and hence,
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.
(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvl)(a) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company does not have more than one CICas a part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated tn paragraph
clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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Chartered Accountants

xvIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated In
paragraph 3 (xviH) of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

xlx. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of financial ratios,
ageing and expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of lfabllitles, other Information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we
are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report and the Company Is
capable of meeting its lIabflltfes existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

xx. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Hence, the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

For M S K A and Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Re tratlon No. 105047W
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At-fNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
SytlEGRA EMSLIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDEDMARCH 31, 2023

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent
Auditors' Report]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (lithe Act")

Opinion

We haveaudited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Synegra EMSLimited (lithe
Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate Internal financial control with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) (the "Guidance Note").

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated In the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial Information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAIand deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to. financial statements was established and maintained and If such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financiaL statements included obtaining an understanding of tnternal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, assessingthe risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of matertatmtsstaternent of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Page 1 of 2
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements Is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting prlnclples. A Company's internal flnandal
control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only In accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acqulsltton, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, Including
the possibility of collusion or Improper management overrIde of controls, material mIsstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluatIon of the Internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal financial control with
reference to finanCial statements may become inadequate because of changes In conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Partner
Members ip No. 049939
UDIN: 23049939BHAHQP7503

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17, 2023
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SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Noten
Aut Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, ~022

ASSETS

Non·current assets

Property, plant and equipment 5 1,071.61 72~.80

Other Intanglbte assets 6 0.15
Financial assets

(t) Other financial assets 7 0.18 300.18
Non· Current Tax Assets 8 7.63 4.74

Other non-current assets 9 293.18 87."11
Totlll non·current assets 1,372.80 1,117.31

Curront assets

Inventories 10 1,616.~9 515.66

Financial assets

(I) Trade receivables 11 137.84 3~.16

(Ill Cash and cash equivalents 12 0.01 19.99

(III) Bank balances other than cash and cash equtvatent 13 555.00 662.62
(Iv) Loans 14 0.'18 1.22

(v) Other financial assets 15 283.09 151.42

Other current assets 16 210.07 87.27
Total current assets 2,802.98 1,472.34
TOTAL ASSETS 4,17~. 78 2,589.65

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital 17 2,500.00 1,500.00
Other equity 18 (1,340.23) (1,252.47)

Total equity 1,159.77 247.53

LIabilities

Non·current liabilities

Financial liabilities

(I) Oorrowlngs 19 152.84

(II) Lease Liabilities 40 148.19

Provisions 20 28.13 16.77

Total non-current liabilities 329.16 16.77

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

(I) 80rrowings 21 1,169.53 1,500.00

(II) Lease Liabilities 40 41.60

(ill) Trade payables 22

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.92 4.61

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 1,196.56 473.65

(Iv) Other financial liabilities 23 120.82 300.47

Other current lfabilities 24 149.71 43.53

Provisions 25 3.71 3.09
Total current liabilities 2,686.85 2,325.35
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,016.01 2,342.12

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,175.78 2,589.65

See accompanying notes to the flnandal statements 1·66

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For M S K A a AssocIates

Chartered Accountants

on No.:l05047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Synegrll EMS LImIted

CIN: U31909GA2016PLC012969

.. '; ::~'I.
; .
',:-. ,

\l.::.i..
;~..~~.;::

K. R. Nalk

Wholetlme Director

DIN: 002013

"\
Director

DIN: 00005211

(~
Edlan Fernandes

Company Secretary

IC51Membership No.53614

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 17, 2023
Place: Mumbal

ate: May 17,2023
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SYNE:GRAEMS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
For tho Year Endod For the Year Endod

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

INCOAIE
Revenue from Operations 26 5,380.88 2,559.27
Other Income 27 119.93 72.27
Total Income 5,500.81 2,631.54

EXPEI'ISES
Cost of raw materials consumed 28 5,247.23 2,158.93
Changes In Inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 29 (581.59) (1.77)
Employee benefits expense 30 317.79 221.02
Finan ce costs 31 102.18 22.74
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 166.73 94.40
Other expenses 33 323.23 126.18
Total expenses 5,575.57 2,621.50

Profit/CLoss) before tax (74.76) 10.04

Tax expense
Current tax 34
Deferred tax 34
Total tax expense - -
Profit/CLoss) for the year (74.76) 10.04

Other comprehensive Income

Items that will not be rec(ossified to profit or tos«
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (13.00) (11.54)
Income tax effect - -
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (13.00) (11.54)

Total comprehensive Income for the year (87.76) (1.50)

Earnings per Equity Share
Basic earnings I (loss) per Equity Share 35 (0.47) 0.20
Diluted earnings I (loss) per Equity Share 35 (0.47) 0.20

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-66
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For M S K A a Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Synegra EMS Limited
CIN: U31909GA2016PLC012969

~"k
Whole time Director

DIN: Q002013

~'bU'

Chief Financial Officer

Hitin Kunkolfenker
Director
DIN: 00005211

L~
Edlan Fernandes

Company Secretary
ICSI Membership 1'10.53614

..(

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 17,2023
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 17, 2023
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SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED
STATEMENT OFCHANGESIN EQUITYFOR THE YEARENDEDMARCH31,2023
(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital

Aut March 31, 2023 As at Mnrch 31, 2022

Parlfculars
Ho. of shares Ho. of sharos

(In lakhs) Amount (In lakhs) Amount
&ml(t~ shares Q( Rs. 10 ea!;h Issu~d I ~1J~~crl~ed IIDd fulllll2l1ld UQ

Openln! 150.00 1,500.00 45.00 4!iO.OO
Add: Issued during the year 100.00 1,000.00 105.00 1,050.00
Closlns 250.00 2,500.00 150.00 1,500,00

(B) Other equity

Reserves find surplus

Particulars
Capital Surplus I (Deflclt) In MDCI Reservet Total

Contrlbutfon the Statement of Profit on Deflned
and Loss Benefits

setence as at April 01, 2021 51.84 (1,297.57) (5.24) (1,250.97)

Profit I Iloss) for the year 10.04 10.04
Other comprehensive Income I (loss) for the year (11.54) (11.54 )
Total comprehensive Income for the year . 10.04 (11.54) (1.50)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 51.84 (1,287.53) (16.78) (1,252.47)

Reserves and surplus

Surplus I (Deficit) In
FVTOCI

Particulars Reserve on Total
Capital the Statement of Profit

Defined- and LossContribution Benefits
Blliance as at April 01,2022 51.84 (1,287.53) (16.78) (1,252.47)

Profit I (loss) for the year (74.76) (74.76)
Other comprehensive income I (loss) for the year . (13.00) (13.00)
Total comprehensive Income for the year . (74.76) (13.00) (87.76)

Balance as at March 31, 2023 51.84 (1,362.29) (29.78) (1,340.23)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For M S KA 8: Associates
Chartered Accountants

No.:l05047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Synegra EMSLimited
CIN: U31909GA2016PLC012969

~
UNaik
Whotettme Director

~~."~L
ChIef FInancial Officer

Nltln Kunkollenker
Director
DIN: 00005211

~
Edlan Fernandes
Company Secretary
ICSIMembership No.53614

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17,2023

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17, 2023



SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,202.3

(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

(74.76) 10.04

166.73 94.40

102.18 22.74

(15.62) (23.60)

(25.44) (0.88)

(48.14)

· 0.50
(11.34) (21.23)

· (5.41)
. (13.94)

93.61 62.62
...

(1,100.83) (322.49)

(103.68) . (22.40)

264.08 (886.22)

(328.54) (17.38)

759.99 278.62

(1.02) 3.25

14.05 (20.82)

106.18 16.53.

(296.16) (90B.29)
(2.89) (0.26)

(299.05) (90B.55)

(479.22) (99.35)

4B.14 .

28.23 11.56

(402.85) (87.79)

1,000.00 1,050.00

· (36.72)

206.70

(384.33) 57.31

(84.70) (55.46)

(55.75)

681.92 1,015.13

(19.98) 18.79

19.99 1.20

0.01 19.99

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit! (loss) before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Finance cost

Interest income

Sundry balances written back (net)

(Profit) / Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment

Bed debts written off (net)

Unrealised Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Auctuatlon (net)

Gain on derecognitjo~'flf financial Instrument measured at amortised cost

Waiver of Lease rental

Operating Profit/Closs) before working capital changes

Changes in working capital

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories

Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables

Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets

Decrease / (Increase) In other current assets

(Decrease) /Increase in trade payables

(Decrease) / Increase in Provision

(Decrease) / Increase in financial liabilities

(Decrease) I Increase in other current liabilltles

Cash generated from/(used) in operations

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from/(used) in operating activities (A)

Cash flow from Investing activities

Payment for property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Interest received
Net cash flow from/(used) In Investing activities (8)

Cash flow from Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares

Repayment of Long Term borrowings

Proceeds from Long term borrowings

Proceeds from / (Repayment of) short term borrowings (net)

Interest Payments

Lease Liability payments

Net Cash Flows from/(used) In Financing Activities (C)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprIse

Balances with banks

On current accounts

Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

19.95

0.040.01

0.01 19.99



SYNEGRAEMSLIMITED
STA"T£MENTOF CASHFLOWS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(Amant in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Non Cash Movement In Financing Activity

Particulars
For the Year Ended For tho Yoar Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings (Including current maturities of long term Debt) . (33.76)
Lease l1abllfty 245.55 (53.45)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements

1·66

As per our report of even date
For MS K A 8: Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstra on No.:105047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Synegra EMSLlmltod
CIN: U31909GA2016PlC012969

U
Kf'1CNalk
Wholetlme Director

~~JK.G.~E
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbal
Date: J.l.ay17, 2023

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17, 2023

NltI"K"~
Director
DIN: 00005211

~
Edlan Fernandes
Company Secretary
IC51Membership No.53614



SYNEGRAEMS UMITED
Notes formln gpart of the Financial Statements
(Amount In IN R lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 General I nlormatlon
Synegrn EMSLImited ("Company") was Incorporated on AU8ust 17, 2016. lha Company Is In tho business of mllnufacturo of various cnt080rlos of
electronic and IT products on job work basis and also engages In contract mnnufncturlng for OrlBlnnl Equlpmont Manufacturers ("EMS" business).

Its registered and principal office of business Is located at L·5A Verna Industrial Estate, Verna, Sakete, Gon.

2 Significant accounting policies
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are as under:

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
(a) St:atement of Compliance with Ind AS

TheIC financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Corrpanles Act, 2013 (the ·Act·) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian AccountlnB
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where II newly Issued accounting standard Is Initially
adopted or a revision to an exlstfng accounting standard requires a change In the accounting policy hitherto In use.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for the following Items:·
Items Measurement Basis

Certain Financial Assets and Flnanclals LIabilities Fair Value--~~~--~~~~~~~~~~~~~--~~
Present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan
assets

Net Deffned Benefit (asset) I liability

(c) Classification Into current and non-current:
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and other criteria set out In the
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time between the rendering of service and their realIzation In
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained Its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and noncurrent
ctasslttcetton of assets and liabilities.

(d) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements In conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimate and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of
contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used In the accompanying financial statements are based upon
the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from
these estimates. Estimates and underlyfng assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates, If any, are
recognized In the year In which the estimates are revised and In any future years affected. Refer Note 3 for details on estimates and judgments.

(e) Functional and presentation currency
These flnanclals are presented In Indian Rupees (INR), which Is also the company's functional currency. All amounts disclosed in financial
statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at historical cost of acquisition or constructIon less accumulated depreciation and Impairment losses,
If any. Cost of property, plant and equipment comprises Its purchase prfce net of any discounts and rebates, any Import duties and other taxes
(other than those subsequently recovered from the tax authorftles), any directly attrfbutable expenditure on making the asset ready for Its
intended use, other incidental expenses, decommIssioning costs, If any, and Interest on borrowings attributable to It up to the date It Is ready
for its Intended use. Cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their Intended use at the balance sheet date are shown
under capital work-In-progress.

Subsequent costs are Included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when It Is probable that
future economIc benefits associated with the Item will flow to the Company and the cost of the Item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for 8S a separate asset Is derecognlzed when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged
to Statement of Profit and loss during the year In which they are Incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date Is classified as capital advances
under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under 'Capital work-in-progress'.

Property, plant and equipment's residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and changes, If any, are treated as
changes In accounting estimate.



SYHEGRAEMSLIMITED
Notes formIng part of the Financial Statements
(Amount In IHRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

DepreciatIon methods, estImated useful lives
The Company depreciates Property, plant and equipment using tho straight line method over theIr estimated useful lives as undor :

Property, plant and equIpment Useful Llves_(lny_ears)
Plant and Equipment
Fumlture a Fixtures
Motor Vehicle
Office equipment
Electrlcallnstallatlons
Computer

8
8

5
5

10
3

Based on the technical experts assessment of useful life, certain Items of property plant and equipment are being depreciated over useful lives
different from the prescribed useful lives under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Management believes that such estimated useful lives
are realistic and reflect fair approxlmatlon of the perlod over whIch the assets are likely to be used.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and eqUipment Is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of acquIsition. DepreciatIon on
sale/deduction from property plant and equIpment Is provided up to the date preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains
and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carryIng amount. These are included In statement of Profit and loss under
'Other Income'.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed pertodlcally at each finanCial year end and adjusted prospectively, as
appropriate.

2.3 Other intangible Assets
Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortizatIon.

The Company amortized intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the straIght line method. The estImated usefut lives of Intangible
assets are as follows:

Intangible assets Useful life (In years)
Computer Software 4'
(. Subject to licence period)

Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever there Is an Indication that the Intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an Intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

2.4 Foreign Currency Transactions
(D) Functional and presentation curr~lII..y

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment In which the entity operates
('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented In indian rupee (INR),which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applyfng to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation In foreign exchange rate
between the transaction date and settlement date are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Allmonetary assets and liabilities In foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate prevalltng at the year end and the
exchange differences are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary Items that are measured In terms of histOrical cost In a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions.
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2.5 FaIr value measurement

Tho Company measures flnanclnllnstruments at faIr value at each balance shcot dllte.

Fair value Is the prfce that would be receIved to sell an asset or paId to transfer II liability In an orderly trensecuon between market pertlclpnnts
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement Is bll$ed on the presumption that the trMsnctlon to sell the asset or tronsfer tho IInblUty
ta kes place either:
a) In Ihe principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) In Ihe absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for tho asset or liability accessible to the Compnny.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are epproprlate In the cIrcumstances and for which surtlclont data nrc available to measure fllir
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable Inputs and mInimizIng the use of unobsorvable Inputs. Tho Company's managoment determines
the poliCies and procedures for fair value measurement.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value Is measured or disclosed In the fInancIal statements nrc categorlzed withIn the faIr value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that Is slgnlffcant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
· Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets for Identical assets or liabilitIes
• Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices Included In Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, etther dIrectly (I.C!. as prIces) or

IndIrectly (I.e. derived from prIces).

• Levell - Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable Inputs).

2.6 Revenue Recognition

Sale of Products
Revenue from contract wIth customers Is recognised at poInt In time when the Company satIsfIes the performance obligatIon by transferring
promised goods and servIces to the customer. The revenue Is measured based on transaction price, which Is the fair value of consideration
receIved or receIvable, and Is net of discounts, allowances, returns, goods and services tax and amounts collected on behl!-If of thIrd party,

Rendering of Services
The Company primarfly earns revenue from job work and repair charges. Revenue Is recognised In accordance wIth the terms of the contract
with customers when the Identified performance obligation Is completed. The revenue Is measured based on transaction price, which Is the fair

value of consideration received or receivable and Is net of Goods and Service Tax.

Other Income

Interest Income Is recognised on a basis of effective Interest method as set out In Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no significant
uncertainty as to measurability or collectabUlty exists.

2.7 Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprtstng current tax and deferred tax, are Included In the determination of the net profit or loss for the year,

(a) Current Income tax
Current tax Is the amount of tax payable on the taxable Income for the year as determined In accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. Current tax assets and tax liabilitIes are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and Intends either to settle
on a net bests, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax Is recognised on temporary dIfferences, being differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and corresponding
tax bases used In the computatIon of taxable profit. Deferred tax Is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax Uabll1t1es are recognised for aU temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for aU deductible temporary dIfferences to the extent that It Is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset If such Items relate to taxes on Income levied by
the same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off,

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for their reaHsabrtlty.

Current and deferred tax are recognised In profit or loss, except when they relate to Items that are recognised In Other Comprehensive Income
or directly In equity, In which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised In Other Comprehensive Income or dIrectly In equity
respectively.
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2.8 Leases
As II lessee
The Company's lease asset classes prImarily consist of (eases for office and factory premises. The Company nssosses whether n contract contaIns
a lease, at Inception of a contract. A contract Is, or contains, a (ease If the contract conveys the right to control the use of nn Identlflod nsset
for a period of time In exchange for consIderation. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identified asset, the
Company assesses whether:
(I) the contract Involves the use of an IdentIfied asset
(II) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through tho period of the (elise ond
(III) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a rfght·of·use asset (UROU")and a corresponding lease liability for alliense
arrangements In whIch It Is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term (eases) and low value leases. For these
short- term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operntlng expense on a stralght·lIne basis oyer the term of
the (ease.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented In the Balance Sheet and (ease payments have been classified as financing cash
flows

2.9 Inventories
Inventorfes are valued at the (ower of cost (on weighted average basis) and net realisable value.

Cost of Inventorfes comprises of cost of purchases, costs of c6nverslon and other costs Incurred In bringing the Inventories to their present
location and condition.

ProvisIon of obsolescence on Inventories Is considered on the basis of management's estimate based on demand and market of the Inventories.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

The net realizable value of work In progress Is determined with reference to the sellIng prices of related finished products. Raw materIals and
other supplies held for use In the productIon of finished products lire not wrftten down below cost except In cases where material prices have
declined and It is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed the net realfzable value.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying values of assets I cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for ImpaIrment. If any Indication of Impairment
extsts, the recoverable amount of such assets Is estimated and Impairment Is recognised, If the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount Is the greater of the net selling price and their value In use. Value In use Is arrived at by
discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate pre-tax discount rate to determIne whether there Is any
Indication that those assets have suffered any Impairment loss. When there is an IndicatIon that an Impairment loss recognised for an asset In
earlier accounting periods no longer exIsts or may have decreased, such reversal of ImpaIrment loss Is rp.c:ognl~p.rtIn the StlltE'mF.'ntof Profit and
loss, except In case of revalued assets.

2.11 Provisions and contingent liabilities
ProvisIons are recognIsed when the Company has a present oblfgation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Company will be required to settle the obl1gation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognIsed as a provlston Is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligatIon at the end of the
reporting period, taking Into account the risks and uncertaInties surroundIng the oblfgatlon. In the event the time value of money Is material,
provision Is carried at the present value of the cash flows requIred to settle the oblfgatlon.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when approprfate, the
risks specntc to the liability. When discounting is used, the Increase In the provIsion due to the passage of time Is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are dIsclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of whIch will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation
that arises from past events, where It Is eIther not probable that an outflow of resources wilt be required to settle the obligatIon or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. When there is a possIble obligation or a present obligatIon In respect of whIch the likelihood of outflow
of resources Is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
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2.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cosh and cash equIvalent In the balance sheet comprIse cash lit banks, cash on hand nnd short-term dopcsrts not of bl'lnk overdraft with lin
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to IIIlInSignificant risk of chongos In valuo,
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cosh oqulvalents Includo cash on hand, cesh In banks and short· term deposits net of bnnll
overdraft.

2.13 Flnanclllllnstrumonts
A financial Instrument Is any contract that gIves rise to a financial asset of one entity and a flnancll'll liability or equity Instrument of another
entity.

(II) Financial assets
(I) Initial recognition and measurement

At Initial recognItion, financial asset Is measured at Its fair value plus, In the case of a ffnanclal assot not lit fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the finanCial asset. Transaction costs of ffnanclalassets carried at fair value
through profft or loss are expensed In profit or loss.

(II) Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified In followingcategories:
a) at amortized cost; or
b) at fair value through other comprehensive Income; or
c) at fair value through profit or loss.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the ffnanclal assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Amortized 00: Asset.s that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal nod
Interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest Income from these financial assets Is Included In finance Income using the effective Interest
rate method (EIR).

EA!I: YAll!! 1h!:2!.!gh !2!Mr comprehensive Income .I.EYQQl: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for seiling the finanCial
assets, where the assets' cash (tows represent solely payments of prIncipal and Interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
Income (FVOCI).Movements In the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive Income (OCI), except for the recognition of
Impairment gains or losses, Interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized In Statement of Profit lind Loss. When
the financial asset Is derecognlzed, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized In OClls reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and
loss and recognized In other galnsl (losses). Interest Income from these financial assets Is Included In other Income using the effective Interest
rate method.

E!!r ~ through profit Q.[ 12ll: Assets that do not meet the criterta for amortized cost or FVOCIare measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Interest Income from these financial assets Is Included In other Income.

~ Instruments: All equity Investments In scope of Ind AS109 are measured at fair value. Equity Instruments which are held for trading and
contingent consideration recognised by an acqulrer In a business combination to which Ind AS103applies are classified as at Fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPl). For all other equity Instruments, the Company may make an Irrevocable election to present In other comprehensive
Income subsequent changes In the fair value. The Company makes such election on an Instrument· by-Instrument basis. The classlflcatfon Is made
on Initial recognition and Is Irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classIfy an equity Instrument as ,at FVTOCl,then all fair value changes on the Instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized In the OCI. There Is no recycling of the amounts from OCIto paL, even on sale of Investment. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gaIn or loss within equity.

Equity Instruments Included within the FVTPLcategory are measured at fair value with all changes recognized In the profit and loss.

(III) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECl) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on financial assets.

For recognition of ImpaIrment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant
Increase in the credit risk since Initial recognition. If credit risk has not Increased significantly, 12·month ECl Is used to provide for Impairment
loss. However, If credit nsk has increased slgntrfcantly, lifetime ECl is used. If In subsequent years, credit quality of the Instrument improves
such that there Is no longer a significant increase In credit nsk since !nltlal recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing Impairment loss
allowance based on 12 month ECL.
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life time ECls are the expected credIt losses resulting from all possIble default events ovor tho oxpoctod life of II flnnncialinstrument, Tho 12
month ECl Is a portion of the lifetime ECl which results from dofault events that are pesslblo within 12 months aftor tho yenr end,

Eells the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company In nccordenco With the contract lind nlllhe cash flows thot
the entity expects to receive (t.e. all shortfalls), dIscounted lit the original EIR.When estimating tho cash flows, on entity Is required to consldor
aU contractual terms of the financIal Instrument (IncludIng prepayment, oxtenslon eic.) over the expoctod lifo of tho financial Instrument,
Howevor, In rare cases when the expected lire of the financial Instrument cannot be ostlmatod rollably, thon tho ontlty Is required to use tho
remaIning contractual term of the flnanclallnstrumont.

In soneral, It Is presumed that credit rIsk has slgntrlcantly Increased since Initial recognition If the payment Is more thnn 30 doys past duo,

Eel ImpaIrment loss allowance (or reversal) recognIzed durIng the year Is recognIzed as Income/expense In the statement of profit and loss, In
balance sheet ECl for financIal Insets measured at amortized cost Is presented as an allowance, t.e, as nn Integral port of th~ measurement of
those assets In the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carryIng amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, tho Companydoes not
reduce Impairment allowance from the gross cllrrylng amount,

(Iv) Derecognltlon of fInancIal assets
A financial asset Is derecognlzed only when
a) the rights to receIve cash flows from the financIal asset Is transferred or
b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the fInancIal asset, but assumes a contractual obligatIon to pay the cash flows to
one or more reCIpIents,

Where the financial assot Is transferred then In that case financial auet Is de recognized only If substantially all risks and rewards of ownershIp of
the financIal asset Is transferred. Where the entity has not transferred substantIally all risks and rewards of ownership of the financIal asset, the
financial asset Is not de recognIzed.

(b) FinancIal liabilities
(I) InItIal recognItion and measurement

FInancIal liabilities are classIfied, at Initial recognItion, as fInancial liabilIties at faIr value through profit or loss and at amortIzed cost, as
appropriate.
All financIal liabilities are recognIzed InItially at fair value and, In the case of borrOWingsand payables, net of dIrectly attributable transactIon
costs.

(II) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on theIr classIfication, as descrIbed below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through pro/It or loss
Financial liabilitIes at fair value through profit or loss Include financIal liabilities held for tradIng and financIal liabilIties desIgnated upon InItial
recognItIon as at faIr value through profit or loss. Separated embedded derivatives are also classIfied as held for trading unless they are
designated as ofrectlvo hedging Instruments, GaIns or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognIzed In the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Loons and borrowings
After Initial recognitIon, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortIzed cost using the EIRmethod. Gains and
losses are recognIzed In Statement of Profit and loss when the liabilIties are derecognlzed as well as through the EIRamortIzatIon process,
Amortized cost Is calculated by takIng Into account any dIscount or premIum on acqutsltlon and fees or costs that are an Integl(ll part of the EIR,
The EIRamortIzation Is Included as fInance costs In the Statement of Profit and loss,

(III) Derecognltlon
A financIal liability Is derecognlzed when the obligation under the liability Is dlschartled or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability Is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existIng liabilIty are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as tho derecognltlon of the original liabilIty and the recognition of a new liability. The
dIfference In the respectIve carrying amounts Is recognized In the Statement of Profit and loss as finance costs.

'.
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(c) Offsetting financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount Is reported In the balance sheet where there Is n loglllly enrorceablo right to ofhal
the recognized amounts and there Is an Intention to settle on II not bllsls or ren!lzo the asset and sottle the !lability simultaneously. The logally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable In the normal course of business and In tho ovont of default,
Insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.14 Employee Benefits

(a) Short-term obligatIons

Liabilities for wages and salaries, IncludIng non-monetary benefIts that are expected to be settled wholly withIn 12 months aftor the end of tho
year In which the employees render the related service are recognIzed In respect of employees' services up to the end of the year and Me
measured at the amounts expected to be paId when the .liabilitIes are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligatIons In the balance sheet.

(b) Defined Contribution schemes

(I) Company's contribution to the provident (und and employee's state Insurance fund are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss of the yenr
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There lire no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective
authorities.

(II) DefIned Benefit plans

GratuIty:
The Company provIdes for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan") covering eligIble employees In accordance with the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. The GratUity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, IncapacItation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary. The Company's liability Is actuarially determIned (using the Projected Unit
Credit method) at the end of each year.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on ptan assets(excludlng net Interest) Is reflected Immediately In the
balance sheet with a charge/credit recognised In Other Comprehensive Income ("OCI') In the period In which they occur.

Remeasurements are recognIsed In OCI Is reflected Immediately In Surplus / (Deficit) In the Statement of Profit and Lossand Is not reclassified to
profit or loss In subsequent perIods.

(fll) Other long term employee benefits

Company's liabilities towards compensated absences to employees which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end
of the year are accrued on the basis of valuations ,as at the Balance sheet date, carried out by an Independent actuary using Projected Unit
Credit Method.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes In actuarial assumptions and are recognised immediately
In the statement of profit and loss.

2.15 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnIngs per share Is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Earnings considered In ascertaining the Company's earnings per share Is the net profit or
loss for the year after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the year. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year and for all the years presented Is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversIon of
potentIal equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstandIng, without a corresponding change In resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year Is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.16 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of Interest and other costs that an entity Incurs In connection with the borrowIng of funds. Borrowing costs also include
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Lossexcept:
0) Borrowing costs dIrectly attnbutable to the acquisition or constructIon of assets thnt necessarily takos II substnntlal ported of time to 80t
ready for Its Intended use are capItalised as part of the cost of such assets.
b) Expenses Incurred on raisIng long term borrowings ere arnerttsed using effective Interest rate method ovor the porlod of borrowings.

Investment Income earned on the temporary Investment of funds of specifIc borrowings pondlng their expenditure on quallfyln8 essets Is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligIble for capitalisation.

2.17 Accountfng for Government Grants

Government grants In terms of Incentives are recognized only when there Is reasonable assurance that (I) the Company will comply with the
condItIons attached to them, and (tI) the grant/subsidy will be receIved.
The Government grant In the form of Incentives are recognized as Income on a systematic basts In tho Statement of ProfIt and Loss ovor tho
periods necessary to match them with the related costs, Which they are Intended to compensate and the achievement of the performance
crlterta for beIng eligIble for receipt of the grant. The grants aro presented under 'Other Operating lncomo' In tho Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.18 Events occurrlng after the balance sheet date

Where material, events cccvrnng after the date of the balance sheet are considered up to the date of approval of accounts by the Doard of
Directors.

2.19 Rounding off amounts

All amounts disclosed In financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

3 SignIfIcant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptIons about the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estImates and essoctated assumptlons are based on hIstorical experience and

other factors that are consIdered to be relevant. Actual results may dIffer from these estImates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are revIewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estImates are recognised prospectively.
Information about assumptions, judgements and estimation uncertainties that have a sIgnifIcant risk of resulting In a material adjustment In the
year ending March 31, 2023 are as below:

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment lind Intangible assets
As described In the sIgnificant accounting policIes, the Company revIews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equIpment and
Intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. Useful lives of Intllnglble assets Is determIned on the basis of estImated benefits to be
derived from use of such IntangIble assets. These reassessments may result In change In the depreciation /amortlsatlon expense In future

periods.

(b) Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that It Is probable that taxable profit wIll be available agaInst which the
losses can be utilIzed. SIgnificant management judgment Is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
The Company neither have any taxable temporary difference nor any tax plannIng opportunitIes available that could partly support the
recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. On thIs basis, the Company has determined that It cannot recognIze deferred tax assets on the
tax lossescarried forward. Refer Note 34

(c) Actuarial Valuation
The detenmlnation of Company's lIab1l1ty towards defined benefit obligation to employees Is made through Independent actuarial valuation
Including determInatIon of amounts to be recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss and In Other Comprehensive Income. Such valuation
depend upon assumptions determined after taking Into account discount rate, salary growth rate, expected rate of return, mortality and
attrttton rate. Due to the complexItIes Involved In the valuation and (ts long-term nature, a defined benefit obligatlon Is hIghly sensitive to
changes In these assumptions. (nformatlon about such valuation Is provided In notes to the financial statements.

(d)
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4.1 St:~ndards (Including amendments) Issued but not yet effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCN) has notifIed Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated Morch 31, 2023 to
amend certain Ind ASs which are effective from 01 April 2023:
Below Is a summary of such amendments:

(I) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendment to Ind AS 1 Presentation of financial statemonts
The MCA Issued amendments to Ind AS 1, provldlnB guidance to holp entities meet the accountlnB policy dlsctosure requlrernents. The
amendments aim to make accounting policy disclosures more Informative by replacing the requirement to disclose 'slgnlflcllnt nccountln8
policies' with 'material accounting policy Information'. The amendments also provide guidance under what Circumstance, tho accounting policy
Information Is likely to be considered material and therefore requiring dIsclosure.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023. The Company Is currently revlsltfng their
ac(ountlng policy Information disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended requirements.

(II) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8 Accounting policies, changes In accountfng estimates and errors
The amendment to Ind AS 8, which added the definition of accounting estimates, clarifies that the effects of a change In an Input or
measurement technique are changes In accounting estimates, unless resulting from the correction of prior period errors. These amendments
clarify how entities make the distinction between changes In accounting estimate, changes In accounting policy and prIor period errors. The
distinction Is Important, because changes In accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future transactions and other future events, but
changes In accounting pollcles are generally applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past events as well as the current period.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023. The amendments are not expected to have a
material Impact on the Company's financial statements.

(III) Deferred Tax related to Assets and LIabilities ariSing from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12 Income taxes
The amendment to Ind AS 12, requires entities to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on Initial retognltlon, give rise to equal amounts of
taxable and deductible temporary differences. They will typically apply to transactions such as leases of lessees and decommissioning obligations
and will require the recognition of additional deferred tax assets and lIabllfties.

The amendment should be appUed to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earUest comparative period presented. In addition,
entities should recognise deferred tax assets (to the extent that It Is probable that they can be utilised) and deferred tax liabilities at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with:
• rtght-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and
• decommissioning, restoration and similar Uabllitles, and the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the related assets.

The cumulative effect of recogntstng these adjustments Is recognised In retained earnings, or another component of equity, as appropriate. ind
AS 12 did not prevtously address how to account for the tax effects of on-balance sheet leases and similar transactions and various approaches
were considered acceptable. Some entities may have already accounted for such transactions consistent with the new requirements. These
entities will not be affected by the amendments.
The Company is currently assessing the Impact of the amendments.

(Iv) The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily In the nature of clarifications.

4.2 Standards that became effective during the year
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022 to amend

the following Ind ASwhich are effective from 01 April 2022 :

(i) Onerous Contracts- Cost of Fulfilling a Contract - Amendments to Ind AS 37
Ind AS 37 defines an onerous contract as a contract In which the unavoidable costs (costs that the Company has committed to pursuant to the
contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under It.

The amendments to Ind AS 37 clarify, that the costs relating directly to the contract consist of both:
• The incremental costs of fulfilling that contract- e.g. direct labour and material; and
• An allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts: e.g, Allocation of depreciation charge on property. plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract.

These amendments had no impact on the year-end financial statements of the Company as there were no Contracts.
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SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial Statements

(Amount In IN Rlakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

(II) References to the Conceptual framework· Amendments ter Ind AS 103
The amendments update a reference to the Conceptual framowork for financial Reporting without changing the accounting requirements for
business combInations. The amendment also add a new exception In Ind AS 103 for liabilities nod contingent lIabllltlos,

(III) Property, Plant and EquIpment: Proceeds Before Intended Use· Amendment to Ind AS 16
The amendment to Ind AS 16 clarifies that any excess of net sale proceeds of Items produced ovor the cost of tostlng, If tiny, shall not be
recognised In the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an Item of property, plant, Ill'"
eqetprnent,

These amendments had no Impact on the year·end finanCial statements of the Company tiS there were no sales of such Items,

(Iv) Ind AS 101: fIrst Time AdoptIon of Indian Accounting Standards· Subsidiary as a first tim. adopttr
The amendment provides that II subsidiary that uses the exemption In paragraph D16(a) of Ind AS 101 may elect, In Its flnonclal statements, to
measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations In Its financial statements using the amounts reported by the parent, based
on the parent's date of transitIon to Ind AS, If no adjustments were made for consolidatIon procedures and for the effects of tho business
combination In whIch the parent acquired the subsidIary. ThIs election Is also available to an associate or Joint venture that uses exemption In

paragraph 016(a) of Ind AS 101.

(v)

These amendments had no Impact on the financIal statements of the Company as It Is not a first· tIme adopter.

Ind AS 109 FInancial Instruments . Fees In the '10 per cent' test for derecognltlon of financIal liability
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity Includes when assessIng whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability life substantially
different from the terms of the origInal flnanclaillabflity. These fees Include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
IncludIng fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the othe(s behalf,
These amendments had no Impact on the financIal statements of the Company as there were no modlflcatfons of the Company's ffnanclal
Instruments during the year.

Taxation in faIr value measurements - Amendments to Ind AS <11
The amendment removes the requirement In Ind AS 41 for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation When measuring fair value. ThIs aligns the

fatr va lue measurement '" lnd AS41 W1th tho _~,","H " tnd AS 113, , ... V.,...... uremeot. ~ ...,,~~

r~\'h.-~ a- fill'l~~. !l~ ...-,,~;~
Ir(;~r:RtU" )~~~~~-~:~.,;~-,~~~..!.,

, ......._:>

(vi)
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SYNEGIU EMS LIMITED
Notos formfng part of the FInancIal Statements

(Amountln INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON CURRENT)

Particulars
As at Asat

Mllrch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Security Deposits 0.18 0.16
In Fixed deposit with maturity of more than 12 months from Balance Sheet date" 300.00
Total 0.18 300.16

• Fixed deposits are under lien with the banks as margin money against credit facility avalted by the Company.

8 NON·CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Particulars
Asat As at

Mllrch 31, 2023 Mllrch 31,2022

Income Tax Deducted at Source 7.63 4.74
Total 7.63 4.74

9 OTHER NON· CURRENT ASSETS

As at As at
Particutars March 31 2023 March 31 2022

Balances WIth statutory/Government authorlties 293.18 87.44
Total 293.18 87.44

10 INVENTORIES

(AT LOWER OF COST OR NET REALISABLE VALUE)

Particulars
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Raw materials 746.90 85.93

Raw materials in transit 256.85 405.59
Work-In-progress 515.73 .
Finished goods 67.73 1.87
Stores, spares and packing materials 29.28 22.27
Total 1,616.49 515.66

1) The Cost of raw materials inventories recognised as expense during the year
2} Carrying value of Inventories hypothecated as securIty by the company

(Refer note 21 and note 37)

5,247.23
1,587.21

2,158.93

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Unsecured
-Considered good (refer note below) 137.84 34.16
-Considered doubtful . .
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts -
Total 137.84 34.16

Note
Receivable from related ~arties {Refer Note 41}
Digisol Systems Limited 107.21 0.06
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SYNEGRA EMS LIMITEO
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The net carrying value of trade receivables Is considered a reascnabte approximation of fair value.

Trade receivable are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 30 to 90 days.

Partfculars
Aut Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022

(I) Undisputed Trade receivables • considered good
UnbHled Dues
Not Due 121.15 25.71

Less than 6 months 16.69 8.45

6 months- 1 year

1·2 years

2·3 years .
More than 3 years

Total 137.84 34.16

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars
Aut As at

March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Balances with banks:
On current accounts . 19.95

Cash on hand 0.01 0.04
Total 0.01 19.99

13 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Particulars
As at Aut

March 31 2023 March 31 2022
In Fixed deposit with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months from 555.00 662.62
Balance Sheet date'

Total 555.00 662.62

, Fixed Deposit under lien with (Small Industrial Development Bank Of India) against
Term Loan. (Refer Note 19)

• Fixed Deposit under lien with (HDFC Bank LImited) against bank overdraft. (Refer
Note 21)

55.00

662.62

14 LOANS (CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS)

Particulars
As at As at

March 31 2023 March 31 2022
(Unsecured. considered good)
Loan to Employees 0.48 1.22

Total 0.48 1.22

15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)

Part! cu lars
As at Aut

March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Advance to employees 0.05
Production LInked Incentive Receivable (Refer note 64) 280.00 135.77

Interest receivable on fixed deposit 3.04 15.65
Total 283.09 151.42

f 6 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars
As at

March 31 2023
As at

March 31 2022
Prepaid expenses ..;" - ::' . i> '.
Balance with government authoritl~s' ~.:'.,;..''-':.. :

rt .....,.,.,1
Advances to vendors ;-:r,.>

10.00
113.40

86.67

7.72

72.00

7.55
Total ,::::?, 210.07 87.27



SYHEGRAEMSLIMITED

Notes formIng part of the Financial Statements

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

17 eQUlTYSHARE CAPITAL

Particulars
Aut As tit

Morch 31, 2023 Mllrch 31, 2022
Al!thorlzed Share Capita I

2,50,00,000 (Previous year: 1,50,00,000) equity shares of INR 10/· ench 2,500,00 1,500.00
2,500.00 1,500.00

Equity shares

Issued. subscribed and paid up

2,50,00,000 (Previous year: 1,50,00,000) equity shares of IHR 10/· each fully paid up 2,500.00 1,500.00
Total 2,500.00 1,500.00

(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at As at As at Mat
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Ho of shares Amount In IHR lakhs

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,50,00,000 45,00,000 l,JOO.OO 'bO.OO
Add: Issuedduring the year 1,00,00,000 1,05,00,000 1,000.00 1,050.00
less: Bought back during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year 2,50,00,000 1,50,00,000 2,500.00 1,500.00

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to sheres
The Company has only one class of Equity shares having II par value of INR 10/· per share. Each holder of Equity shares Is entitled to one vote per share
and each Equity share carries an equal right to dividend and In case of repayment of capitol. The dividend proposed by the Boord of Directors Is subject to
the approval of the shareholders In the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the shareholders are eligible to receive the remnlnlng
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, In proportion to their shareholdlngs.

(c)
Shares held by the holdIng company

Aut Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Smartlfnk HoldIngs LImIted

2,50,00,000 (PrevIous year: 1,50,00,000) equIty shares of INR10/· each fully paid up 2,500.00 1,500.00

(d) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5" of .the IIggregate shares In the Company

As at As lit

Hame of the shareholders
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Humber of shares
"of holdIng In the

Number of shares
" of holding In the

class class

EquIty shares of INR 10 each fully paid

Smartlfnk HoldIngs limIted 2,50,00,000 100% 1,50,00,000 100%

(e) As per records of the Company, IncludIng Its register of shareholders/members and other declaratIons received from shareholders
regardIng beneficIal Interest. the above shareholdlng represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(f) Details of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

As at March 31,2023
Promoter name

" of total shares
" Change durfng

No. of sheres
the year

Smartllnk HoldIngs limited 2,50,00,000 100% 67%

Total 2,50,00,000 100% 67%

As at March 31, 2022
Promoter name

No. of Shares " of total shares
" Change durIng

the year

Smartlfnk Holdings limited 1,50,00,000 100% 233%
Total 1,50,00,000 100" 233%

(g) No shares have been Issued as bonus shares or for consIderation other than cash by the Company during the period of fIve years
Immediately preceding the current year end.

(h) No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately precedIng the current year

end.



SYNEGRA ElliS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

18 OTI-IER EQUITY

A. C~pltal Contribution"

Particulars
Aut Aut

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Opctnlng balance 51.84 51.84
Add: AddItions during the year
Clos1ng balance 51.84 51.84
• The total capital contribution Is on account of loan from Director at II lower rate than market rate of Interest.

B. FVTOCI reserve on defined benefits (net of tax) "

Particulars
Aut As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

OpenIng balance (16.78) (5.24)
Add: Addition during the year (13.00) (11.54)
Closing balance (29.78 (16.78)
• This represents remeasurements, comprlstng of actuarial Bains and losses and the return on pion assets (excludlnB net Interest) on
employee defined benefit plans.

C. Surplus I (Deficit) In the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars Aut As lit
March 31, 2023 March 3r. 2022

Openlog balance (1,287.53) (1,297.57)
Add: Net Profit I (Loss) forthe year (74.76) 10.04
Closing balance (1,362.29) (1,287.53)

ITOTAL OTHER EQUITY (1,340.23)1 (1,252.47)1



SYNEGRAEMSLIMITED
Notes forming part of the FInancIal Statements
(Amount In INRlakhs, unless otherwIse stated)

19 BORROWINGS (NON CURReNT)

Aut AlIIt
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Secured
Term Loan (Refer Note Oelow) 206.8-1
Less: Current maturity of long term loan 54.00

152.84
Total 152.84 .

Foot note
During the year ended March 31, 2023, new term loan from SIDDIwas IIvIIllCldamounttng to Rs. 206.84 lllkhs and carrlCls Interost ®
8.25%. The term loan Is repayable In 30 equal monthly Instalments after n moratorium of 6 months.
Term loan Is secured by a first charge, by way of hypothecation of all movable assets (except Inventory and tradll receivables), lien on
fixed deposIt of Rs. 55 lakhs and Corporate Guarantee of Smartllnk HoldIngs LImIted (Holding Company) of Rs. 270lakhs.

As per the loan sanction letter, the saId loan was taken for the purpose of purchase of Plant & MachInery. The Company hns used such
borrowings for the purposes as stated In the loan sanction letter.

20 PROVISION (NON ·CURRENT)

Particulars Asat Aut
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Provision for gratuity (funded) (Refer Note 39) 21.50 11.47
Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 6.63 5.30
Total 28.13 16.77

21 BORROWINGS (CURRENT)

PartIculars Aut As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Borrowings measured at Amortised Cost
Secured
Dank overdraft 2.16
Current maturity of long term loans 54.00
Unsecured
Loan from director 1,113.37 1,500.00
Total 1,169.53 1,500.00

Foot note
Secured Loan:
Overdraft with bank was secured by a charge by way of lien on fixed deposits of Rs. 662.62 lakhs upto February 15, 2023.
Overdraft with bank Is secured, by a charge ranking part passu, by way of hypothecation of all present and future Inventory and trade
receivables, Corporate Guarantee from Smartllnk Holdings Limited (Holding Company) of INR 1300 lakhs and lien on Fixed Deposit of
the Holding Company of Rs. 660 lakhs.

Unsecured Loan
Loan from Director taken for a tenure of 365 days.

Net Debt Reconclliatlon
Analysis of net debts and movement In net debts for each of the period presented'

Particulars
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash and Cash equivalents 0.01 19.99
liquid Investments 555.00 962.62
Current BorrOWings (1,169.53) (1,500.00)
Non·current borrowings (152.84)
Net Debt (767.36) (517.39)

The details of financial and non financial assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are disclosed In Note 37.

22 TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.92 4.61
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,196.56 473.65

Total 1,201.48 47B.26

Foot note
, ---....__,_

/ .~:. '. Payment towards trade payables Is made as pl!\"'tlie terms and conditions of the contract/purchase orders. Generally th
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SYNEGRA EMSLIMITED

Notes formIng part of the FInancIal Statements

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwfse stated)

The dIsclosures under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devolopment Act, 2006 hovo been made In respect of such vendors to
the extent they could be Identlffed as micro, small and medium enterprises on the basIs of InformatIon nvallable wIth the Company,

Particulars
ASIIt AI ftt

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
OutstandIng prIncipal amount and Interest as on 31st March •
• PrIncIpal Amount 10.IlS -1,61
• Interest due thereon

The amount of Interest paId by the buyer In terms of section 16 of the MSMEDAct, 0.03
along with the amount of the payment made to the SUpplier beyond the appointed
day dur!ng each accountIng year.

The amount of Interest due and payable for the perlod of delay In makIng payment 0,15 0,03
(which have been paid but beyond the appoInted day durIng the year) but wIthout
addIng the Interest specIfied under the MSMEDAct.

The amount of interest accrued and remaInIng unpaId at the end of each accounting 0,15 0,03
year

The amount of further Interest remaInIng due and payable even In succeedIng years,
until such date when the Interest dues as above are actually paId for the purpose of
dIsallowance as a deductIble expenditure under section 23 of the saId Act

PartIculars
Asat Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(I) MSME

Unbilled Dues
Payable Not Due S.61 4,61

Less than 1 year 1,87

1·2 years
2·3 years

More than 3 years
Total 10.48 4,61

(I) Others

Unbllled Dues 30,32 10,07

Payable Not Due 440.20 40S.88

Less than 1 year 720,48 29.57

1·2 years 15,09

2·3 years 10.04

More than 3 years .

Total 1,191.00 473.65

23 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

As at A$ at
Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Interest accrued but not due 011 loans 0.14
Capital CredItors 90.76 284,47

Employee Payable 29.92 16.00

Total 120.82 300.47

24 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

.t.sat Aut
Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Statutory dues payable 6.00 4.59

Advance from Customers 143.71 3S.94

Total 149,71 43.53

25 PROVISION (CURRENT)

As at As at
Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Provision for gratuity (funded) (Refer Note 39) 1.64 1.46

Provtslon for leave encashment (unfunded) 2.07 1.63

Total 3.71 3.09



SYNEGRAEMSLIMITED

Notes formIng part of the FInancial Statements
(Amount In INRlakhs, unless otherwIse stated)

26 RE'VENUEFROM OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended For tho Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Reyenue from Contract with Customers
Sale of manufactured products 4,994,64 2,369,38
Service Repair Income 1,41 17,31
Service Job Work 94,n 26,50
Sale of Scrap 10.11 2.34

pther Operating Income
Production Linked Incentive Income (Refer note 64) 280.00 135.77
SEISDuty Scrip Income 7.97
Total 5,380.88 2,559.27

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Geographical markets March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Exports . 212.35

Domestic 5,100.88 2,203.18

Total revenue from contracts with customers 5,100.88 2,415.53

The Company derives Its revenue from contract with customers for the transfer of goods and services at a poInt In time In a
manner In which the Company transfers the control of goods and services to customers. The Company Is engaged maInly In the
busIness of manufacture, sale and servicing of nelworklng products.

Contract Balances

Movement In contract liabilities during the year
Advance from Customers

Current Year Previous year
Opening Balance 38.94 24.42

less: Revenue Recognised 38.94 24.42

Add: Amount received 143.71 38.94

Closing Balance 143.71 38.94

27 OTHeR INCOME

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars March J 1, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest Income
• on fixed deposIts desIgnated at amortized cost 15.62 23.60

Interest income (MSME) 0.04 .
Interest on income tax refund 0.19 0.36

Sundry balances written back 25.44 0.88

Foreign exchange fluctuation 28.11 28.03

Gain on derecognftlon of financial Instrument measured at amortised cost 5.41

GaIn on sale/disposal of Property plant and equipment (net) 48.14 .
Waiver of Lease rental . 13.94

Miscellaneous Income 2.39 0.05

Total 119.93 72.27

28 COSTOF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars
For the Year Ended for the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Inventory at the beginning of the year 491.52 190.87

Add: Purchases 5,759..46 2,459.58

less: Inventory at the end of the year 1,003.75 491.52

Total 5,247.23 2, \~8.93

/,:~::':~,::52~~~~,,~:-. W
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29 CHAJIGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN·PROGRESS

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Endod

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Invel1torles at the beginning of the year

Flnlsh?d goods 1.87 0.10
Work -n-progress .

1.87 0.10

Less: Inventories at the end of the year

FInIshed goods 67.73 1.87

Work -n- progress 515.73
583.46 1.87

Net Decrease I (Increase) In Inventories (581.59) (1.77)

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Salaries, allowances, bonus and ex-gratla 272.29 196.75

Contribution to ProvIdent and other funds (Refer ~ote 39) 12.32 12.19

Contribution to Gratuity fund (Refer Note 39) 3.96 2.03

Staff welfare and other employee expenses 29.22 10.05

Total 317.79 221.02

Refer note 62

31 FINANCE COSTS

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest on working capItal loan 12.51 18.85

Interest on lease liability 17.48 1.03

Interest on unsecured loan from director 65.71

Interest on Term Loan 5.50 2.73

Interest on others 0.98 0.13

Total 102.18 22.74

32 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023, March 31,2022

DepreciatIon on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 5) 166.58 93.78

Amortisation on Intangible Assets (refer note 6) 0.15 0.62

Total 166.73 94.40
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33 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars
For tho Year Endod For the YOM Endod

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Consumption of store and spares 3.66 0.75

RepaIrs ft maintenance expenses
Machinery 10.01 0.12
Others 11.14 3.27

Conveyance and travelling expenses 4.53 2.29
CommunIcatIon Cost 0.09 0.10
Insurance charges 12.12 12.98
Bank charges and commIssIon 10.26 6.05
legal and professional charges 59.92 29.44
Rates and Taxes 9.07 2.53
Membership and subscription 0.88 0.75
Bad debts written off 0.50
Audltor'S RemuneratIon' 3.04 2.05
Computer consumables, software ft maintenance charges 1.19 0.93
Commission on Sales 17.66
Director's fees 5.50 9.00
OffIce expenses 5.61 2.94
Power and fuel 32.22 19.47
Annual maIntenance charges 2.47 2.25
ApplicatIon, RegistratIon and Filing Fees 8.68 9.02
Production Linked Incentfve ReceIvable written off (Refer note 64) 135.77 .
MIscellaneous expenses 6.87 4.08
Total 323.23 126.18

'Note: The following Is the break-up of Audltor's remuneralfon (excluding Input credit GST availed, If any)

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2022

PartIculars

As auditor:

Statutory audIt 2.50 2.00

In other capacity:

CertificatIon fees 0.50

ReImbursement of expenses 0.04 0.05

Total 3.04 2.05
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34 DEFERREDTAXASSET! (LIABILITY)(NET)

(A) Defened tax relates to the following:

As at
March 31, 2023

Aut
March 31, 2022

7.28 '1.5-1
1.91 1.S1
9.19 6.05

9.19 6.05
9.19 6.05

Particulars

Deferred tax assets
On prwlsion for employee benefits
On others

Deferred tax liabilities
On property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax asset (net)

In absence of reasonable certainty of taxable Income In future years, during the year ended March 31, 2023 and In previous year,
the Company has created deferred tax asset and unabsorbed depreciation and other Items to the extent of deferred tax Liability.

Deferred tax assets of Rs. 229.11 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 229.11 lakhs) and Rs. 105.56 lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs. 96.37 lakhs)
have not been recognized In respect of unabsorbed business losses and unabsorbed depreciation losses respectively, In the absence
of reasonable certainty of generating adequate taxable profits to offset these losses. .

(B) Recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of deferred tax lIablllty In balance sheet
As at

March 31, 2023
Particulars As at

March 31, 2022

9.19
(9.19)

6.05

(6.05)

Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax Ilabltltfes

Deferred tax assets! (liabilities), net

(C) Deferred tax assets! (liabilities) to be recognIzed In Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023

Tax liability
Tax asset

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2022
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EARNINGS I LOSS PER SHARE

BaSic earnings I (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit I (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders by the
welBhted average number of equity shares outst&ndlng during the year.

Particulars

The following reflects the Income and share data used In the basic and diluted EPScom _utntlons:
For tho Year Ended For tho Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

10.04
49,02,740

10.00

0.20
0.20

Ordlnnryequlty shareholders
Profit I (loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS
Face Value per share

Basic earnings per share (INR)
Diluted earnings per share (INR)

(74.76)
1,58,49,315

10.00

(0.47)
(0.47)

CONTINGfNT /.lABILITIES

There are No contingent liabilities to be disclosed as at March 31, 2023 and MIlrch 31, 2022.

ASSETS PlEDGED AS SECURITY

Current assets
Bank balances other than cosh and cosh equivalent
Inventories
Trade Receivables

Notes

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:
Aut

March 31,2022

13 55.00
10 1,587.21
11 137.84

1,780.05

7

1,780.05

Total Current assets pledged as security

Non-Current assets
Other ffnanclal assets

Total Non-Current assets pledged as security

Aut
March 31, 2023

Total Assets pledged as security

662.62

662.62

300.00
300.00

962.62

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2023
As at

March 31, 2022

Capital Commitments
Other Commitments

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined Contribution Plans

Particulars

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts In the Statement of Profit and Loss -
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31.2022

12.32Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance
Refer Note 30)

12.19
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
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(8) Deflnod benefit plans
a) Gratuity payable to employees

Particulars
Aut As lit

March 31, 2023 Mtlrch 31, 2022

I) Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% 7.26)1
Rate of f ncrease In Salary 6.00% 6.0001

Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 12.31 12.71

Attrition rate 9.00% 9.00~

Mortality table used IALM(2012·14) ou, IALM(2012·14) uu.

It) Changes In the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginnIng of the year 49.86 33.95

Interest cost 3.57 2.27

Current service cost 2.93 2.15

Benefits paid (3.96)

Actuarla l (gain)' loss on obligations 13.07 11.49

Present 'Value of obligation at the end of the year· 65.47 49.86

III) Change In the fair value of plan assets:
Opening fair value of plan assets 36.93 34.19

Adjustment to openIng fair value of asset 0.40

Interest Income 2.54 2.39

Contributions by employer 6.75

Benefits paid (3.96)

Return on plan assets exctudlng Interest Income 0.07 (0.05)

ClosIng fair value of plan assets 42.33 36.93

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Iv) Expense recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 2.93 2.15

Interest cost (net) 1.03 (0.12)

Total expenses recognIzed In the Statement Profit and Loss· 3.96 2.03

'Included In Employee benefits expense (Refer Note 30).

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

v) Expense recognized In Other comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gaIn) , loss on Obligation for the period 13.07 1'.49

Return on plan assets excludIng Interest Income (0.07) 0.05

Net actuarial (!lalns) , losses recognIsed In OCI 13.00 11.54

Particulars As lit As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

v1) Assets and liabilities recognized In the Balance Sheet:
Present value of unfunded obligation as at the end of the year 65.47 49.86

FaIr Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 42.33 36.93

Net asset' (liability) recognized In Balance Sheet- (23.14) (12.93)

'liability Included In provIsion (Refer note 20 and 25).

v1i) Expected contribution to the fund In the next year Is IHR4.12 lakhs

viii) A quantitative sensltMty analysIs for significant assumption as at March 31, 2023 Is liS shown below:
Impact on defined benefit obligation

Discount rate As at
March 31,2023

As at
March 31, 2022

44.8659.11
72.78

1%increase
1%decrease
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Asat Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

72.77 55.64
59.00 44.77

Aut As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1.6'1 1.46
0,29 1,16
0.33 0.23
5.96 0.27
2.02 4.97

2'1.16 12,15

Rate of Increase In salary

1% increase
1%decrease

Ix) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Year

Year 1
Yenr2
Year 3
YOllr4
Year 5
Year 6 to 10

40 LEASES

(A) Operating leases where Company Is a lessee:
The Company has cntered Into lease transactions maInly for laaslng of factory building for periods between 1 to 5 years. The terms of loase
Include renewal, cancellation and Increase In rents In future period, whIch lire In line with general Inflation and terms of cancellation. Tho
amount with respect to operatIng leases In accordance with Ind AS 116 Is as follows:

I. Right-of-use assets
Particulars Amount

Balance as at April 01, 2021
AddItions
Deletion
Depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Additions
Depreciation
DerecognlUon
Balance as at March 31, 2023

46.81

11.67
35.14

228.06
45.61

182,45

II. Lease lIabllltfos
PartIculars Amount

Balance as at April 01, 2021
Additions
Finance cost accrued durtng the pertod
Payment of lease liability
DerecognlUon of lease liability
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Additions
Finance cost accrued durtng the pertod
Payment of lease liability
Derecognltlon of lease liability
Balance as at March 31, 2023

53.45

1.03

54.46

228.06
17.48
55.75

189.79

III. Break-up of current and non-current lease liabilitIes

41.60
148.19

Aut
March 31, 2022

PartIculars
Aut

March 31, 2023

Current Lease LIabilities
Non·current Lease LIabilities

lv, MaturIty analysIs of lease liabilities (Cash Outflow)

55.75
167.26

As at
March 31, 2022

PartIculars
As at

March 31, 2023

a. Not later than one year
b. Later than one year and not later than five years
c. Later than five years
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v Other details

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Endnd

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Amounts recognised In statement of Profit and Loss account - Interest on 17.48 1.03
Leose LI alilities

Amounts recogntsed In statement of Cash Flows - Total Cash cutflow for 55.75
leases

41 RELATcDPARTY DISCLOSURES:

(A) Namos of related parties and description of relationship as Identified and certl(fed by the Company:

Holding Company

Smnrtltn kHoldlngs Limited

fellow Slbsldlary

DI81s01Sy5lems Limited

Key Manatement Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Kamaltksha R. Nalk - Wholetfme Director (w.e. f May 06, 2022)

Mr. NatanJan Sankara - Whole Time Director (w.e.I. January 01,2021 upto March 31, 2021), Hon-Executlve Director (upto June 30,2021)

Mr. K M Gaonker - Hon-Executlve Director

Mr.BhanuNlaf Patel· Non·Executive Director

Mr.Hltln I<unkollenker - Non-Executive Director

Mr.Pradeep Pande • Non-Executive Director (upto January 04, 2022)

Mr. K. G_ Prabhu· Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f May 06,2022)

Mr. Edlan rernandes - Company Secretary (w.e. f May 06, 2022)

(8) Transactions with related party during the year are as follows:

Nature of transactions Holding Company fellow Subsidiary
Key Management

Total
Person

Loan from Director

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nalk - .
(-) (.) (200.00) (200.00)

Repayment of Director Loan

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nalk . - 400.00 400.00

(- ) (.) (.) (.)

Interest on Loan

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nalk - 65.71 65.71

(-) (-) (-) (.)
Sale of Manufactured Products

Dlglsol Systems Limited - 4,978.77 4,978.77

(.) (2,077.88) (-) (2,077.1111)
Sale of Manufactured Products (Repair IiMaintenance)
DI81s01Systems Limited 0.02 - 0.02

(.) (.) (.) (.)
Interest Income

Dlglsol Systems Limited - 0.04 0.04

(.) (-) (.) (.)

Rent Written back

Smartllnk Holdings Limited 25.44 25.44

(.) (-) H (-)

Rent Expense

Smartlink Holdings Limited 55.75 - - SS.7S

(.) (.) (.) (.)
'issue of EqUity Share Capital

Smartlink Holdings limited 1,000.00 1,000.00

(1,050.00) H H (1,OSO.00)

Salary

Mr. Edlan Fernandes - Company Secretary

Short-term employee benefits - S.96 5.96

Post-employment benefits ... :r.:-;:::- ... - 0.20 0.20
r:"""'- A jl ','.
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.-J """"1 C",p'"y F.II"w',"''''''
I I

I
(0) (-)

I~:"I :.;,lIla;or ,lOOt i Totnl
f'~:S\)~.

I
2.CO 2.(;0

(2.!lC) (UO)

~.OO 2.00

I
(2.50) (2.~O)

~.~O LSi)
: i~.5v) (2.5G)

I '.

I
(~.C~) (1.00)

(v.jJ) p.50)

I
.1 5.81
; - (0) (~.OO)

I 1,300.00
I io

) (1,300.00)
I

.(; II 2iO.00
(-)

I -
1,301).00

I

!latt;re of transecttcns
&\.- •• ' ..... , .. . \, ,l.

Director lilting fe~s
Mr. 1\ 1.\ QOlikar

(oj.
I

I

;·i
Lr.r. n:lnr.tr.hki Petol

I,,,. "", , 'm',:",.",
I

I" .., 0 ., I
:.:1'. I no e<,) ;.anuo

I . -_. .. ' . '. ", .

.. '

(0:

(.;

107.21
(O.Cj)

Mro Kamalaksha R. N:llk .

~5.67
(2:.44)

l,10J.()~ I
(1,500.00»1

Figures in -brackets pertains to the prevtour y('ar

42 SEGMENJ- hEPORT!NG

The otrsctcr of the ComjJanjl acts cs the cJ1!~f (i~Oratl;l;; dec.!s!"n ",,".ker (:O;)M) of the Comi'l'ny In accordance with Operat;ns Segmellt
(Ind /JS 108), for purpose ef ,messing the finllnci,'; performance a;\d position nf th~ Company, and ",,,k:! ~tiate~;: declslons. The Company's
business aclivities are mainly related. to dC'/c:cj)inl:, fllanUr:lC.t~r1r,g, marketing, distributing and servicing n.:!twori:hl!! prodccts, Thes!!
n<:>two:klngproducts ..re sold to <ii~.L'ibutors, Cr1glnai Eq.Jiplr.eltt ManafC'cturers (C·EI.\·s)and ~)'St:mIntegratcrs (51) ,Vlh!ch are prlmarHy
assessed i'l~a slr:gle r('portDJI~ c.,;;ei·d~;~;~.:::;:;.::-f.t !.•,..::g':~::1.1) 'I:::~,lnd AS lC:: by t:1CCOCM.

The ;nfor;na~i(ln b..se": en geogr:lj)ilicClI areas III relation to revenue and nen-current assets are as below:
(A) R:!\'e:ll'e f'-Jr.) cjJc~ltl_or._'S -r -'r- ---'

Pilrtlcul;:rrs For the Year Ended For the Ycu Ended
/,larch 31, 2023 March 31, 2J2l

2,203.18

212.35
Within India
OutSide India

5,100.88

Total
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(B) Non -current operating assets
Allnco-current assets other than financial Instruments, deferred· tax essets of the compnny lire located In India

(C) DetaUs of customers contrlbutlns to more than 10%of total revenue are liS below

4,978.79

Name For the Yeer Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 202.3 March 31,2022

2,077.88
195.59

Customer A
Customerll

43 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIACJILITIES

A. Accounting classification and fafr values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, Including their levels In the fair
value hierarchy. It does not Include fair value Information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value If the
carrying amount Is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

8. Measurement of fair value
The fair values of the ftnanctat assets and liabilities are Included at the amount at which the Instrument could be exchanged In a current
transaction between willing parties, other than In a forced or liquidation sale.

1. Fair value of cash, bank balances, short-term deposits, trade and other short-term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities
and other flnanclaillabilitfes approximate their canylng amounts largely due to short-term maturities of these Instruments.

2.The fair value of non-current financial assets comprising of term deposlts at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR)are not
significantly different from the carrying amount.

44 FAIR VALUE: HIERARCHY

The fair value of financial Instruments as referred to above have been classified Into three categories depending on the Inputs used In the
valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices In active markets for Identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable Inputs (level 3 measurements) .

•Level 1 . Level 1 hierarchy Includes financial Instruments mea.sured using quoted prices. This Includes listed equity Instruments, traded
bonds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity Instruments which are traded In the stock exchanges Is valued using the closing
price as at the reporting period

.Level 2 . The fair value of financial Instruments that are not traded In an active market Is determl ed using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entlty-spedflc estimate. If all significant Inputs required to
fair value an Instrument are observable, the Instrument is Included In level 2.

•level 3 . Ifone or more of the significant Inputs Is not based on observable market data, the Instrum nt Is Included In levell.

fair value measurement hierarchy of assets and lIabDitles
As at As at

Particulars Fair value hJerarchy ~rch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Trade receivables levell 137.84 34.16

Cash and cash equivalents level 3 0.01 19.99
Bankbalances other than cash and cash equivalent level 3 555.00 662.62

loans level 3 0.48 1.22
Other financial assets Level 3 283.27 451.60
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Borrowings level 3 1,322.37 1,500.00

Trade payables level 3 1,201048 478.26
lease liability level 3 189.79
Other financial liabilities level 3 120.81 300.47

There have been no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the period

45 FINANCIAt RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICTES

The Company is exposed to various financial risks. These risks are categorized Into market risk, credit riskand liquidity risk. The Company's
risk management is coordinated by the Board of Directors and focuses on securing long term and shor term cash flows. The Company does
not engage In trading of financial assets for spectJlative purposes.

(A)Market risk
Market risk Is the risk that the fafr value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate ecause of changes In market prices.
Market risk comprises two types of risk:
borrowings. _,::~-,-;,
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(I) Intere~ rate risk
Interest rite risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of II flnanclol Instrument will Huctuote because of chongos In market
Interest ntes. The Company does not have exposure to the risk of changes In market Interest rates es tho Company's long- term debt
obltgntlol'6 are with fixed Interest rates.

(II) Forei 91 currency risk
Foreign clfrency risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of Il financial Instrumont will fluctuate becDuseof chnngos In
foreign elthange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes In foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Compnny's
operntlngactlvltfes (when revenue or expense Is denominated In II dlfferont currency from the Compnny's functfonal currency).

(a) The Canpany's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the year Is as follows

Particulars Currency
Aut Aut

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade PaYlbles USD 1,138.87 406.66

JPY 284.47

(b) Foreign Currency Sensitivity
The folloYling table details the Company'ssensitivity to II 1% Increase and decrense QBlllnst the USDollar IJPY. 1% Is the sensitivity used
when reporting foreign currency risk Internally to key management personnel and represents menagement's assessmentor the reasonably
possible change In foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis Includes only net outstandIng foreign currency denomInated monetary
Items and adjusts theIr translatton at the perIod end for a 1% change In foreign currency rates.

Particulars
As at Aut

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Impact of 1% strengthening against USD- Decrease In loss 11.39 4.07
Impact of 1% weaJ<enlngagaInst USD-Increase In loss 11.39 4.07
Impact of 1% strengthening against JPY . Decrellse In loss 2.64
Impact of 1% weakenIng agaInst JPY· Increase In loss 2.84

(6) Credit risk
Credit risk Is the risk of financlatloss to the Company If a customer or counterparty to a financial Instrument falls to meet Its contractual
obtigattons, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represents maximum credit risk exposure.
CredIt risk Ismanaged through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and contInuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to
which the Companygrants credit terms In the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance ror doubtful debts and
Impairment that represents Its estimate of Incurred losses In respect of trade and other receIvables.

However, the credlt risk arising on cash and cash equivalents Is ltmlted as the Company Invest In deposits with banks and financial
Institution with credit ratings and strong repayment capacity.

Trade receivables
Summary of the Company'sexposure to credIt risk by age or the outstanding from various customers Is as follows'.

Partlculal'1
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Not Due 121.15 25.71
Pastdue 1 ·100 days 16.69 8.45
Pastdue for more than 180 days -

(C) LiquIdity risk
LIquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet Its financial obltgatlons as they become due. The CompanymanagesIts
liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that It wfll always have sufflcfent liquidIty to meet Its lIabllftles when due.

The table below summarIzesthe maturity profile of the Company's fInancIal liabilities:
Less than 3

3 to 12 months
1 year to More than

Total
months 5 years 5 years

1.115.53 54.00 1,169.53

152.84 152.84

10.07 31.53 146.19 189.79

1,201.46 1,201.48

120.82 120.82

2,447.90 85.53 301.03 2,834.46

1,500.00 1,500.00
'478.26 478.26

300.47 300.47
2,278.73

~'~/ V

PartIculars

As at 31st March, 2023
Short term borrowIngs
Long-term borrowings
LeaseLIability
Trade payables
Other fInancial liabilitIes
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46 The Co npany hasnot given Loansor Advances In the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, KeyManagement Personnel's and the related perues
(as de'flled under CompaniesAct, 2013), either severally or jOintly with any othor person.

47 Cllpltlll·Work·ln Progress (CWIP)
The Conpany doesnot have IIny (Apltal work In progressdur1ngthe current year and the prevfous year.

48 Intllnglllle assets under development
The Co~ny does not have any Intangible assets under development during the current year and the prevIous year.

49 Details of Benaml Property held
The Co~any doesnot have any Benaml property, where any proceedIng has been Initiated or pending IIBlllnst the company for holding any Oenaml
property.

50 Reconc:Uatlon of quarterly returns or statements of current ass'etsflied wIth banks or flnancial InstItutions
Monthly returns! statements flied with such Banks! flnandallnstltullons are In agreement with the books of account.

51 Wilful Defaulter
The company has not been declared IIwilful defaulter by any bank or flnandallnstitution.

52 Relatlonlhlp with Struck off Companies under section 248 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 or section 560 of compenies Act, 1956

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck of( under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies
Act, 1956,

53 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The Company does not have any charges er satisfaction which Is yet to be registered with ROCbeyond the statutory period.

54 UtIIlsati'lll of Borrowed funds and share premium:
(I) The Companyhas not advanced or loaned or invested fl.llds to any other person(s) or entlty(les). Including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entities Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b)provfde any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(II) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entlty(les), Including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understandIng
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(ULtimate Beneficiaries) or
(b)provlde any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

55 As at March 31, 20n, the Company did not have any outstanding long term derivative contracts (previous year IHRNIL).

56 For the year ended March 31. 2023, the Company Is not required to transfer any amount (previous year INR NIL) to the Investor Education 11
Protectfon Fund.

57 There were no whistleblower complaints received during the FY2022·23.

58 The Companydoes not have any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting Impact on current or previous financial year.

59 The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under ctause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Restriction on number of layers) Rule 2017.
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SYNEGRAEllS LIMITED
Notes (orrnlrg part of the Financial Statements

(Amount In ~R lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

61 Undlsdosed Income
The Company does not have any undisclosed Income which Is not recorded in the books of account thllt has boon surrendered or dlsclosod
as Income durIng the year (previous year) In the tax assessmentsunder the Income rex Act, 1961 (such as, search or surveyor noy othor
relevant provIsIons of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

62 Dotaflsof Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not Iraded or Invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currenoy during the flnanclal yoor.

63 CAPITAl. MANAGEMENT
For the purpose of the Company's capItal management, capItal Includes Issued oqulty capital nod all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's copltal management Is to safeguard the Company's ability to
remainas a going concern and maxfmtse the shareholder value.

The Company manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes In economic conditions, annual operatIng plans,
long term and other strategic plans and the requIrements of the finanCial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capttat structure, the
Company may adjust Its dividend payment ratio to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or Issue fresh shares.

The Company monitors capItal using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to 'equity'. For this purpose, adjusted net debt Is defined as lIabllftles,
comprising Interest· bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all components of equity Including share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity share holders.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio are as follows.
---------.----~A-s-at~--~~----~A-s-a~t-----,

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(I) 2,500.00 1,500.00

Particulars

53%

Equity

Borrowings
Less: cash and cash equivalents

1,322.37
0.01)

1,500.00
(19.99)

Adjusted Net Debt 1,322.36 1,480.01(11)
Adjusted Net Debt to Equity ratio 99%(tI)/ (I)

No material changes were made In the objectIves, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and
March 31,2022.

64 Government Grants
The company had received approval under the Production LInked Incentive (PLI) to promote Telecom and Networking Products
manufacture In India (the PLI scheme) on October 14, 2021 from the Competent Authority. Under the PLI scheme the company had
recognised an Income of Rs. 135.n lakhs In the prevfous financial year ended March 31, 2022 on fulfilment of the conditions for eligibility
of Incentive under the PLIscheme.
During the current year, on October 31, 2022 the Company had receIved approval under the extended PLI scheme and the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on November 2, 2022 had approved the exit from the erstwhile PLI scheme and opting for
the extended PLI scheme. Consequently, the Company had derecognlsed the said Incentive of Rs. 135.77 lakhs and charged the amount to
other expenses.
Further for the year ended March 31, 2023 on fulfilment of the conditions for eligibility of Incentive under the extended PLI scheme, the
Company has recognised incentive of Rs. 280 lakhs.

There are no amounts towards unfulfilled conditions and other Contfngencles attached to the grant that have been recognised during the
financial year ended March 31, 2023 (Previous year INR NIL)

65 The Company has Incurred losses of INR 74.761akhs (prevfous year profit of INR 10.04 lakhs) during the year ended March 31,2023 and as
on date, has accumulated loss of INR 1,362.29/· lakhs (previous year INR 1,287.53/- lakhs). However, the management has reasonable
expectation, based on the estimates of future cash flow projections that support the carrying value of the tangible and intangible assets of
the company as at March 31,2023 and committed financial support from the Holding company and the promoters, that the Company could
have adequate resources to continue it's operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financials have been prepared
on going concern basis and no Impairment provision has been recognised.



SYNEGRAEHS LIMITED

Notes form h8 part of the FInancial Statements
(Amount In lHRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

66 Tho Code on Social Security 2020
The Code on Social Security 2020 ('the Code') relating to employee benefits, during the employment and post-emptoyrnont, has received
Prosldll1tlal assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published In the Gazette of Indln. Further, the MInIstry of Labour nnd
I::mplO)lllent has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effectlvo date from whIch the changes ere
appllcwle Is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the flnnnciallmpnct are also not yet Issued.
The Company wlll assessthe Impact of the Code and will give appropriate Impact In the financIal statements In the period In which, tho
Code becomes effective and the related rules to determIne the financIal Impact are published.

As per our rtport of even date
For M S K A. & Associates
Chartered A.ccountants
FIrm Reglstr Ion No.:105047W

Partn r

MembershIp ~o. 049939

Place: Mumbal

Date: May 17, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Syne8ra EMSlimited
CIN : U31909GA2016PLC012969

4J
K.1tNalk
Whotetlme Director

DIN~0~.3

Kl:~
Chief FInancIal Officer

Nltln Kunkoltenker
Director
DIN: 00005211

~
Edlan Fernandes

Comparw Secretary
ICSIMembershIp No.53614

Place: Mumbal

Date: May 17, 2023
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SYNEGRAEh\SLIMITED
BALANCESHEETASATDECEMBER31, 2023

(Amount In lNRlakhs, unless ~therwise stated)

Hates
As at As at

PartIculars December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant-and equipment 1 942.16 1.071.81

Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 3 0.18 0.18

Non - Current Tax Assets 4 7.67 7.63

Other non-current assets 5 302.23 293.18

Total non-current assets 1,252.24 1,371,.80

ClIrrent assets

Inventories 6 892.73 1,616.49

Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 491.27 137.84

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 1.26 0.01
(!if) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 9 555.00 555.00
(Iv) Loans 10 0.44 0.48

(v):Other financial assets 11 313.59 283.09
other current assets 11 173.19 21'0.07
Total current assets 2,427.48 2,802.98
TOTALASSETS 3,679.72 4,175.78

EQUITYAHDLIABILITIES.
Equity
Equity share capital 13 2,500.00 2,500.00
Other equity 14 (1,450.23) (1,340.23)
Total equity 1,049.77 1,159.77

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial ltabilitles

(i) Borrowings 15 135.00 152.84
(II) Lease liabilities 114.59 148.19

Provlsicns 16 29.97 28.13
Total non-current liabilities 279.56 329.16

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(I) Borrowings 17 1,058.00 1,169.53
(II) Lease LIabilities 44.33 41.60
(W) Trade payables 18

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprtses 16.33 4.92
Total outstandIng dues of credItors other than micro enterprtses and

small enterprises 1,169.53 1,196.56
(Iv) Other financial liabilities 19 46.80 120.82
Other current liabilities 20 11.70 149.71
Provisions 21 3.70 3.71
Total current liabilities 2,350.39 2,686.85
TOTALLIABILITIES 2,629.95 3,016.01

TOTALEQUITYANDLIABILITIES 3,679.72 4,1:75.78

Wholetime Director
DIN:00002013

DIrector
DIH:00005211

Place: Vema Goa
Date: February 09,2024

Place: Vema Goa
Date: February 09,2024



SYNEGRA'EMSLIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DEGEMBER31,2023
{Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
For the Period Ended For the-Year Ended March
December 31,202,3 ,31,20n

INCOME
Revenue from Operations 22 5,,203.89 5,380.88
Other Income 23 62.31 119:93
Total Income ..... 5',,2.?6.20 5,500~81

EXPENSES
Cost of raw materials consumed ,24 4,065.30 5,247.23
Changes in inventories-of finished goods and work-in-progress 25 569.50 (581.59)
Employee benefits expense 26 319.29 317.79
Finance costs 27 92.32 102.18
Depredation and amortisatton expense 28 1?9.16 166•.73
Other expenses 29 172.13 323.23
Total expenses 5,3,68.70 5,575.57

ProfitJ(Loss) before tax (10,2.50) (74.76)

Taxexperise

Current tax - -
Deferred tax -
Total tax expense . -

Profit/(Loss) for the year (102.50) (74.76)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Rerneasurement of net defined benefit liability (7.50) (13.00)

Income tax effect ~ .
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (7.50) (13.00)

Total comprehensive-income for the year (HO.,OO) (87.76)

For and on behalf of the Board of 'Directors
Synegr.a ,EMS'Ltmited

CIN : Ul1969GA2016PLC012969

K. R. Nalk
Wholetime Director
DIN: 0000201'3

Director
DIN: 00005211

Place: Vema GO<!

Dllte: Feor'ualy'09, 202<4
Plac~:V~ma Goa
Date: February 09. 2024



Gron blocll Otpreclation Not block

Partlcul." A>lt AddItloml o.ductloml
As ot

Aut Addltloml o.ductlOn>l
AI at Alit

Asol
April 01, 2023 Adjustments Adjustments

Oec:embt< 31,
Apr1101,202] AdJUltmenl1 Adjustments

Oec:ember)I, Oec:otnber ) I,
,April 01,2013

1021 2023 2023
Plant ond equipment 1,769.19 20.52 1,789.71 918.58 110,78 1,029.36 760.35 850,61
Fumlture ond ".tun! 17.02 17.02 9,25 0,S7 10,12 , 6,90 7,77

Com""WI 56.05 56.05 52.95 1.78 54,7) 1.32 3.10
AlrcondltiOncr 12.57 12.57 0.09 0.95 1,Q.4 11.53 12,~8
EtO<trtcllllnttaUaUOm 2)'(S 23,~8 8.69 1.28 9.97 13.51 1~.79
Ollke Equtpmcnt 1.18 1.18 0.57 0.14 0.71 0,47 0.61
Rlaht~f'llJ(! Us.!J 228.06 U8.06 ~5.61 304.36 79.98 1~.oa 112.45
Totll 2,107.55 20.52 . 2128,07 1,035.74 150.16 1,115.91 942.16 1,071.81

Gros. block Deprtclot1on Nel block
P.rtlcul,"., As ot ' ,Addltlon./ Oeductlons' Aut Aut .Addltlon,/ Deductlon./ Aut 1... 1 AIM

,Aprtl 01, 1022 AdJustmenu AdJu.tmonu March 31, 2023 Aprll01 2022 Adjustment. Adjustments "'arch 31, 2023 "'arch 31, 2023 April 01. 2022
Plant and equipment 1,991.71 253.71 ~76.21 1,769.19 1,277.81 117.00 ~76.23 918.58 nO.61 713.90
Fumlun and nlttlll't 9.45 7.57 17.02 '.88 0.37 9.25 7.77 0.57
Computm 56.Q.4 0.01 56.05 ~.51 2.~ 52.95 3.10 5.53
Afrcondlttoncr 12.57 12.57 0.09 0.09 12.48
Electrical fnll.llations 11.81 11.67 23.48 7.81 0.8S 8,69 14.79 4.00
Office Equipment 1,18 1.18 0.38 0.19 0.57 0,61 0.80
Rlghl·of,usc assets 228.06 U8,06 45,61 45.61 182.45
Totti 2.070.19 513.59 "'76.23 2,107.55 1,345.)9 166,58 476.23 1,035.74 1,071.81 724.80

SYrlEGRAEMSLIMITED
Mote, form!n, part or the Fln.~131 ~tatMntnls

tMloll11t fn INRI~khs, unill" otholWlsc st.ted)

1 PROPERTY PlANT ANDEQUIPMENT

2 INT,ANGIBlE ASSm
Gro", block AmortlutlO<'l Not block

Pftrtlcula .. Atat Addltlonsl Oedl/(tions/
Aut

Aut Addltionsl Doductlons!
As It Aut

Aut
April 01, 1013 Adjustments Adj\Jstlnents

Docember 31,
April 01, 2023 Mjuslmonh Adjustment.

Oecember 31, Oecemb<lr 31,
April 01, 2023

2023 2023 2013

Com""ter Soltwor. 9.24 ~.H 9.24 9.24
Tot., 9.24 . 9.2. 9.14 9.2.

Gros. block AmortisatlO<l Het block
PArtlcul.,. Atat MdltiOnt/ Deductions/ ,.. at Alit Additions/ Doduc:tlons/ Aut Alit ...UI

Al>rll01, 20n AdJustmenlt Adjustments March 31, 2023 "prjl 0', 2022 Adjustments AdJ....tm.nU March 31, 202) March 31, 1023 Aprtl 01, 2021

Cern",,!e, SofCWAnl 9,24 9.24 9.09 0.15 9,2. 0,15

Totti 9.24 . 9.24 9.Oj.. =- 0.'5 9.2'" 0.15

1 ~O)
:tt a-:'~\



SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED
Notes formIng part of ~~e fl'nancfal Statements

(Amblmt In INR lakhs,'tmless otherwIse stated)

3 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON CURRENT)

Particulars
As at As at

December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Security DepositS 0.18 0.18
In Fixed deposit with maturity of more than 12 months from Balance Sheet date" . .
Total 0.18 0.18

4 NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Partt'culars
As at Asat

December' 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Income Tax Deducted at Source 7.67 7.63
Total 7.67 7.63

5 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As at As at
Part1cula~s December 31,2023 March 31, 2023

Capital advance 69.40 .
Balances with statutory/Government authoritIes 232.,83 293.18
Total

"
302.23 193.18

6 INVENTORIES

(AT LOWER OF COST OR NET REALISABLE VALUE)

Particulars
As at As at

December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Raw materials 705.33 746.90
Raw materials in transit 119.87 256.85
Work·ln·progress 0.98 515.73
FinIshed goods 12.98 67.73
Stores, spares and packing materials 53.57 29.28
Total 892.73 1,616.49

7 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars
As at As at

December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Unsecured

·Consldered good (refer note below) 491.27 137.84
·Consldered doubtful . .
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts .
Total 491.27 137.84

Note
ReceIvable from related parties

Dlgisol Systems Limited 136.31 107.21

8 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at As at
December 31,2023 March 31, 2023

Particulars

Balances with banks:

On current.accounts
Cash on haM

1.21
0.05 0.01

Total 0.01



SYNEGKA t::M!SLIMit tV

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

9 BANK BALANCES' OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Particulars
As at As at

December 31, 2023 March 31,2023

In Fixed deposit with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months from 555.00 555.00
Balance Sheet date"

Total 555.00 555.00
• Fixed Deposit under lien with (Smnllindustrial Development Bank Of India) against
Term Loan. (Refer Note 15)

• Fixed Deposit under lien with (Bajaj Finance Limited) against Short term loan. (Refer
Note 17)

55.00 55.00

500.00 500.00

10 LOANS (CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS)

Particulars
As at As at

December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loan to Employees 0.44 0.48
Total 0.44 0.48

11 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)

Particulars
As at As at

December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Advance to employees 0.10 0.05
Production Linked Incentive Receivable 280.00 280.00
Interest receivable on fixed deposit 33.49 3.04
Total 313.59 283.09

12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars
As at As at

December 31,2023 March 31, 2023
Prepaid expenses 3.89 10.00
Balance with government authorities 113.40 113.40
Advances to vendors 55.90 86.67
Total 173.19 210.07

~ 'Vi~a~~>- i1/l .....,
'Y* C~-



SYNEGRAEMS lIMlTAO
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless,otherwise ,stated)

1a EQUITY SHARE' CAPlfAL

Particulars
Aut As at

Dec~1;nbe.r31,2023 Marc~ 31" 2023

Authorized Share Capital
2,50,00,000 (Previous year: 2,50,00,000) equity shares of INR 10/- each f,500.0q 2,500.00

2,500.00 2,500.00

Equity shares
Issued. subscribed and paid u'p

2,~0,OO,OOO'(P'r.evioqs~year:2,50,00,000) ~qOity shares <If INR 10/· each fully paid up 2,500.00, 2,500.00

,Total 2,500.00 '2,500.00

14 OTHER EQUITY
16 I *A. Capital Contr IJt on

Particulars
As at As at

t)ecember 31,2023 March 3,1, 2023

Opening balance " 51.84 51.84

Add: Additlons during the-year - -
Cioslng balance 51.84 51.84

"," The total capttal contributlOn Is on account of loan from Director at a lower rate than market rate of Interest.

B. FVTOCI reserve on deflhed benefits (net of tax) ..

Particulars
;6.sat As.at

Decel'(l~er 31, ;2023 March 31, ,;20,23

Opening balance (29.78) (16.78)
Add: Addition !.lurlns the year (7.50) (13.00)
Closing' b~lllnce (37.28) (29.78)

• This represents remeasurements, compriSing of actuartat 'gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net Interest) on
employee defined benefit plans.

C. Surplus I (Deficit) In ,the Statement of Profit and Loss

PartIculars
Aut As at

December 3:1, 20,~3 MlIrch 31 , ,2023
Opening balance (1,362.29) (1,287.53)
Add: Net Profit I (Loss) for the year (102.50) (74.76)
ClosIng balance (1,464.79) (1,362.29)

1TO'f.Al OTHER EQUITY: (1,450.23)1
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Hot~s form'lng p8tt.of th.e fjnan:clal statements

(Amount in IHR'lakhs, untess .otherWise stated)

15. BORROWINGS (NON':COlfRcffT), .. -".

As at Aut

PartlcuJars' P.ec:emb.e.~31,. 2023 Marth 31, 2.6:23

Secured
Term loan (Refer NQte, Below), 'iA3.O'O 20'6.84

Less: Current maturity Q[ long term teen ·10'8.(Y0' 5lt.O'O

Total
"

'1~5..CJO' 1,5'2,84
.. ", .~.. .. "" .....,

As,.per'the loan sijn1;:~9n letter, the said loan was taken for the pllrpOse of purchase of Plant a: Machinery. The Company has used
SUChborro'l'{lng~ ;for the1)\Jr.pose~/as stated In Jhe-19aO sag,ctfol'lletter.

1'6 PROVIS10N -£N,'ON":CUR8J5tfT)
, '

, . -
Partitulars

As at A$,at
Dec. 31, lO',2}: March .31~20'23

ProVision for gratuity (fund¢'<;!;) 21.M 21..50'

Provision for leave ~noi\sl1ment (unfunded) 8.3:!" 6.63

Total 29.97 .2.8.1',3

17 .BORROWINGS (CURRENT)

Parttculers.
As':at '. As at

December 31, 20'23 Marth 31.20'23
Borrowln!!~ measured ,at Amortised ,Cost

~ured ..
Bank overdraft . i.1'6

Current rnaturity of long tertn loans 1.0'8.0'0', 54.'0'0'
Loan froitl Bajaj ~Inance ltd.

,
"150'•.00 .

Unsecured

Loan from director 500'.00' 1,11'3.37'

Total 1,058.0'0' 1,169.53

Secured .Loan.
5hOrtterm toarrfrom Bajaj Finance 'ltd 'fs secured by Fixed deposit of I.NR'5QC la~lis wit,h Baj~j ftnal),ce Limited.

U'nsecOre<;!L'oai1
Loan from Director taken for a tenure of 365 days.

18 TRADE PAY-ABLES'

paitfs;ula{'$ .k,at A:s:.at
December- 31, 20'1.3 ,Mar-ell. 3.1, 2023

Total outstandlr.g dues' of miCro enterprises arid small enterprises 16.33 4.92
Total putstandlng'does ofcreditor!i other thaI) roictO':(!nterpnses anet smalt 1,169.53 1,196.56'
enterprises

To~~1
"

, .. ...~.. _ 1',t8;5,86. 1;201.48
" .Foot note,

payment toward~ tr:ade ,p!lyabl~s is m.ade as per the terms and conditfoos of t~e cOfl~r~ctl p!Jt41iUe orde~., Gen~r~lIy t,he average
credit peRod 'on porG:'ha~esIs 30 to 6'0 days.

19 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILl-TIES (CURRENT)

ParUclllars
A~.at As at

December 31-, 20'23 March 31, :20~
Interest accrued on delay!?,!' payment to MSME 0'.05 .
Interest accrued but" not due on loans 8.96 0'.14
Capital C(editors '90.76
Employee Payable 37.79' 29.92
Total

, 46.80 120.82
,-

.20 OTHER CURRERr iT.ABllJrlE,S..

Pactlcolatf
Aut Aut

December 31-, ,2023 March 3'1, 20'2-3
St~l:utocy dues pa.yable

.
1'1.7Q 6.00

Myance from Customers . 143.71
Total 11.10' 149.11

21 PR'Ov'ISIOI'f(CORkEN1:)

PIIl±lcullu:ts

Provlsfon'for g'ra:tUit,y (fOntleCl)
ProvJs!orrfor leaVt>~enaashm,ent (unfunded)
Tdtal,



SYNEGRAEMSLIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
(Amount in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
For the Period Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars December 31,2023 March 31, 2023

Revenue from Contract with Customers
Sale of manufactured products 5,101.72 4,994.64
Service Repair Income - 1.41
Service Job Work 85.52 94.72
Sate-of Scrap 10.65 10.11

Other Operating Income
Production Linked Incentive Income - 280.00
Total 5,201.89 5,380.88

23 OTHER INCOME
For the Period Ended For the Year End~d

Particulars December 31,202.3 March 31, 2023

Interest Income
- on fixed deposits designated at amortized cost 32.96 15.62
Interest Income (MSME) 3.04 0.04
Interest on Income tax refund 0.34 0.19
Sundry balances written back - 25.44
Foreign exchange fluctuation 13.13 28.11
Gain on sale/disposal of Property plant and equipment (net) - 48.14
Miscellaneous Income 12.84 2.39
Total 62.31 119.93

24 COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars
For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

Inventory at the ,beginning of the year 1,003.15 491.52
Add: Purchases 3,886.14 5,159.46
Less: lnventcrv at the end of the year 825.19 1,003.75
Total 4,065.30 5,247.23

25 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINlSHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Particulars For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 67.73 1.87
Work·ln-progress 5:1:5.73 -

583.46 1.87
Less: Inventories at the end of the year
finished goods 12.98 67.73
Work·in-progress 0.98 515.73

13.96 583.46
Net Decrease I (Increase) In Inventories 5'69.50 11.59)
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(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars
For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

Salaries, allowances, bonus and ex-gratia 285.00 2n.29

Contribution to Provident and other funds 9.79 12.32

ContributIon to Gratuity fund 3.00 3.96

Staff welfare and other employee expenses 21.50 29.22

Total 319.29 317.79

27 FINANCE COSTS

Particulars
For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

Interest on working capital loan 7.65 12.51

Interest on lease liability 10.95 17.48

Interest on unsecured loan from director 32.79 65.71

Interest on delayed payment of Income tax .
Interest on Term Loan 39.98 5.50

Interest on others 0.95 0.98

Total 92.32 102.18

28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Particulars
For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
December 31,2023 March 31. 2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 150.16 166.58
Amortisation on Intangible Assets . 0.15
Total 150.16 166.73

2~ OTHER EXPENSES

PartIculars

Consumption of store and spares
Repairs & maintenance expenses
Machinery
Others

Conveyance and travelling expenses
CommunicatIon Cost
Insurance charges
Dank charges and commission
Legal and professtonat charges
Rates and Taxes
Membership and subscription
Auditor's Remuneration
Computer consumables, software t't maintenance charges
Commission on Sales

Director's fees
Office expenses
Power and fuel
Annual maintenance charges
Application, Registration and Filing Fees

Production Linked Incentive Receivable written off
Customs Write Off
Miscellaneous expenses

For the Period Endod r:or the Year Ended
December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

3.14 3.86

0.43 10.01

5.82 11.14

5.11 4.53

0.13 0.09

10.08 12.12
6.22 10.26

30.70 59.92

0.12 9.07
0.36 0.88

1.88 3.04

0.78 1.19
55.73

4.50 5.50
4.60 5.61

35.38 32.22
1.18 2.47

0.33 8.68

135.77
0.63

5.01 6.87

172.13 323.23

\Y
Total
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